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Chairman’s Message
FREAR

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the results of China Best Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “"Group”) for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021.

Looking back to the past financial period, we witnessed the outbreak
of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, the various measures
taken around the world to fight the pandemic, and even the monetary
policy and fiscal measures to stimulate economic recovery which were
unprecedented with far-reaching effects. Despite the economic turmail,
the Group was still committed to consolidating trading and finance
businesses, and actively developed new businesses such as real estate-
related services. In the first half of the year, some of the Group’s plans
and projects were inevitably hindered by the pandemic. However, as
the pandemic gradually came under control, especially the economic
activities in mainland China and Hong Kong, where the Group’s main
businesses are located, showed a trend of normalisation, the Group
also accelerated its business development in the subsequent period.
Generally speaking, the Group’s total revenue in the past financial
period recorded rapid growth, mainly contributed by the revenue from
the real estate-related service businesses. Although the expansion of
operations also increased the pressure on costs and expenses, the Group
still managed to narrow its losses for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021 due to the decrease in valuation loss and provisions at the
end of the year and the increase in subsidy income during the period.

Looking forward, after the widespread vaccination against the
COVID-19 and the phasing out of lockdown measures around the world,
the macroeconomic situation affected by the pandemic is expected
to continue to improve. With the pandemic under control and policy
coordination, mainland China’s economy has become an important
force in the global recovery. Under the background of state support
and social stability, Hong Kong is expected to continue to give play
to its own advantages in line with the national strategy. Hong Kong's
capital market still has a unique advantage for the listing and financing
of mainland Chinese companies and attracting foreign capital to the
mainland market, and its status of a global financial center remains
unshakable. Rooted in mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group
has always been confident in the future operation of the business.
The Group will continue to strengthen the development of its main
businesses and seek opportunities to expand the synergy between
various businesses. On the other hand, the Group will still pay attention
to mergers and acquisitions opportunities that appear from time to time
and introduce promising projects under suitable conditions to further
improve the profitability of the Group, maintain the sustainability of its
business and bring benefits to the shareholders of the Group.
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Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to the management, our employees and partners for
their contributions to the development of the Group as well as to
shareholders for their continued support to the Company. With the
support and contributions from all parties, the Group will continue to
strive for the best to achieve better performance and create greater
value for shareholders!

Wang Yinggian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEwmROHh

For the fifteen

For the year

months ended ended
31.3.2021 31.12.2019
BE-_T-—F HE_ZT—NEF
=—BA=+—H +-—RB=+—H
IE+HEA EFE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEET
Financial Results Highlight MBEERHE
Turnover =R 1,186.3 362.3
Total operating costs EE A ARER 1,022.7 309.7
Total expenses x i 4EzE (233.7) (104.4)
Net loss before tax and R IB R IE PR Rz Al
non-controlling interests Z 518358 (20.7) (103.5)
Loss for the period/year attributable NABHEBEAELEFREE
to owners of the Company (42.6) (106.1)
As at
31.3.2021 31.12.2019
—EZ—F —ZE—hEF
=B=+—H +-B=+—H
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEET
Extract of Financial Position BA TS AR B B
Total assets BE®E 2,072.9 1,192.7
Total liabilities ISR (923.2) (75.2)
Net current assets MENEEFE 483.4 637.4
Bank balances and cash RITHGRKRIRE 50.3 97.5
Net assets BEFE 1,149.7 1,117.5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board dated 19 June 2020, the
Company’s financial year end date has been changed from 31
December to 31 March commencing from the financial year of
2020/2021. Accordingly, the current financial year will cover a period
of fifteen months from 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2021. The
corresponding comparative amounts shown covered twelve months
period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019, and therefore may
not be entirely comparable with amounts shown for the current period.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s turnover was
approximately HK$1,186.3 million, representing an increase of 227.4%
as compared with approximately HK$362.3 million for the twelve
months ended 31 December 2019. The net loss for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2021 was approximately HK$36.4 million as compared
with approximately HK$106.1 million for the twelve months ended 31
December 2019. The decrease in loss was mainly attributable to, among
other thing, (i) the decrease in impairment loss and fair value loss on
the Group's assets by approximately HK$51.5 million in aggregate, (ii)
the increase in government grants by approximately HK$32.5 million
mainly in relation to the Group's geothermal energy and centralised
heating businesses, and (iii) income growth from the expanded business
activities, in particular from the Group's real-estate related businesses,
which nevertheless was neutralised by the increase in the Group's
operation costs.

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Finance Leasing Business

The Group commenced its finance leasing business in July 2015 and
has been engaged in providing finance lease services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The principal focus of the Group's
finance leasing business is to provide an alternative way of financing
to corporate clients in the PRC via a sale and lease-back arrangement
of tangible assets, like plant and machinery, as well as to render
consultancy services with respect of finance leasing. For the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021, the turnover of the Group’s finance
leasing business amounted to approximately HK$2.9 million (year ended
31 December 2019: approximately HK$10.0 million) whereas segment
loss of approximately HK$4.8 million was incurred (year ended 31
December 2019: approximately HK$1.8 million).
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Money Lending Business

The Group holds a money lenders licence in Hong Kong and provides
loan facilities to prospective customers including enterprises and
individuals. This segment has begun to generate returns to the Group
since April 2016. For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021,
the turnover of the Group’s money lending business amounted to
approximately HK$25.4 million (year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$29.7 million). Corresponding segment profit of
approximately HK$16.9 million was made for the current period (year
ended 31 December 2019: segment loss of approximately HK$22.2
million, including the impairment loss on loan and interest receivables of
approximately HK$43.5 million due to borrower’s default in payment).

Securities and Futures Brokerage Business

The Group has been providing brokerage services for securities and
futures traded on exchanges in Hong Kong and major overseas countries
since August 2017. For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021,
the turnover of the Group’s securities and futures brokerage business
amounted to approximately HK$1,000 (year ended 31 December
2019: approximately HK$0.4 million). Considering this segment’s past
performance and the current conditions, in particular uncertainties in
the financial market, an impairment loss on goodwill of HK$13.0 million
was recognised in the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 with the
reference to the valuation result conducted by independent professional
valuers. Corresponding segment loss of approximately HK$21.1 million,
including the impairment loss on goodwill, was incurred for the current
period (year ended 31 December 2019: approximately HK$10.6 million).

Trading Business

With the established distribution channels and upstream suppliers
network in niche market of electronics, the trading of goods business
mainly focuses on trading of semi-finished electronic components
produced in mainland China and Taiwan which are equippable to
mobile electronic appliances and laptops computers. For the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021, the turnover of the Group's trading
business amounted to approximately HK$571.4 million (year ended 31
December 2019: approximately HK$308.9 million) whereas the gross
profit was approximately HK$7.5 million (year ended 31 December
2019: approximately HK$5.9 million). The Group recorded a loss
of approximately HK$9.9 million (year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$5.6 million) in this segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Securities Investment Business

It represents trading of listed equity securities in the Hong Kong stock
market and dividend income (if any) from such listed equity securities.
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the turnover of the
Group’s securities investment business amounted to approximately
HK$3.8 million (year ended 31 December 2019: nil). During the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021, the Group recorded a realised gain on
the listed securities of approximately HK$2.3 million (year ended 31
December 2019: recorded an unrealised fair value loss of approximately
HK$1.7 million). For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the
Group did not receive any dividend income (year ended 31 December
2019: nil). As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not hold any trading
securities (31 December 2019: approximately HK$1.3 million).

Freight Forwarding Business

The freight forwarding business of the Group provides international
air and sea freight forwarding and logistic services to local customers
in Singapore and the United State of America which consist of small
and medium trading companies and forwarders. For the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021, the turnover of the Group’s freight
forwarding business amounted to approximately HK$2.0 million
(year ended 31 December 2019: approximately HK$3.5 million).
Corresponding gross profit of approximately HK$0.7 million and
segment loss of approximately HK$1.0 million were made for the
current period respectively (year ended 31 December 2019: gross profit
of approximately HK$1.0 million and segment loss of approximately
HK$0.8 million).

Property Investment Business

The Group acquired a group of companies which mainly hold the
investment properties in the PRC for rental income and capital
appreciation since January 2019. For the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021, certain interior fitting out works originally planned
to improve properties’ multi-usages have been suspended for the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. As the leasing arrangement is
yet to be crystallised, such investment properties did not generate
any rental income for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 (year
ended 31 December 2019: nil). As at 31 March 2021, the fair value
of the investment properties was approximately HK$117.6 million
after deduction of unrealised fair value loss of approximately HK$1.0
million with reference to the valuation result conducted by independent
professional valuers (31 December 2019: approximately HK$111.5
million).
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Property Brokerage Business

The Group has been engaged in provision of residential and commercial
property brokerage services in the PRC since June 2019. Currently, the
major places of business activities are in Xi‘an, Shaanxi Province and
Xiangshan City, Zhejiang Province of the PRC. For the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2021, the turnover of the Group’s property brokerage
business amounted to approximately HK$45.3 million (year ended 31
December 2019: HK$9.8 million) and the gross profit was approximately
HK$28.0 million (year ended 31 December 2019: HK$5.9 million).
Corresponding profit of approximately HK$19.8 million was made in this
segment (year ended 31 December 2019: HK$3.0 million).

Building Architecture and Interior Design Business

The Group has been engaged in provision of building architecture and
interior design services in the PRC since June 2019. For the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021, the turnover of the Group’s building
architecture and interior design business amounted to approximately
HK$4.6 million (year ended 31 December 2019: nil). Segment loss of
approximately HK$8.1 million was incurred during the current period
(year ended 31 December 2019: HK$11.0 million).

Property Development and Project Management
Business

The Group acquired a company on 2 March 2020 which is principally
engaged in property development in the PRC and holds land use rights
of a land parcel at Haiyong Road, Haiyong Country, Haimen City,
Jiangsu Province, with a total site area of 47,519 square meters and
for commercial use. The Group is planning to develop properties for
sale on such land parcel. For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021,
the properties were still under the development process and hence no
turnover of the Group's property development business was generated.
The costs incurred in the course of properties development have been
capitalised and the capitalisation will go on until the properties are
developed and sold. As at 31 March 2021, the amount of properties
under development for sale was approximately HK$86.3 million. The
Group has commenced to provide project management services in the
PRC since July 2020. For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the
turnover of the Group’s project management business amounted to
approximately HK$45.5 million. Segment loss of approximately HK$9.3
million was incurred in this segment.
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Geothermal Energy Business

The Group acquired a group of companies, which are principally
engaged in developing and utilising geothermal energy in provision of
heating and cooling supply to various buildings located in residential
areas in the PRC, on 24 March 2020. Currently, the major places of
business activities are in Xi‘an, Shaanxi Province and Henan Province of
the PRC. For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the turnover
of the Group's geothermal energy business amounted to approximately
HK$18.0 million and the gross profit was approximately HK$0.8 million.
Corresponding segment loss of approximately HK$8.3 million, including
the impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$10.6 million due
to lower recoverable amount than carrying amount in a non-wholly
owned subsidiary, was incurred in this segment.

Building Construction Contracting Business

The Group acquired a company, which is principally engaged in building
construction contracting on project basis in the PRC, on 25 May
2020. For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the turnover of
the Group’s building construction contracting business amounted to
approximately HK$438.2 million and the gross profit of approximately
HK$44.8 million was made. Corresponding profit of approximately
HK$31.6 million was achieved in this segment.

Centralised Heating Business

The Group started the centralised heating business after becoming the
reorganisation investor of a company, which is principally engaged in
the business of providing the heat and steam supply services in the
licensed area of Yuncheng, Shanxi through centralised pipe networks,
on 8 September 2020. The Group was further granted an exclusive
license for the provision of centralised heating service in Yuncheng City
for 30 years from 1 January 2021. For the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021, the turnover of the Group's centralised heating business
amounted to approximately HK$29.2 million and the gross loss of
approximately HK$0.5 million was incurred. The Group recorded a loss
of approximately HK$4.0 million in this segment.
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OUTLOOK

In past year, the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
together with subsequent lockdown measures had a profound impact
on the global economy. As a result of anti-epidemic and epidemic
prevention actions, the COVID-19 pandemic has been comparatively
under control in the mainland China and Hong Kong, both of which
are principal business places of the Group. With strong rebound of
the economy of the mainland China and improved market sentiment
in Hong Kong, the negative impact on the Group's business has been
mitigated.

In order to increase the profitability of the Group and enhance its
sustainability, the Group has continuously improved its real estate-
related business layout while developing its existing main businesses.
The Group is reviewing and considering its existing resources, including
the experience, expertise and social network of the directors and
management of the Company, with the aim of further expanding
the current principal businesses and exploring possible inter-segment
development and collaboration. Leveraging the synergy effect and solid
client base, the Group has commenced property project management
business in the second half of 2020 and demonstrated the ability to
provide one-stop solution for property development project as well as to
suit with various customer needs.

For the finance leasing business, money lending business, securities
and futures brokerage business and securities investment business
(collectively, the “Financial Businesses”), the Group has adopted a
more conservative approach under the highly competitive business
environment and volatile financial market. The management of the
Group decided not to inject significant funds in the Financial Businesses
in order to limit the risk exposure at current stage. However, on the
other hand, the Group is seeking for inter-segment collaboration
between its Financial Businesses and other real estate-related
businesses, by means of provision of fund raising and management
service for property developers in the PRC.

Looking forward, the Group will endeavour to strengthen its client base
and diversify its products and services mix among different business
segments. The Group firmly believes that challenges and opportunities
coexist in the current situation. The Group will adopt prudent measures
to control operating risks and continue to expand its businesses by
exploring new opportunities.
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LIQUIDITY AND CASHFLOW RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2021, the equity and net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,149.7 million (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$1,117.5 million) and HK$483.4 million (31 December
2019: approximately HK637.4 million) respectively. On the same date,
the Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$50.3
million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$97.5 million) and the
current ratio was 1.53 (31 December 2019: 10.15). As at 31 March
2021, the Group had (i) secured trust loans of approximately HK$237.3
million bearing fixed interest rate at 12% per annum and to be repaid
in March 2022, (ii) secured bank loan of approximately HK$11.9 million
bearing fixed interest rate at 5.8% per annum and to be repaid in
January 2022, (iii) unsecured short-term loans from an independent
lender of approximately HK$20.2 million bearing fixed interest rate at
16.8% per annum and to be repaid in February and March 2022, (iv)
interest-free and unsecured loan from a joint venture of approximately
HK$0.1 million to be repaid in December 2021, (v) interest-free and
unsecured advance payment from an associate of approximately
HK$16.6 million to be repaid on demand and (vi) interest-free and
unsecured advance payment from subcontractor of approximately
HK$80.7 million to be repaid on demand (31 December 2019: no
interest bearing borrowing but an interest-free and unsecured advance
payment from an associate of approximately HK$6.5 million to be repaid
on demand).

As at 31 March 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately
0.18 (31 December 2019: approximately 0.01). The gearing ratio is
measured on the basis of the total amount of interest bearing and
interest free borrowings/advance payments over the amount of total
assets. As at 31 March 2021, the total amount of interest bearing and
interest free borrowings/advance payments and the amount of total
asset of the Group amounted to approximately HK$366.8 million (31
December 2019: only interest free borrowings of approximately HK$6.5
million) and HK$2,072.9 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$1,192.7 million) respectively.

The Group has sufficient and readily available financial resources for
both general working capital purposes and existing business operation.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 December 2019, none of the Group's
securities was pledged to brokers to secure the margin loan. As at 31
March 2021, the properties under development for sale in an amount
of approximately HK$86.3 million (including the land use rights of
approximately HK$27.2 million) was pledged to an independent lender
to secure the trust loans borrowed to the Group (31 December 2019:
nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 December 2019, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group incurred
approximately HK$41.7 million (year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$0.1 million) as capital expenditure mainly in respect
of plant and equipment situated in the PRC.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no material capital commitment
(31 December 2019: capital commitment of HK$70.0 million in relation
to the acquisition of subsidiaries).
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income of approximately HK$8.6 million
(31 December 2019: approximately HK$11.2 million) which represented
unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong. No financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in relation to equity securities was held as at 31
March 2021 while there was approximately HK$1.3 million held as at 31
December 2019 which represented listed securities held for trading in
Hong Kong as follow:

Number of shares held
(000)

% of shareholding
()

Realised gain
(HKS'000)

FiRIEE kAN BERkE

(T8 (%) (F2m)

For the fifteen

Asat Asat Asat Asat  months ended

313.201 31122019 313201 31122019 3132021

HECE-£

RoBZ-§  FIE-AE MIEI-F RIR-RE ZASt-R

Company Name/Stock Code A7%H/BHRS ZBzt-A fIA=t-B  =B=t-A fIAt-B  LEEA

BEEEwmROH

FRFEXRIRE

FZRA=Z+—H AEEFHE
BATEFAEMZEREZEREED
8,600,000 T (ZE—HE+_B=+—
H :#911,200,000587T) » HAREBZIE
FHREAEBEE RS- —F=ZHF=+—
HriE\FE Rl ABSERANEZEATE
FABGEZEREE ER_E—NE
+ZB=+—H#FHE#%1,300,000/8> H
AREBRFFEEZ LHHENT

A—F —
N —= —

Total
investment

Fair value % of Net Assets Dividend received cost
(HKS'000) (HKS000) (%) (HKS'000) (HKS000) (HKS'000)
ei] HEEREZEM Bk SRERE
(F#7) (F2r) (%) (F#7) (F&n) (F#m)
for the fifteen For the
Asat hsat Asat Asat months ended year ended Asat
313201 31122019 3132021 31122019 313201 31122019 3132021
BEZRC-F EECINE
iat Jul:3 R82-§  WCB-AE ZAS-A tIESH-B RCEC-§
ZB=t-A 12R ZB=t-B TIB=1-B 1388 %8 ZR=t-B

it REREER

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (907)("EOH') ]
(ERAZERER)

7800 2%

2326

1,281 0.2

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group recorded
(i) a realised gain of approximately HK$2.3 million from selling listed
securities, and (ii) fair value loss of approximately HK$2.6 million
on securities investments that are not held for trading in other
comprehensive income.

The Board acknowledges that the performance of the equities may be
affected by the degree of volatility in the stock market and susceptible
to other external factors that may affect their values. Accordingly, in
order to mitigate possible financial risks related to the equities, the
Board will continue to closely monitor the performance of its investment
portfolio (if any) from time to time.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company did not hold any significant

investments in an investee company with a value of 5% or more of the
Company’s total assets.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

(i)

(ii)

On 18 December 2019, Esteem Sun Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into share transfer agreement
with independent third parties to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Total Fame Holdings Limited at a consideration
of HK$70 million. Total Fame Holdings Limited, through one
of its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the business of
projects construction contracting on project basis in the PRC.
The acquisition was completed on 25 May 2020 and Total Fame
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries have become the subsidiaries
of the Company since then. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 18 December 2019, 23 January
2020, 24 February 2020, 2 March 2020, 27 March 2020, 15 April
2020, 25 May 2020 respectively and a circular dated 31 March
2020.

On 14 January 2020, Shenzhen Guohua Construction Industrial
Co., Ltd.* (RYIBEIZEEZZEEBEFRAF)("Shenzhen Guohua”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Ningbo Sixing
Information Technology Co., Ltd.* (BKBITEEREAERA
7)) (“Ningbo Sixing”), an independent third party, entered into
the equity transfer agreement pursuant to which Shenzhen
Guohua conditionally agreed to acquire, and Ningbo Sixing
conditionally agreed to sell, 100% equity interest in Jiangsu Meili
Kongjian Construction Design Development Co., Ltd.* L&
BTrERERSAEEXZRBMRAA)("iangsu Meili Kongjian”)
at an aggregate consideration of RMB41 million. Jiangsu Meili
Kongjian is principally engaged in property development in the
PRC and holds land use rights of a land parcel. The acquisition
was completed on 2 March 2020 and Jiangsu Meili Kongjian has
become the subsidiary of the Company since then. Further details
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 14 January
2020.
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On 18 February 2020, Guohua Jiaye (Beijing) Enterprises
Management Co., Ltd.* (BZEFEE (IbR) CXEEBRAF)
("Guohua Jiaye"”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Qingdao Maojie Enterprise Management Partnership (LLP)* (&
EXRTEXEEABEE (BRE%)) and Ms. Li Jing* (FFH)
(collectively as the “Independent Third Parties Vendors”), among
others, entered into the equity transfer agreement pursuant to
which Guohua Jiaye conditionally agreed to acquire, and the
Independent Third Parties Vendors conditionally agreed to sell, the
entire equity interest in Beijing Yuehai Enterprise Management
Co., Ltd.* JEREBEXEEABRAE) ("Beijing Yuehai”), at
a consideration of RMB110 million. Beijing Yuehai, through its
subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the developing and utilising
geothermal energy in provision of heating and cooling supply
to various buildings located in residential areas in the PRC.
The acquisition was completed on 24 March 2020 and Beijing
Yuehai and its subsidiaries have become the subsidiaries of the
Company since then. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 18 February 2020 and 24 March 2020.

In June 2020, Baoshihua Geothermal Energy Development Co.,
Ltd.* (EGTEMEAFERZE AR AT ("Baoshihua Geothermal
Energy”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the equity transfer agreement with an independent third party
to dispose 60% equity interest in Baoshihua Huabei Geothermal
Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (EAIEEILM AR EARAE)
("Baoshihua Huabei”) at a consideration of approximately RMB16
million. The disposal was completed on 18 June 2020 and the
Group ceased to hold any interest in Baoshihua Huabei and its
subsidiary since then.

On 8 September 2020, Huaihua Qinneng Technology Development
Co., Ltd* (B1EENRERIEBIEE AR AE)) ("Huaihua Qinneng”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Yuncheng City
Wandefu Hot Power Co., Ltd.* (B EEEANERAD)
("Yuncheng City Wandefu”) entered into the reorganisation
agreement pursuant to which, among other things, Yuncheng
City Wandefu agreed that Huaihua Qinneng would act as the
reorganisation investor to acquire the entire equity in Yuncheng
City Wandefu at a consideration of RMB110 million. Yuncheng
City Wandefu is principally engaged in the business of using coal-
fired boilers to provide centralised heating, including industrial
steam, to areas exclusively licensed by the Yuncheng Management
Committee through centralised pipe networks. The acquisition was
completed on 2 November 2020 and Yuncheng City Wandefu and
its subsidiary have become the subsidiaries of the Company since
then. Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 8 September 2020 and 3 November 2020 respectively.
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(vi) On 29 September 2020, Guohua Jiaye entered into the equity
transfer and capital injection cooperation agreement with an
independent third party pursuant to which Guohua Jiaye agreed
to acquire 10% equity interest of Tiandi Youdamei (Beijing)
Cultural Tourism Company Limited* (R#iEAE (ER) XA
BRAE)) (“Tiandi Youdamei”) from the independent third party
at a consideration of RMB7 million. Guohua Jiaye also agreed to
inject RMB14 million to subscribe 15% equity interest of Tiandi
Youdamei at the same time. Upon the transactions are completed,
Guohua Jiaye would hold 25% equity interest in Tiandi Youdamei.
Tiandi Youdamei, through its subsidiaries and associates, is
principally engaged in the provision of boutique hotel management
services in the PRC under the brand name “[ZJ&". The transactions
were completed on 30 October 2020 and Tiandi Youdamei
together with its subsidiaries and associates have become the
associates of the Company since then.

(vii) On 19 November 2020, Huaihua Qinneng entered into the
agreement with Haixia Energy Industrial Fund Management
(Xiamen) Co., Ltd.* (BIEEREXESEE (BEF) BRAE)
("Haixia Fund”), a non-controlling shareholder of Baoshihua
Geothermal Energy, to dispose 20% equity interest in Tangshan
Jidong Geothermal Energy Development Co., Ltd* (FBLIEE
HEBERI S A FR/A B)) (“Tangshan Jidong”) held by Baoshihua
Geothermal Energy at a consideration of RMB70 million. The
disposal was completed on 19 November 2020 and Tangshan
Jidong ceased to be an associate of the Group since then. Further
detail is set out in the Company’s announcement dated 19
November 2020.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or
disposal (including the acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies) for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

The Company did not conduct any fund raising activities in relation to
issue of equity securities during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. During
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, there was no significant
fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars whereas Renminbi had an upward adjustment, resulting in an
exchange gain of approximately HK$33.2 million recognised as other
comprehensive income of the Group. The Group will take a prudent
approach against any impact arising from the fluctuation in exchange
rates but currently is not engaged in any derivative activities and not
committed to any financial instruments to hedge its balance sheet
exposure.

EMPLOYEE AND HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 402 staff (31 December 2019:
139 staff). The total staff cost incurred for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2021 was approximately HK$111.3 million (year ended 31
December 2019: approximately HK$51.6 million). The remuneration
of employees was determined with reference to the qualification and
experience of individual staff member, market circumstances and the
Group's performance. In accordance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), the staff of the Company's accounting and financial
reporting function have adequate training programmes and budget.

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 22 May 2012 (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant options to directors
(including non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), employees of the Company and any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, no options were granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 (year ended 31 December 2019:
Nil).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
26 August 2021 to Wednesday, 1 September 2021 (both days inclusive),
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
to be shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 1 September 2021, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
25 August 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established the audit committee of the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee currently comprises Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and
Mr. Liu Tonghui, the three independent non-executive directors of the
Company. A summary of duties and works of the Audit Committee is set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control
and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the financial statements of the Group for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2021 in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor,
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Company has
fully complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
with deviation from the code provisions A.6.7 and C.2.5. Details of the
Company’s corporate governance are set out in the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining the
Group's risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and for reviewing the effectiveness of such on
an annual basis under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to attain and maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholders’ value and safeguard shareholders’
interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles emphasize
a quality Board, effective internal control and accountability to
shareholders.

The Board believes that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting shareholder value
and investor confidence.

The CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the
principles of good corporate governance and two levels of corporate
governance practices:

(@) code provisions which listed issuers are expected to comply with or
to give considered reasons for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed issuers
are encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles, code provisions and certain recommended best practices as
set out in the CG Code.

Throughout the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Company
has complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save
for the deviations from the code provisions A.6.7 and C.2.5 which are
explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and to
review its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure
they comply with the CG Code and align with the latest developments
of the Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors should
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.
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The Board sets policy direction and approves strategies/operational plans
to ensure effective functioning and growth of the Company, in the
interests of all shareholders.

Every director shall ensure that he/she carries out his/her duty in
good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including: the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board's procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the executive directors and the senior
management to discharge its responsibility.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and to
the exercising of independent judgment.

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises five
executive directors and three independent non-executive directors. Save
as disclosed in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report, members of the Board do
not have any relationship with any other director.
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The list of all directors and their biographies are set out under the
section of “Corporate Information” and “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on page 2 and page 53 respectively
and in all corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive
directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the period, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director for his independence pursuant to
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 and
other requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience and skills,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functions. Independent non-executive directors are invited to
serve on the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the
Company.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors. Details of the Nomination Committee and
its works performed during the period are set out in the “Board
Committees” section below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment.
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In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms.
Wang Yinggian, Mr. Chen Wei, Mr. Fan Jie and Mr. Ru Xiangan shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Pursuant to requirement in the code provision A.6.1, each newly
appointed director should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment. Subsequently he or she should receive any
briefing and professional development necessary to ensure that he or
she has a proper understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and that he or she is fully aware of his or her responsibilities
and obligations under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

The Board recognises the importance of directors’ training and all
directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021, all directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending training courses
and/or reading reference materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations:
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Attending expert
briefings/seminars/

conferences
relevant to the
Reading regulatory business or
updates director’s duties
HERMERL
EEREN
REBEERTE BERERE
ZERMER mee g%
Executive Directors BITES

Ms. Wang Yinggian (Chairman) FHETLT (EFE) v v

Mr. Qin lie (Chief Executive Officer) NS ((TEAEZ)

(appointed on 22 January 2020) (R _E-_FF—H _+_H

BZF) v v
Mr. Liu Wei et v %
Mr. Chen Wei PR &S v v
Mr. Fan Jie RSt 4 v
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Attending expert
briefings/seminars/

conferences
relevant to the
Reading regulatory business or
updates director’s duties
HEAMEES
EEHEN
REEERE EXRERE
ZRIEH metg g%
Independent Non-Executive Directors B IEHITES
Mr. Ru Xiangan WMLt v v
Mr. Liu Haiping RBREE 4 v
Mr. Liu Tonghui B rE s v v
MEETINGS g%
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance ERMEHESEENFERCR

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, regular Board WREE_ZE_—F=B=+—HL+HE
meetings were held for reviewing and approving the financial and B EERBERITAITEE  WiGst kit E
operating performance, and considering and approving the overall BFHKREERIF > TEERLEERAAT 2
strategies and policies of the Company. Most important resolutions HERBEEKEK - EEZRTELETZE
agreed in Board meetings were made by all directors including executive BB RZEZVEHLEESE (BERTE
and independent non-executive directors. BIIEHITES) fEHo
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The attendance records of each director at the meetings of the
shareholders, the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee
(for corporate governance functions) during the period are set out
below:

R SEFZRNREAE - EF/ BtE
BEE -HFMEET RLEETRITEE
g EXELRREMR §F2BALRE
BT

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

B/ AERLEZES
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Executive
Shareholders Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors BEENL fR® 2R  BiZBe HMZE8g¢ R4%E8E HEEE
(Note)
(Mit3)
Executive Directors RTES
Ms. Wang Yinggian (Chairman) IBTRT(ZR) 33 9/9  Not Applicable ~ Not Applicable 171 Not Applicable
TEH TEA TER
Mr. Qin Jie (Chief Executive Officer) R (7THAE%) 03 6/8 Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 171
(anpointed on 22 January 2020) (H-E_FE TEA NEA TER
—AZ+-HEZH)
Mr. Liu Wei ey 03 2/9  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 0/1
TEH TEA TER
Mr. Chen Wei BELE 33 9/9  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 171
TEH TEA TER
Mr. Fan Jie 37 Pk 23 9/9  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable 171
TEH TEA TER
Independent Non-Executive Bif#TES
Directors
Mr. Ru Xiangan nEERE 03 6/9 33 111 111" Not Applicable
TER
Mr. Liu Haiping ABREE 03 5/9 23 171 171 Not Applicable
TER
Mr. Liu Tonghui ApEEE 03 8/9 33 111 111" Not Applicable
TER
Note: Among meetings of the Executive Committee, one meeting was held for the fisE: MRATEZEGzEZT HP—RSEDHE

purpose of performing the corporate governance duties and the attendances of
the members of the Executive Committee at this meeting is disclosed under the
CG Code

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Due to influence of COVID-19 pandemic, three
independent non-executive directors namely, Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu
Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui, were unable to attend the Company’s
special or annual general meetings held on 17 April 2020, 5 June 2020
and 31 August 2020 respectively.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Chairman and the Company Secretary attend almost all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable period of
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction which
involves a material conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a director will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting and independent non-executive directors who,
and whose associates, have no material interest in the transaction are
present at the Board meeting.

The Company's Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting (nor be counted in the quorum) at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The role of the chairman was performed by Ms. Wang Yinggian, who
provided leadership for the Board and was responsible for chairing
meetings, managing the operations of the Board and ensuring that all
major and appropriate issues were discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. She was also responsible for the strategic
management of the Group and for formulating the Group’s overall
corporate direction and focus.

The role of chief executive officer was performed by Mr. Liu Wei up
to 21 January 2020, who was responsible for the overall management
and operations of the Group. He was also responsible for running
the businesses of the Group and implementing the Group’s strategic
plans and business goals. Since 22 January 2020, Mr. Qin Jie has been
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company and delegated
to undertake the same responsibilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Company has four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Executive Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. Save for the
Executive Committee, the terms of reference of the other Board
committees are made available to shareholders on the websites of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (http:/
www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (http://www.cbgroup.com.hk)
respectively.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Ru Xiangan.

Among the committee members, one of them possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is
a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

e  to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff of the Company’'s
accounting and financial reporting function, internal auditor (if
any) or external auditors before submission to the Board;

e to review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms
of engagement, their independence and objectivity, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; and

e to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the period to review
the half-yearly, twelve months and annual financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, report on the Company’s
internal control and risk management review and processes and the re-
appointment of the external auditors.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out under the
section “Meetings” in this report.

The Company's annual results for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director, namely
Ms. Wang Yinggian and all three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr. Liu Tonghui. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Ms. Wang Yinggian.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

e to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

o to develop and formulate relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors and senior management;

o to identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors and
senior management;

o to make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
reappointment of and succession planning for directors and senior
management; and

e to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorships and senior management by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection
process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting during the period to review
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and made
recommendations to the Board in accordance with the Nomination
Committee’s written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
considers that board appointments are based on merit and candidates
are considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
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The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
shall discuss and where necessary, agree on the measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board and make recommendation to
the Board. The Board may adopt and/or amend from time to time (as
applicable) such diversity perspectives and/or measurable objectives
that are appropriate to the Company’s business and Board succession
planning, as applicable.

The Company has also adopted a director nomination policy setting out
the procedures and criteria to be used by the Company in relation to
the selection, appointment and re-appointment of directors to ensure
that the Board maintains an appropriate mix and balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives to the requirements
of the Company's business.

The Nomination Committee shall make reference to the director
nomination policy and the board diversity policy to nominate suitably
qualified candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as directors at general
meetings or appoint as directors to fill casual vacancies or as an addition
to the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Ru Xiangan, Mr. Liu Haiping and Mr.
Liu Tonghui. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Ru
Xiangan.

The Company has adopted the model set out in the code provision
B.1.2(c) of the CG Code as its Remuneration Committee model. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the individual
performance and the operating results of the Company as well as the
market conditions and practice.
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The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination or making
recommendation of the annual remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management and other related matters
when needs arise. The Human Resources Division is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Board about these recommendations on remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the period to
review the remuneration packages of the directors and the senior
management and made recommendation to the Board in accordance
with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee comprises four executive directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Liu Wei, Mr. Chen Wei, Mr. Fan Jie and Mr. Qin
Jie. The Chairman of the Executive Committee is Mr. Liu Wei.

The Executive Committee has been conferred upon with the general
powers of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for
the Board) to manage and oversee the operations of the Group and
has been assigned with the responsibilities to perform the corporate
governance duties including but not limited to:

o to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management of the
Company;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the directors and
employees;

o to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

o to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the

constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

During the period, the policies of the corporate governance of the
Company were reviewed by the Executive Committee.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2021 and year ended 31 December 2019 as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
note 14(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than directors) by band
for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 is as follows:
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HE_£_—F=-HB=+—HI+AMEA
EBE_E—NE+B=+—HIE
ENEEHMEE > BRE ETHRIK R
TAREREE BRABENEN GRSV HR
KMIzE14(@a) 0

RIBEETHZFREXEB. 1.5 HE
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Number of
individuals
Remuneration band B PR AE
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0007& 7t 22,000,000 7T 1

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made on all directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view and that relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The management of the Company provides such explanation and
information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Company
which were put to the Board for approval.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 68.

An analysis of the remuneration of the Company’s auditors, ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited, and its affiliate, for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021 is set out as follows:

MBS 1% B
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Audit services
Interim review services
Other ad-hoc assignments

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems. The systems and
internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group. Business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with their respective units. The results of evaluation will
be reported to management through regular internal meetings. Each
year, management prepares the risk assessment report listing the risks
identified and management’s assessment on the impact to the Group.
The Board discusses findings in the risk assessment report and evaluates
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system in
Board meeting. The Board also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems on a regular basis to
ensure that the systems in place are adequate.
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The key elements of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems include the following:

o the organisational structure is clearly defined with distinct lines of
authority and control responsibilities;

o a comprehensive financial accounting system has been established
to provide for performance measurement indicators and to ensure
compliance with relevant rules;

o the senior management shall prepare annual plans on financial
reporting, operations and compliance aspects by reference to
potential significant risks;

o unauthorised expenditures and release of confidential information
are strictly prohibited;

o specific approval by executive director prior to commitment is
required for all material matters; and

o the management shall review and evaluate the control process and
monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances
and identified risks.

The Group handles and disseminates inside information with due care.
Staff is required to comply with the confidentiality terms inside the
staff manual. Only personnel at appropriate level can get reach of price
sensitive and inside information. The Company regularly reminds the
directors and employees about compliance with all policies adopted by
the Company regarding inside information including the Model Code
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules in relation to dealings in
securities of the Company.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and established
to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal,
relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements.

Under the code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Group should have
an internal audit function. However, due to the size of the Group and
for cost effectiveness consideration, the Group currently does not have
an internal audit function. Instead, the Audit Committee is responsible
for a review on the internal control system annually. The review covers
major financial, operational controls in rotation basis and also the risk
management functions. No significant deficiency was identified under
current period’s review and the systems were operating effectively and
adequately. The Group continues to review the need for an internal
audit function annually.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) is in place
setting out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to
apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its net
profits as dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall take into account of, including but not limited to, the
following factors when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

o the Company'’s actual and expected financial performance;
o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

o the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's contracting parties;

o the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Company; and

e any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The Dividend Policy shall be reviewed when necessary, and can be
revised by the Board from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of the Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ho Yu. His
biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section on page 53. Mr. Ho reports to the Chairman of
the Board from time to time. All directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures,
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. During the
period, Mr. Ho undertook not less than 15 hours of professional training
to update his skills and knowledge.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables shareholders and investors to make
a properly informed investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbgroup.com.hk, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Company’s Bye-laws affecting its operations and
reporting practices.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Under the Company's Bye-laws, the Board, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid-
up capital of the Company by sending a written notice to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, shall convene a special general meeting to address specific
issues of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of
written notice. The same requirement and procedure also applies to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can be
sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered shareholders
of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed
with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be
present at the meeting should fill out the form and return the same to
the share registrar and transfer office of the Company, so as to appoint
a representative, another shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxy.
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The Group is pleased to present its Environment, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021
to demonstrate its commitment to sustainable development in aspects
of environment, social and governance (the "ESG"). This ESG report is
prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules, which covers two subject areas, Environmental and
Social. Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in the annual
report of the Company for details of corporate governance of the
Group.

The Group has complied with the “Comply or Explain” provisions set
out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in: (i) trading of goods; (ii) the
finance leasing business; (iii) the money lending business; (iv) the
securities and futures brokerage business; (v) international air and sea
freight forwarding and the provision of logistics services; (vi) trading
of securities; (vii) property investment; (viii) the property brokerage
services; (ix) the building architecture and interior design business; (x)
the property development and project management business; (xi) the
geothermal energy business; (xii) the building construction contracting;
and (xiii) centralised heating business, in Hong Kong, the PRC and other
jurisdictions. The social data in this ESG report covers the entire group,
and the environmental data covers the business operations of the Group
in Henan, Shaanxi, Hebei, Shanxi and Hong Kong.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group completed
a number of acquisitions to expand its business, including (i) the
acquisition of a group of companies, which are principally engaged
in developing and utilising geothermal energy in provision of heating
and cooling supply to various buildings located in residential areas in
the PRC, on 24 March 2020; (ii) the acquisition of a company, which is
principally engaged in building construction contracting on project basis
in the PRC, on 25 May 2020; and (iii) the commencement of centralised
heating business after becoming the reorganisation investor of a
company, which is principally engaged in the business of providing the
heat and steam supply services in the licensed area of Yuncheng, Shanxi
through centralised pipe networks, on 8 September 2020.

The development of geothermal heating is in line with national
policies and has the characteristics of energy saving, low carbon
and environmental protection. These characteristics determine that
geothermal heating can be used to replace coal and other fossil fuels on
a large scale and is a realistic choice for optimizing the energy structure.
Therefore, speeding up the development of non-coal energy, striving to
reduce the proportion of fossil fuels used and developing geothermal
energy applications are important goals and development directions in
the “13th Five-Year Plan on Energy Development”({fER3 B+ =H
#221)) for China.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group stays in close contact with it stakeholders, including
investors, governments and regulatory bodies, employees, customers,
suppliers, society and the public. Through constructive communications,
it welcomes different opinions from stakeholders and strikes a balance
among their interests, so as to determine the long-term development
direction for its business. As for the main expectations and appeals of
stakeholders, the Group has established corresponding mechanisms and
communication channels as follows:

IRIE - ERERKRS

FhESA

AEEEFNEQEREE BNFHREEE
WE- BT 2R HEF HERARR
REBHRB TEBARRKMUENER B
BRFNENTEAERIEFHREALZ
B m tMmEEXBHNREERS M
MERNETBNREZRSF K ~EE
TFEELEEHES RBRRENT !

Stakeholders Expectations/and appeals Communication and feedback
Fin& HAEE E 3R BB e
Investors ° Financial results ° To improve profitability
BES MR EERAEED
° Corporate transparency ° Regular information disclosure
EFEPE HEEEKE
° Sound risk control e To optimize risk management and
ST E T internal control

Governments and regulatory e Compliance with laws

bodies and regulations
EAT AR B AR BETAA
e  Tax payment in accordance
with laws
HOEMIR
Employees e  (Career development platform
BT BWEERTS
e Salary and benefits
FiER
e  Safe working environment
Z2TRIRIR
Customers ° Customer information security
s BERERZ:E
e Customer rights and interests
protection
B R IRE
e  Good service guarantee
RIF AR IR IE
Suppliers ° Integrity cooperation
HIE®E MIEETE
° Business ethics and credibility
HEBEEAEFE
Society and the public ° Environmental protection
HERAR HBEIRR

° Employment opportunities

PERE
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BERREE RN BEE

° Compliance operation
BREE

e Tax payment in full and on time

R BB

° Promotion mechanism
=ars 1l

o Competitive salary and employee
benefits

B35 ZENREMNE TER

e To provide trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness
RHETRMEEI MBETLZR2HE

=¥

° Customer privacy protection
RIEE R AR

e Compliance marketing
BiEHE

e To provide reliable energy products
and services

R P S BE TR K AR 75

e To build a responsible supply chain
TEaEENHERE

e To perform the contract according
with laws

RERITER

° To put into use environmental
protection and energy saving
equipment
RIREIAERER AR

e  To provide employment opportunities
IR B2 R (U
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

According to the ESG Reporting Guide, the Group collects and identifies
the issues of concern of major stakeholders through questionnaire
survey and interview, analyzes and sorts the issues to determine the
Company’s important issues in ESG for relevant disclosure. The results
of the materiality assessment will be used to guide the Group in
formulating future environmental,
objectives, in a bid to creating sustainable value for stakeholders.

EEZ A

BRBFNERIENFEER

Following our communication with various stakeholders, the Company ASRELAZIFMHENEE B HME
has identified the following issues as well as their respective priorities: BAREEUHFRTE
High
= 10
" 9
@
o 8
O 3H
o
E B 7 & 19_12
s i 13 18 11
AN
2 i 2122
;Eg 5 ®16 °
Sm
T 4 2003
g&
s 3
= o 2 5
>
) 1049
< 1 17-0-7
o 1568
i 0
%"V 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
) Relevance/Materiality to Business th
HEBWERREE EE2% =
Environmental issues Social issues Governance issues
RIBERE HERE EiAEE
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 9. Local community engagement 17. Economic value generated
= R A HE =k e EENKEEE
2. Energy consumption 10. Community investment 18. Corporate governance
AEJRH FE HERSE tEER
3. Water consumption 11. Occupational health and safety 19. Anti-corruption
FEKE BERERZR R&5
4.  Waste 12. Supply chain labour standards 20. Supply chain management
BEEY) HrEHESS T2ER| fHrE s g
5.  Environmental impact 13. Training and development 21. Customer satisfaction
caused by the business BilRERE EREmERE
EBEMMIRIELE
6. Green building certification 14. Employee benefits 22. Customer privacy
HEEENE fRERF ERME
7.  Customer engagement in 15. Inclusive and equal opportunity
environmental issues HE TSRS

RIFEENE RS2 H
8. Use of chemicals

T@ﬂ?ﬂ]q—um

16. Attracting and retaining talents
USGIV=2 2N
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ENVIRONMENT

To adhere to its commitment to sustainable development and to comply
with the requirements under relevant laws and regulations related to
environmental protection, the Group has been dedicated to reducing
the impact of its operating activities on the environment.

Emissions

The development and utilization of geothermal energy of the Group
may have some environmental impacts, including but not limited to:
(i) thermal pollution; (ii) air pollution; (iii) water pollution; and (iv)
soil pollution. The Group has conducted an environmental impact
assessment with reference to the requirements of the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the key environmental
performance indicators of the Group’s emissions are set out as follows:

IRIE - ERERKRS

IRIR
AEERFRB A FERERORGEURE

STIRIBREEBEZREZRORE LB
RS EESRIRENTE -

HER )

AEERMAZF AMARIRIEAIES — &
FEBIEBARBRN (OASE (INERS
e (i)AGTE ; R(iv)LIEBT R KEBES
B(hEARANBERBEREL)NEKE
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For the fifteen
months ended

Environmental indictors Unit 31 March 2021
#ZE2021%F

RIBIERE B 38318 LL15E A

Air emissions

EE mBERK

Emissions of Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 186.19

KA1 (NOx) BERX T

Emissions of Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.36

&%) (SOx) B T

Emissions of Particulate matter (PM) kg 1.39

R (PM) BERK T

Greenhouse gas emissions

BERBEHEK

Direct emissions (scope 1) kg COze 64,604

BiEEER #E—) Tr_aikEE

Indirect emissions (scope 2) kg COze 2,690,919

BiH (#E ) Tr_aikEE

Other indirect emissions (scope 3) kg COze 62,902

Hihf g @E=) Tr_aikEE

Total greenhouse gas emissions (Note) kg COze 2,818,425

BERBHRAEE (H2) Tr_aikEE

Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions kg COze (per employee) 7,011

BEREIFNEE
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Note:

Greenhouse gas emissions (direct and indirect) and the removals can be categorized into
the following three separate scopes:

Greenhouse gas emissions that attribute to business owned or controlled
by the Group (primarily from the fuel consumption of vehicles) and the

scope 1:
greenhouse gas emissions removals from newly planted trees.

scope 2: Greenhouse gas emissions occurred in the production process resulting
from generation of electricity purchased by the Group from electric power
company.

scope 3: All other indirect greenhouse gas emissions generated outside the Group,
including (i) methane gas generated at landfill by disposal of paper waste;
and (ii) indirect emissions due to electricity used for processing drinking

water/sewage water by external institutions.

The Group adheres to the principle of “Three Simultaneously”, i.e. the
environmental governance design should be designed, constructed and
put into operation simultaneously with the main part of a project. The
Group's construction causes environmental impact during construction
and operation, and the main pollution generated and protection
measures taken include pollution and protection during construction
and after use.

In order to reduce the dust pollution at the construction sites, the
Group sprinkles water at regular time on the construction sites every
day to prevent dust generation, and increases the volume and frequency
of sprinkling water on windy days. Solid wastes produced during the
construction period are mainly domestic waste and waste residual soil
generated during construction, which will be collected in dustbins and
then sent to refuse disposal plants by sanitation workers for disposal.
And the waste residual soil will be cleaned up and transported in time.

The wastewater generated during the construction period is mainly
domestic sewage and wastewater generated from construction
activities. The construction wastewater mainly contains sediment
and suspended matter, which will be collected first and then treated
before discharged to the sewer pipe. The wastewater generated during
operation is mainly the heat pump room cleansing wastewater and
system leakage wastewater. The wastewater will be discharged from the
new pipe to regional existing storm water system.

42

M 5E -

BERBHR (BRRER REBBRITDRUT=E

BIgE :

BE—: AAEEMEERZEFNESR (ETBREE
R IR EHE FE) PR E A B R E RBE BE R
EE BB AH R ERARFF B0 ER

BEZ: AFEEARBHRRABENENEEEBE
PARELNEERBIK

BE= AAERIPREEENFEEMBZEAEE

PR EG)ERTEERRELNR
55 BB EBERIER K TS KEER
BAFERBBER

FEERFTZFARNRA BEIREE
ERsTREBEANEIRIRERERS H
Rt T hEFKREER cEENERY
BRRENTEDT D AWEMREER > 252k
B REESHBNEE MEEZSRED
RENEER THNERREE SRAD

e
& °©

ABEOEITISMNIEES R AEERE
ITHMBREREX BLEBZEEE  EX
BEMAEKERRE - THEPMESE
NEREEYMTEREENIRMME TR E
EWMEEL §RIIRMEWERTHIRE
BETAZXINDREESEE T REE
EREEL-

W THAI R s K EBE A LIRS KM L&
BEEEEN TR MISKEESRED
By ghRE REBETKEE-
EEHENE KA ETEARTEREBFREK
MESBRBEK - BKANREEEHER
B EERKRL



EFEEEZERBRAT 2020/215F%H

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

As the Group only generated insignificant amount of non-hazardous
waste in its business activities for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021, relevant data were not quantified. Non-hazardous waste mainly
includes domestic waste and waste residual soil generated during
construction, which will be sent to refuse disposal plants by sanitation
workers for disposal regularly. In addition, there were no relevant data
as no hazardous waste was generated in the Group’s operation. If any
hazardous waste is required to be disposed of, the Group will engage
professional companies to dispose of it.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance of any relevant laws or regulations
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including
the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China ({&f
EAREMEIRIZEFREL)) and the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({HZE A
EHMBEARSEYIAE)). In addition, no major fines or sanctions
relating to the non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
have been received for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.

Use of Resources

The Group recognises importance of environmental sustainability and
endeavours to minimize the impact of business on environment through
adopting numerous energy-saving and conservation initiatives. The
Group's policy is to ensure compliance with applicable environmental
laws and regulations and minimise its environmental footprint
through efficient use of resources and adoption of pro-environmental
management. The Group's eco-friendly measures at the office are as
follows:

e  staff is reminded to switch off lights and air-conditioning in the
meeting rooms and computers at workstations when not in use;

e whenever possible, documents are handled electronically other
than physical papers;

e staff is reminded to save water;

o staff is encouraged to reuse paper printed on one side and duplex
printing and copying. Data on printing and copying is regularly
reviewed to assess efficiency of paper usage;

o recycled office supplies are provided whenever possible; and

e conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings are arranged
where possible.
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In addition, a series of energy conservation and emission reduction
measures has been adopted for the Group's businesses of heating and
cooling supply by geothermal energy and centralised heating in order to
reduce the use of resources effectively.

To save electricity, the Group added transducers to electrical equipment
in the plants, which effectively adjusted the power of motors and enable
them to operate at variable speeds, so as to achieve the goal of energy
saving.

The Group introduced advanced environmental facilities to construct
dry coal sheds in the plants, which could avoid natural losses caused
by wind and rain and therefore reducing environmental pollution. Such
construction also effectively prevented coal clogging in boilers due to
wet coals caused by wind and rain, and eliminated the fluctuation of
environmental data due to the unstable bottom temperature of boilers.

The Group set up a slag cooling system in the plants to recover waste
heat, improve the thermal efficiency of boilers, and reduce energy
consumption. Slag coolers facilitated the temperature of heated slags to
decrease from 900 °C to below 100°C, i.e. approximately 2.5 GJ of heat
being recovered per hour based on the calculation of 12 tonnes of slags
being disposed per hour. Without considering heat loss, the amount of
heat collected from slags per hour approximate to that of about 150 kg
of coals, which indirectly improved the surrounding environment.

In order to enhance employees’ awareness of energy saving and
emission reduction and management’s sense of responsibility and
mission of fulfilling such goals, the Group organized trainings on every
Saturday to continuously teach them knowledge, good methods and
tips, make modest improvement to unreasonable practices, and keep
to make technological innovation, thereby making advancement in the
work of energy saving and emission reduction to improve efficiency.
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The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s use of
resources for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 are set out in
the table below:

IRIE - ERERKRS

HE2021F3831HIE1ER » ZEBE R
ERNRRIREEMIEEHINTE

For the fifteen
months ended

Environmental indicators Unit 31 March 2021

#F2021F
3A3181L

IRIBIEIR B 1518 A

Total direct and indirect energy consumption by type

BERISNEEREEEREES

Electricity purchased for consumption kWh 3,143,295

BEENHES TR

Gasoline consumption kWh 235,386

FURRES TR

Total energy consumption kWh 3,378,681

ERHREAR S TR

Energy consumption intensity kWh (per employee) 8,405

BERHERE TR (L ES)

Water consumption

FEKE

Total m3 32,858

Intensity m? (per employee) 82

BE UHK(ELES)

Energy sold to third parties

RHE=FHENGRER

Total heating (geothermal energy) kWh 39,540,033

BRR OEREE) 428 TR

Total steam tonnes 178,338

EARE i

As the Group completed certain acquisitions and expanded its
business scope to include businesses of heating and cooling supply by
geothermal energy and centralised heating during the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2021, it therefore consumed more direct and indirect
energy and water in aggregate as compared with that of 2019. The
Group will continue to invest more efforts to save energy and strive for
better environmental protection.
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Environmental and Natural Resources

Featured with energy conservation, low carbon, and environmental
protection, developing geothermal heating is in compliance with
national policies. Such features determine that geothermal heating can
be a realistic choice to replace fossil energy such as coal on a large scale
and optimize the energy structure.

As a clean renewable energy, geothermal energy has the following
advantages: (i) geothermal central heating can achieve regional
modularized central heating without laying a large area of centralized
heating network, and its heating cost is lower as compared with that of
fossil energy; (ii) geothermal resources are environmentally friendly and
clean and renewable, and do not produce waste gas or waste residue,
which is of great significance for the reduction of haze and smog and
suspended particles; and (iii) through the technology of geothermal
reinjection into the same reservoir bed, the heat-extracted tail water is
recharged into the same reservoir bed to achieve the renewable use of
geothermal resources.

While the National Development and Reform Commission, the National
Energy Administration and the Ministry of Land and Resources jointly
published the “Thirteen Five-year Plan on the Development and
Utilisation of Geothermal Energy” ((HZASERESEEFIAI+=F15RE))
on 23 January 2017. It proposes to “innovate the geothermal energy
development and utilization mode, actively develop the geothermal
energy market, and comprehensively promote the effective utilization
of geothermal energy in accordance with the general requirements
of advanced technology, environmental friendliness and economic
feasibility”, and mentions that “promote hydrothermal geothermal
heating based on the combination of centralized and decentralized
methods, and replace traditional heating with clean energy heating
under the guiding principle of taking heat but not water”. Those
advantages will be beneficial to the sustainable development of the
Group’s business.

The Group's projects for supplying heat are mainly applied in Henan,
Shanxi and Shaanxi, ect. In order to improve the environmental quality
of these regions, the Group has constructed geothermal energy heating
projects to control the use of fossil energy and reduce emissions of
carbon dioxide and suspended particles, so as to improve the regional
environmental quality. These constructions bring both higher economic
benefits and important social benefits.
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SOCIAL

The Group believes that employees are its greatest asset which is crucial
to its continuous development. The Group establishes and operates
prudent human resources policies and practices strictly in compliance
with laws and regulations in respective jurisdictions where the group
entities are carrying on business. The Group updates and improves these
policies and practices regularly by taking into consideration the health
and well-being of its employees. All employees are kept abreast of any
updated policies and practices through internal memoranda.

Employment

Employee breakdown by gender

IRIE - ERERKRS

=

FEBRD BINREENEE  HEE
BEREHEEZ - AEERREEEEE
EREREBRESRZEENEZRER
HEMRBREZENANDERBERKIED -
FEBEREMNTEEEBRRE
THETHREMBUAZSEERN -FTEE
THAIEBABHESE T BELEERMN
BAHIRERER-
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Employee breakdown by age

¥R & 53 2B BR AR HEEe B8 R RER 4
Above 50 Under 30
505 k£ 30T
Female 11% 12%
7
29%
Male 30-50
B 30-504%
71% 77%
HEEERE SN EREA ¥t & & 53 B 2 1% BB 4

Employee breakdown by employment type

Part time
3
21%

Full time The PRC
S A
79% 91%

The Group offers competitive remuneration and employee benefits
to attract talented staff and use a performance-based remuneration
system to motivate and reward them in line with their contributions to
growing its business. An employee’s remuneration is determined with
reference to performance and market benchmarks. Salary levels are not
differentiated by gender. Salaries and benefits are in accordance with
local minimum wages or above. All employees are treated fairly and
equally, and their rights and interests are also protected.
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The Group provides and maintains various statutory benefits for its staff,
such as mandatory provident fund, medical and work injury insurance,
sick leave, funeral leave and maternity leave, etc. It regularly reviews
packages and career advancement opportunities, particularly for key
positions, to ensure continuing market competitiveness.

The Group establishes objective basis of key qualities and requirements
for candidates in its hiring processing and assess the suitability of the
candidate to avoid risks of discrimination or bias. Job openings are
also offered to all qualified employees with good work records, so as
to promote career advancement among employees as well. Consistent
criteria are applied to assess both internal and external candidates
regardless of age, sex, race, national origin or physical disabilities to
ensure fair judgment and avoid any risk of favoritism or discrimination.

All work are reasonably assigned and should be performed voluntarily
by employees, and fair and reasonable working hours are arranged to
respective staff in accordance with various job needs. All employees
may resign upon reasonable notice and should not be dismissed for
unreasonable grounds.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with any
relevant laws and regulations relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare
for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021. The Group strictly
complies with local laws and regulations relating to employment, such
as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Employment Contracts. In addition,
no major fines or sanctions have been received due to non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Health and Safety

The Group's business includes the exploration and development of
geothermal resources and geothermal energy heating projects, which
mainly involve two types of hazards, one is the hazards or adverse
effects caused by natural factors, generally including earthquakes,
poor geology, high temperature in summer, low temperature in winter,
lightning strikes and other factors; and another one is the hazards
arising from the production process, including harmful dust and poison,
fire and explosion accidents, mechanical injuries and electrical injuries,
burn injuries due to high temperature, falling injuries and other factors.

To protect employees from the impacts of occupational hazards, the
Group requires that the project must be designed in accordance with
the "“Hygienic Standards for the Design of Industrial Enterprises (GBZ
1-2010)" ((ILELERSEHERE)(GBZ 1-2010)) and the “Code
for Design of Industrial Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (GB
50019-2015) "((TEREBR AT RBEHRTFRE) (GB 50019-
2015)) to prevent heatstroke. Measures such as heat insulation,
ventilation, and heating shall be adopted in accordance with the
requirements of the specification in the design to ensure a good
working environment for the operation, maintenance and production
personnel.

The Group has also carried out the design of overvoltage protection and
grounding of equipment in accordance with the requirements of the
“Technical Regulations for Design of Overvoltage Protection for Power
Equipment” ((E IR Hi1BE R (RER T HMTRE D) and the “Technical
Regulations for Grounding Design of Power Equipment”({E 112 &%
& s MTARAZ )), which include the design of anti-static for outdoor
equipments. Moreover, outdoor equipments such as pumps and other
equipments should be installed with lightning rods as direct lightning
overvoltage protection facilities.

In addition, the noise generated by the heat pump units and circulating
water pumps operating in the exploration and development of the
project may cause hearing damage to the staff. Therefore, the Group
provides effective personal protection measures for the staff working in
noisy operation positions and also requires them to wear ear plugs, ear
muffs, etc. while patrolling or operating, so as to minimize the exposure
to high intensity noise environment and reduce the risk to human body
as far as possible.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that has a significant impact on providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards. The Group strictly
complies with the local laws and regulations relating to health and
safety, such as the “Safety Production Law of the People’s Republic of
China” (REARHEMEZ 24 EL)) and the “Regulation on Work-
Related Injury Insurances of the People’s Republic of China” ({FRZE A
ERHEFE THEREREH D). In addition, there was no circumstance of
significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021.

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to attend appropriate courses to
enhance their competence for performance improvement and career
development. They are also encouraged to attend appropriate external
job-related courses or to acquire higher professional qualification to
enhance their competence and performance. All new employees are
briefed by the department heads to ensure the employees are aware and
familiarise themselves with the Group’s values and goals and to ensure
the employees understand their role in the Group.

Labour Standards

The Group from time to time reviews its employment practice and
the Group’s guidelines on staff recruitment to ensure that it is in full
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations on the prevention of
child labour and forced labour in the PRC and Hong Kong.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance of the laws and regulations
relating to the prevention of child labour or forced labour. The Group
strictly complys with the local laws and regulations related to labor
standards, such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour. In addition, there
was no circumstance of significant fines or sanctions as a result of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021.
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Supply Chain Management

While the Group has established good relationships with its suppliers,
the Group also offers equal opportunity to all potential business
partners. Selection criteria such as, quality and price of products,
supplier’s reputation, background and experience are key factors to
the Group’s procurement decisions. Furthermore, the Group expects its
suppliers to strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations.

Product Responsibility

The Group is responsible for its products and services and does not
engage in unfair business activities of any kind. Fraud, misleading
information, or any acts that destroy customer confidence or infringe
customer rights are strictly prohibited. The Group has also strictly
complied with relevant products and services related regulations.

While collecting, processing and using personal data of the Group's
customers in its financial service sector, appropriate measures are taken
to protect such data from unauthorised access and abuse. Personal data
is collected only for lawful and relevant purposes. Employment contracts
stipulate employees’ duty in safeguarding confidential or sensitive
information that they have had access to during their employment.

For customers’ complaints, the Group will conduct corresponding
follow-up procedures in accordance with internal procedures and
guidelines. Relevant investigation will be taken and settlement may
be made if appropriate, and improvement will be made whenever
necessary. The Group believes that complaints are a valuable opportunity
for it to obtain feedback from the community and customers, so as to
identify the need for service and policy improvement.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with the laws and regulations relating
to the health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to the products and methods of redemption. The Group strictly
abides by local laws and regulations related to product liability, such
as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Advertising Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China. In
addition, no significant fines or sanctions have been reported for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.
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Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to uphold high standards on anti-corruption.
Adequate guidelines are implemented to ensure that all employees
(including directors) adhere to high standards of business and
professional and ethical conduct. All employees are encouraged to raise
any related concerns to the senior management in a strictly confidential
manner. Any matters of genuine concern are to be thoroughly
investigated and actions will be taken accordingly.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Group is compliant
with all relevant anti-money laundering laws. The risk of establishing
relationships with individuals or organisations engaged in money
laundering or terrorism activities are minimised by its ‘know your
customer’ and assessment processes. The Group has robust internal
control procedures in place to provide reasonable assurance against
fraud.

The Group holds licence or approval required for the provision of money
lending services, finance leasing services and regulated activities under
SFO. The management supports a culture of integrity, zero tolerance
of bribery and ensures that business is conducted in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations.

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance of the laws and regulations relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. The Group strictly
abides by local laws and regulations related to anti-corruption, such as
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, the Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China. In addition, no significant fines or sanctions have
been reported for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.

Community Investment

The Group is fully aware of the importance of interacting with the wider
community in fulfilling corporate social responsibility.

The Group has been eager to take initiatives in making cash donations
to charitable organizations and supporting the local communities and
neighbors.

The Group would explore the possibility of finding suitable partners and
contributing to community and environmental protection programmes
which facilitate positive changes. The Group would also from time to
time encourage its staff to support community service activities.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Yingqian (Chairman), aged 57, has been appointed
as non-executive director of the Company since June 2018 and
redesignated as executive director since October 2019. She holds a
bachelor degree of Economics from Renmin University of China (-
B AR KZ) and a qualification of intermediate economist issued
by Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (FFEEARHEFMBEAEI. Ms.
Wang worked in Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Beijing
Municipal Branch (B T #R1TIEm M5 17) from 1985 to 2006 and
was the deputy general manager of its corporate banking department
from 2005 to 2006. She worked in Bank of Communications Beijing
Municipal Branch (3238 #8475 R ™43 1T) from 2006 to 2016 and served
as its vice president from 2010 to 2013 and was a director of Bank of
Communications Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. XSRS RIAEAESE
‘A8]) from 2010 to 2012. For the period from April 2017 to March
2019, Ms. Wang was an executive director of Noble Century Investment
Holdings Limited (currently known as Hong Kong Chaoshang Group
Limited), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2322). For the period from March 2016 to January 2020,
she was the supervisor of Fortunes United International Leasing Co.,
Lid. (Bl SEEREHRERRATR), a company established in the
PRC. She has also been appointed as (i) an independent director of
ABC Life Insurance Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Agricultural Bank of China
Limited (stock code: 1288) since March 2018, and (ii) an independent
director of Bloomage Biotechnology Corporation Limited since
March 2019, the shares of which has been listed on the Science and
Technology Innovation Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 688363) since November 2019. Ms. Wang has over 30 years
of experience in the commercial banking industry and have extensive
experience in project management and financing.
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Mr. Qin Jie (Chief Executive Officer), aged 54, has been appointed
as executive director with effect from 22 January 2020. He graduated
from Beijing University of Civil Engineering and Architecture* (3t
BB AZ) (formerly known as Beijing Institute of Architecture and
Civil Engineering* (JbIREZE T2 2MT)) with a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering in 1990 and obtained the qualification of senior engineer
in December 2000. Mr. Qin has nearly 30 years of experience in the
real estate construction management industry. He served as the chief
engineer of COSCO Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (FRizFEi#E
B APRAT) (stock code: 3377) (currently known as Sino-Ocean
Group Holding Limited G2/¥EBHZERBRAT)), which has been
listed on the Stock Exchange since 2007, from 2002 to 2004. He was
the project general manager, general manager of the intercity company
and regional deputy general manager of the eastern China in Neo-
China Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 563) (currently known as
Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited (=75 2£ 1, /5 B
BEEABRAT)), which has been listed on the Stock Exchange since
1993, from 2004 to 2009. He was also the general manager of the
Beijing company and the Shijiazhuang company in Dalian Wanda Group
Co., Ltd.x (REBEEERHBRAE) from 2009 to 2011, and the
president of Newbeacon Group Limited* (IEIEBBRAF) from
2014 to 2017. Mr. Qin is also the general manager and/or director of
several subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC.

Mr. Liu Wei, aged 49, has been appointed as executive director of the
Company since February 2016. He graduated from Renmin University
of China (FEIAERAZ) in 1996 with a degree in economics and
further completed postgraduate course in international economics
from Renmin University of China (FFEI AR AKZ) in 2000. From 1996
to 2014, Mr. Liu worked in various roles at Bank of Communications,
Beijing Branch (3X3@R1TIER M9 17) including as a manager at the
international trade department and the credit department, the head of
the investment banking division of Beijing Branch, and the manager of a
sub-branch. During Mr. Liu’s tenure at Bank of Communications, Mr. Liu
was mainly involved in international trade settlement, local and foreign
currencies loans, personal, corporate and inter-bank financing and
investment banking businesses, and was a committee member of Beijing
branch’s credit committee and innovation business committee. Since
June 2014, Mr. Liu has been with Zhongrong International Trust Co., Ltd*
(PREREFEAREAT) (“Zhongrong Trust”) as executive president
in charge of its trust investment department, with responsibilities
involving alternative asset management, merger and restructuring in
capital markets, sector-specific funds, asset securitizations, structuring
financing and other businesses. Mr. Liu is also the director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Chen Wei, aged 40, has been appointed as executive director of
the Company since February 2016. He graduated from Yunnan University
(EmAZ) with a degree in law in 2002 and further obtained a
master degree in law from Peking University QbR AE2) in 2012. Mr.
Chen obtained his PRC law qualification in 2001 and further obtained
his PRC Certified Public Accountants qualification in 2012. From
2002 to 2004, Mr. Chen worked as a legal counsel at a state-owned
enterprise located in Hangzhou. From 2004 to 2012, Mr. Chen worked
as a lawyer at a law firm located in Beijing and was mainly involved
in corporate legal affairs and litigation matters. Since 2012, Mr. Chen
has been with Zhongrong Trust as the vice general manager and then
promoted as the general manager of the trust investment department
and is mainly responsible for project investment and management.
Since May 2021, Mr. Chen has been appointed as the chairman, legal
representative, director of Hubei Wuchangyu Co., Ltd.* GHIEEH &
AR AERAE) which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600275). Mr. Chen is the sole director of Sungi Global
Investment Co., Ltd, which holds 20,000,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 1.97% of the total issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this report. Mr. Chen is also the director
of several subsidiaries of the Company and is designated to oversee the
Company’s risk control and compliance matters.

Mr. Fan lJie, aged 47, has been appointed as executive director of
the Company since January 2017. He holds a Master's Degree in
Business Administration in Tsinghua University School of Economics
and Management and a Bachelor’'s Degree in International Economic
in Renmin University of China. Mr. Fan has over 20 years of experience
in strategic marketing and project management. He has been with
Zhongrong Trust as the Managing Director of the Trust and Investment
Department since 2014. Mr. Fan was a corporate partner and the vice
president of the Strategic Marketing Division of Adfaith Management
Consulting Inc* JERIEBSHIR P ESTEAHAABRAE) from 2009 to
2014 and an assistant to the general manager for medical business in
an enterprise located in Jiangxi Province, the PRC, from 2003 to 2005.
In 2000 to 2002, he was appointed as the sales and distribution officer
of the Department of Medical System of an international conglomerate.
Prior to 2000, he worked as a marketing leader in the Nanchang
Office of a renowned food and beverage company for about three
years. Currently, Mr. Fan is the Managing Director of the Strategic
Development Department of the Group and the director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ru Xiangan, aged 52, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since October 2016. He holds an
Executive Master’'s degree of Business Administration in Tsinghua
University and a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting in North China
University of Technology. He is a certified public accountant in the PRC
and has over 20 years of experience in accounting and finance and over
10 years of experience in insurance. Since January 2021, Mr. Ru has
been appointed as the vice president and person in charge of finance
of Guangdong TusCity Development Investment Group Limited* (&
RECBREERKREEEABRAB) and as an independent director
of Hubei Wuchangyu Co., Ltd.* GHIERERRKRMBBRAT) which is
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600275). From 2016
to 2020, Mr. Ru was the chairman and general manager of Chang An
Insurance Brokerage Limited* (RZRRIHEEB R AT . He was serving
as the head of the audit department in Chang An Property and Liability
Insurance Limited* (REZEERBEABRAE) ("Chang An”) from 2014
to 2017, prior to which he was appointed as the general manager of
the Zhejiang branch from 2013 to 2014 and the general manager of
the accounting department and the financial chief from 2007 to 2013.
Before joining Chang An, he served as the general manager assistant
in Beijing Zhongjing Surety Company* bR RREBEEFRAE), the
chief financial officer in Heng Tong Group* (B85 ), the deputy
chief financial officer in Beijing Beichen Innovation and Technology City
Limited* Jt RIGRAIF S RIEHA S, the financial manager in San
Jiu Auto Group* (ZLVAEBZEERAT), and the deputy financial
chief in Beijing Building Materials Factory* (3t R 24 & R AR .

Mr. Liu Haiping, aged 47, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since April 2016. He graduated from
Fudan University with a bachelor’s degree in international economics
law in 1997 and obtained a master degree in international trade
law from Bond University, Australia in 2005. He has over 20 years
of experience in the legal sector. During the period from July 1997
to March 2009, he had served as an associate and later a partner in
Beijing Jiancheng Law Firm (JE R M #2512 EMEF5FA) . He joined Beijing
Dacheng Law Offices QbR ARRREEMNEZEHFT) in April 2009 and is
currently a senior partner of the firm. He is also the deputy executive of
the Banking Law Professional Committee GR1T/ZRFHXEZE ) under
the Beijing Lawyers Association (It R 2 EHIH D) .
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Liu Tonghui, aged 58, has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since April 2016. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in international politics and a master degree in
international relations from Tokyo International University in 1995
and 1997 respectively. He has over 20 years of extensive experience
in investment activities and business management. During the period
between 1997 to 1998, he served as the representative of Nippon
Howaito Cooperation* (HZA#H H &KL &) in China. He had been
working as the deputy general manager in each of Shouchuang Longji
Company Limited* (B8IBEERMKHBREAF) from 1998 to 2004 and
Huajian Dongfang Software Company Limited* GEEERE HEHUHARE
1E/A &) from 2005 to 2008, respectively. He was the general manager
of Tangshan Haigang Xingerui Company Limited* (B ;8B RIHA
[REEAE) from 2009 to January 2019 and the assistant president of
Unisplendour Corporation Limited * (5257 BBRAE) from 2012 to
June 2019, which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000938). Since June 2019, he has been appointed as the executive
director of Qingkong Technology Services (Shenzhen) Company Limited*

CBEREART R ARAR).

Senior Management

Mr. Ho Yu, aged 46, has been appointed as the company secretary and
chief financial officer of the Company since May 2013. Mr. Ho received
a master’s degree of Accounting from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. Mr. Ho is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ho
was the company secretary and/or financial controller for two companies
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 73 of the annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong), including a fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion on
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the financial period and future development in the Company's
business and analysis using financial key performance indicators, are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Message”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.
The above sections form an integral part of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Group for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 are set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and suppliers are keys
to its sustainable growth and development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing
quality services to its customers and enhancing cooperation with its
suppliers.
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Employees

Employees are crucial assets of the Group. The Group strives to
enhance employees’ sense of belonging and loyalty to the Group. The
Group provides a fair, healthy and safe workplace, promotes diversity,
provides competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also aims to commit resources to providing employment training and
development opportunities so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the same time,
improve their skills and performance in their respective positions and
build up confidence and self-esteem. The Group also values and is open
to receiving feedback from employees with an aim to foster a good and
long-lasting relationship.

Customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services in a
way that satisfy needs and requirements of the customers. The Group
strives to enhance the relationship with customers by continuous
interaction and communication with customers so that the Group can
respond proactively to cater for customers’ needs. The Group has also
established procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints to
ensure customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely
manner. During the period under review, the Group has maintained
good relationship with its customers.

Suppliers

The Group is also dedicated to developing a good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group’s business. The Group reinforces business
partnerships with suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication
in a proactive and effective manner so as to ensure quality and timely
delivery. During the period under review, the Group has worked closely
with its suppliers and maintained good relationships with them.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the Company
is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In addition, the
Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong Company under Part 16
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) and
therefore is subject to the relevant provisions under the Companies
Ordinance.
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The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including the
disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions therein.

Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), the Company is
required to maintain a register of interests in shares and short positions
and a register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions and is obliged to disclose price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in (i) trading of goods, (ii) the
finance leasing business, (iii) the money lending business, (iv) the
securities and futures brokerage business, (v) international air and sea
freight forwarding and the provision of logistics services, (vi) trading
of securities, (vii) property investment, (viii) the property brokerage
business, (ix) the building architecture and interior design business, (x)
the property development and project management business, (xi) the
geothermal energy business, (xii) the building construction contracting
business, and (xiii) centralised heating business, in Hong Kong, the PRC
and other jurisdictions, and therefore is subject to the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and other jurisdictions where the
Group entities are carrying on businesses.

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the period, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the period are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
period are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2021 (year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, in the opinion of the directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (31 December
2019: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Yingqian (Chairman)

Mr. Qin Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 22 January 2020)

Mr. Liu Wei

Mr. Chen Wei

Mr. Fan Jie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ru Xiangan
Mr. Liu Haiping
Mr. Liu Tonghui

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Ms.
Wang Yinggian, Mr. Chen Wei, Mr. Fan Jie and Mr. Ru Xiangan shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Each of the directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years, which can
be terminated by not less than three months’ or one month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are still independent.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

EERFTETHRASRKRMG 18
R REEEZ R RXE

RZZE-_—F=A=+—H &FEKEZE
THRABURREZMBAREATDRE
BECEBZ RN RAERRG T EARE
BERBEFRMEIS2ZHREARTNATHFE
Eacrrsest HRBERETRASITA
BRRB Rz EmRRAWT

RAEQATRNBZHE
Percentage of

the issued
share capital

Capacity Interest in shares of the Company

ERATEET

513 B 15 125 [ N= i

(Note)

Name of Director EENlA (Ff33E)
Mr. Qin Jie BNGEE Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.2%

BaEAA

Note: The percentage is calculated on basis of 1,016,856,626 shares of the Company in
issue as at 31 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the directors
and chief executives, nor their associates, had any interests or short
positions in any shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTIONS
2012 Share Option Scheme

The 2012 Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
on 22 May 2012 (the "Effective Date”). The purposes of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme are to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentives or rewards to employees, directors,
consultants, business associates and advisers of the Company for their
contribution to the Company and to promote our success. The 2012
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the Effective Date. The terms of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

62

ME: BEALNEREAIR-B--—E=A=+-—
HZ E&{7H{91,016,856,6261 5 E 5t E -
BrEXFINBEN RFE-—F=H

=t+—HB BEEERIBTHAESNR
EZHMBEARETATDNETAEBEEZ
RO KB R PR A 1 o 3%

=

et
—E-FREkESE

TE-TEBERESENORE_S—_F
ERZ+ZH(TEMBH)) BBZRE
ERe _T-—_FRRESBSERE
RBBREANT UKRBELACREREE
EEAANEBBHERBERIRERINE
SRR MREREH A RQTEM IR
FZBR - - _FBRESEBEN
HHRES +EHAERARREN  —F
——EBRESBRRFAT S LHARRE 7
BZIRSURE ©



Eligible participants of the 2012 Share Option Scheme include the
following persons:

(@) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(b) any directors, non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest;

(d) any customer of the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(f) any shareholder of or holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest;

(g) any other group or classes of persons or entities from time to time
determined by the Board as having contributed or may contribute
to by way of joint venture, business alliances or other business
arrangements to the development and growth of the Group; and

(h) any company wholly owned by one or more person belonging to
any of the above (a) to (g) participants.

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Effective Date (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) or the date of refreshing the Scheme Mandate Limit approved
by shareholders of the Company in general meeting. The maximum
number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options which may be
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each participant (other than a substantial shareholder, chief
executive or director as explained below) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a connected person (as defined under the
Listing Rules), are subject to approval by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is the grantee of the options). Where any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) would result in the Company's shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person(s) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant (a) representing in aggregate over 0.10 per cent of the
Company’s shares in issue; and (b) having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of options is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in compliance with the
Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing by a
participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period for
the share options granted is determined by the Board, which period
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of offer.

During the period, no share options have been granted by the Company
pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme. No share option was
outstanding as at 1 January 2020 and 31 March 2021. No share option
was cancelled, exercised or lapsed during the period. As at the date
of this report, no share options are outstanding under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme. The remaining life of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is
approximately 1 year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the period was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director
of the Company or an entity connected with a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the period or at any time during the period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, none of the directors
of the Company had any interest in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the following
persons other than the directors or chief executive of the Company,
in the Company’s shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which have
been recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, were as follow:
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(Note 3)

(M5E3)

Wang Baoning (Note1) Interest in a controlled corporation 162,864,000 16.02%
FHET (1) T A B R

Sunbow Int'l Enterprise Limited Beneficial Owner 162,864,000 16.02%

("Sunbow") (Note 1) EREAA
Sunbow Int'l Enterprise Limited

(TSunbow 1) (ffF5E1)

Notes:

(1) 162,864,000 shares are held by Sunbow. As Mr. Wang Baoning has the 100%
shareholding in Sunbow, by virtue of the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in all
the shares beneficially held by Sunbow

(2)  The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,016,856,626 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 March 2021.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
period is as follows:

TEXRRMERS

MR ARITETF RMEEEGSERH
ERMFBRZENIBIEIAT

Percentage of the Group’s total

AREBEENE DL
Purchases Sales
*EgEE tHEEEE
The largest customer BRAER - 27%
Five largest customers in aggregate AARERGE - 90%
The largest supplier BRAMIER 31% -
Five largest suppliers in aggregate A ARBEE S 56% -

At no time during the period, have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 and
as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
director’'s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622,
Laws of Hong Kong) when the report of the directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622, Laws of Hong Kong).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period of the Group is set out in note 52 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2021 have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited,
the auditors of the Company, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Qin Jie

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Hong Kong, 28 June 2021
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ZHONGHUI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA BEST GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Best Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 214,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2021, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of goodwill for impairment. This
impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance of
goodwill of approximately HK$148,886,000 as at March 2021 and
the impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$23,622,000
are material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment test involves application of judgements
and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Assessing the identification of the related cash generating
units;

—  Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

— Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow
projections;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
(including revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth

rates and discount rates);

—  Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the
external valuers engaged by client;

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for goodwill is
supported by the available evidence.

69

o
=
i

WAL EEN RS

BZEIE®
2

BRGEMHBRERW 2

@

EEECAEBENRESE ZH
BARSEMNEZEEET LA RR
AR B F-ANBELEHRD
148,886,000 T & i B EEIBL
23,622,000 B THiz e HBREBEE
Keoltsh, SEBERBENST RE
B B BE PR B G5t o

RANBEZREFEE EhaeR)

— FMEAERREEEBURHG

— HEEREEFENEMER
1

— UBRERRERBHERESRENE
/EU,

— MERAERR (BREKHEEE F
BEAKABEXRRBERER) NG
B

— MEEFREEIINELERYEE
B MRS

— REHABEREARERS-

EMR% EEEARAEENREE
/EUDﬁEETﬁHEE%?Z?#O



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Independent Auditor’s Report
ERYR S ClTE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Loans and interest receivables, finance lease
receivables, trade and other receivables, other
loans and interest receivables, promissory note
receivable and contract assets

Refer to Notes 33, 26, 28, 34, 43 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group tested the amount of loans and interest receivables,
finance lease receivables, trade and other receivables, other loans
and interest receivables, promissory note receivable and contract
assets for impairment. These impairment tests are significant to
our audit because the balances of loans and interests receivables,
finance lease receivables, trade and other receivables, other loans
and interest receivable, promissory note receivable and contract
assets of approximately HK$410,898,000, HK$15,947,000,
HK$371,181,000, HK$83,102,000, HK$90,000,000 and
HK$296,061,000 respectively as at 31 March 2021 are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
impairment test involves application of judgement and is based on
estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting loans limits and
loans periods to borrowers;

—  Assessing the transaction history with the borrowers;
—  Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
—  Assessing aging of the debts;

—  Assessing creditworthiness of the borrowers, guarantors and
the value of collateral pledged,;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the borrowers; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for loans and
interest receivables, finance lease receivables, trade and other
receivables, other loans and interest receivables, promissory note
receivable and contract assets are supported by the available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/
auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P07268

Hong Kong
28 June 2021
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HE
—_BEHF —E2-NEF
—HB—BZE +-A
—E—F =+—H
=HA=+—H IEFE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
[ FHET FHET
Turnover B 9 1,186,284 362,331
Revenue: W - 10
— Trading of goods —E&Edm 571,418 308,860
— Provision of international air and sea — IR HE R &
freight forwarding services B EEERE 1,975 3,464
— Consultancy income from finance leases —RBYEFHEEER WA 2,689 8,668
— Interest income from finance leases —REREMN EUWA 257 1,327
— Interest income from money lending —BEMERA 25,366 29,748
— Brokerage commission and dealing income— & 42 & & E B WA 1 438
— Property brokerage commission income ~ —#JZE &4 B2 IA 45,345 9,826
— Heating and cooling supply by — AR HBR A S
geothermal energy 17,994 -
— Construction contracting services —BEABRBEWRA
fee income 438,187 -
— Heating supply and industrial —{HBE R TEZE[IWA
steam income 29,218 -
— Project management service income —IEEHBERBWA 45,484 =
— Interior design service income —ERNREFRBWA 4,559 =
1,182,493 362,331
Operating costs: EEMA
— Cost of trading goods sold —BoERHERLS (563,903) (302,968)
— Cost of providing international air and ~ —1Z (BB AZ= &
sea freight forwarding services 8 EERFE A (1,240) (2,457)
— Cost of providing brokerage and —REKLREERBHA
dealing services (1) (315)
— Cost of providing property — R\ ELLIRTE R A
brokerage services (17,343) (3,962)
— Cost of heating and cooling supply by ~ —iZNEEMHBER S AR A
geothermal energy (17,187) -
— Cost of providing construction —REERABIRFE A A
contracting services (393,344) -
- Cost of providing heating supply and — R R THEZAMA
industrial steam (29,696) -
(1,022,714) (309,702)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 8% & _—&#F=H=+—HIF+ZEH

1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HE
—E°EHF —E-NEF
—B—HZE +=A
—EZ—F =+—H
=A=+—H IEFE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mok FET FHET
Other income Hug A 12 50,789 11,290
Administrative and other expenses TEREME N (85,769) (49,014)
Staff costs (=1 13 (111,318) (51,588)
Finance costs B A 13 (36,649) (3,806)
Unrealised loss on fair value change on REVMERTEES
investment properties ZAREIREE 20 (1,026) (16,086)
Realised gain on financial assets BRAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss ETHEEZEERKER 30 2,326 =
Unrealised gain (loss) on fair value change 1#AFEFT AEBTZZ
on financial assets at fair value through THMEBEQAFEEESH
profit or loss REIR W (18 30 9,982 (2,466)
Share of profit of associates PaR (=1 =Nyl 8,297 3,152
Share of profit of a joint venture DME—EEE AR EF] 472 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENRB AR ZEE (5,351) =
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—MBE AR 2 Wm 11,409 =
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEEZRERE = (4,127)
Impairment loss on loan and interest EBWERKRAE Z RERE
receivables - (43,466)
Impairment loss on goodwill BmERERE 21 (23,622) =
Loss before tax PRHR Al B 18 (20,681) (103,482)
Income tax expense FreiipEx 15 (15,728) (2,614)
Loss for the period/year B/ ENEE 13 (36,409) (106,096)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HE
—E-EF —Z2—hF
—B—HZE +_-A
—EB_—F =+—H
=B=+—H IEFE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FHET
Other comprehensive income (expenses) H fth 2 E Ut & (z H)
Items that may be reclassified B EH D EEEm ZEHE .
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on MhEBINEBRESE
translation of foreign operations ZERERE 33,152 (10,471)
Share of other comprehensive PMEBERB 2
income (expenses) of associates Hittz2mEmlas ) 66 (73)
Translation reserve released upon HEWBARE
disposal of subsidiaries IRERIE R RE 23 -
Items that will not be subsequently BB BB DHEE
reclassified to profit or loss: EmZEEH !
Fair value loss on financial assets at BRFEEF AHAM
fair value through TEREZEMEE
other comprehensive income NEEEE (2,590) (937)
30,651 (11,481)
Total comprehensive expenses for H/ EREEZHEE
the period/year (5,758) (117,577)
Loss for the period/year attributable to: I\ FFEILHEE, " FERNEIE :
— owners of the Company S VNEIEZT= DN (42,578) (106,067)
- non-controlling interests —JEER R 6,169 (29)
(36,409) (106,096)
Total comprehensive expenses FE(EHR,FER2EZ HAREE:
for the period/year attributable to:
— owners of the Company EN/NSTEZ Y =N (17,344) (117,548)
- non-controlling interests —FEER R 11,586 (29)
(5,758) (117,577)
(Restated)
=gl
Loss per share SEE 17
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —E AR E GBIl (4.19) (10.43)
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As at 31 March 20218 —_&E _—F=H=+—H

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—_—% —NE
=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Iz FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB MEE 18 274,640 2,603
Right-of-use assets BREEE 19 11,074 24,164
Investment properties "B 20 117,582 111,477
Goodwill mE 21 148,886 64,662
Intangible asset EmEEE 22 811 811
Interests in associates REE QB Z R 23 77,901 47,329
Interests in joint ventures REERNBZ ¥R 24 1,677 =
Financial assets at fair value BAFEF AR
through profit or loss Z2EMEE 30 10,679 =
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAREMEE
other comprehensive income WHRZzEMEE 25 8,640 11,230
Finance lease receivables W E R E RIS 26 - 4,215
Loans receivables B E= 33 17,000 105,369
Other loans receivables HiEWERR 34 3,559 73,575
Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary WE—BNB AR ZEE - 30,000
Regulatory deposits EEEE 205 1,705
Deferred tax assets FIERIBE E 37 9,042 8,497
681,696 485,637
Current assets RENEE
Inventory 75 27 3,915
Finance lease receivables W E R E RIS 26 15,947 15,288
Loans and interest receivables W ER KT B 33 393,898 316,585
Other loan and interest receivables HMEKRER T B 34 79,543 5,931
Trade and other receivables JFE Wi BR =k e ELth FE U =0 18 28 371,181 177,181
Properties under development for sale BERPEEYE 86,282 =
Contract assets BREE 29 296,061
Promissory note receivable FES R R ZE 3 43 90,000 90,000
Financial assets at fair value BAFEF AR
through profit or loss Z2EMEE 30 - 1,287
Pledged bank deposit BIEFIRITER 31 - 58
Bank balances and cash IRTTAERRIRSE
— trust and segregated accounts — B REILIRE 32 4,042 3,285
Bank balances and cash IRTTAERRIRSE
— general accounts ——ARER P 32 50,307 97,451
1,391,176 707,066
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As at 31 March 20212 —_&E - —F=F=+—H

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—E-—F —E-NEF
=B +—A8
=+—H =+—H
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
IS FET FET
Current liabilities RENBR

Trade and other payables FEAT BR R B AL At FET =R 1B 35 577,436 29,561
Contract liabilities aH8E 29 13,540 s
Lease liabilities HEAa’ 36 6,793 23,848
Trust loans ZEE™M 38 237,299 =
Short term loans FEHREM 39 20,170 =
Bank loan RITEMR 40 11,865 =
Amounts due to a joint venture FET—HE&aE B 2B 24 119 =
Amounts due to an associate B —EHE AT 2B 23 16,631 6,521
Tax liabilities RIEEE 23,928 9,750
907,781 69,680
Net current assets MEIEEFE 483,395 637,386
Total assets less current liabilities WEERTHEE 1,165,091 1,123,023

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Consideration payable FETHE 9,945 =
Lease liabilities HEaR 36 5,429 5,482
15,374 5,482
NET ASSETS BEFE 1,149,717 1,117,541
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As at 31 March 20210 — & _—F=/F=+—H

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—EZ—F “Z2—hEF
=B +=A
=+—H =+—H
NOTES HK$000 HK$'000
Mok FHET FHET
Capital and Reserves B s K i
Share capital &N 41 101,686 508,428
Share premium and reserves B aBREE 998,457 609,200
Equity attributable to owners of KABHEE AEL#ER
the Company 1,100,143 1,117,628
Non-controlling interests JEER R 49,574 (87)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,149,717 1,117,541
The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 214 were S$F73BEF24B2FEHBERREN_Z

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June
2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Qin lJie
Director
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Chen Wei
B 18
Director
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Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed  Translation Statutory  revaluation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
B REE  BARE  REHE  iTHEE REBEREE  EHER gt FERER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Tin ThEn Tin Tin Tin Tin TEn TEn TEn
(Note i) (Note i)
(HH) (h3ki)
At 1 January 2019 RZ5-hE-F-H 508,428 1,005,094 1,99 (33,509) 3,908 (29,583) (221,158) 1,235,176 (58 1,235,118
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (106,067 (106,067) (29 (106,09)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year: EREM2ET :
Exchange differences arising on BERNERREL 2 EQER
translation of foreign operations - - - (10,471) - - - (10,471) - (10,471)
Share of other comprehensive income  HEBEATZ Bt 2 ENE
of associates - - - 73) - - - n3) - (73)
Fair value loss on financial assets RATEFAEMEENGZ
at fair value through other SREEZATERE
comprehensive income - - - - - (937) - (937) - (937)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year EAZEY HAE - - - (10,544) - (937)  (106,067) (117,548 9 (11757
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+ZA=+-H 508,428 1,005,094 1,99 (44,053) 3,908 (305200 (327,225 1,117,628 (87 1,117,541
At 1 January 2020 RZ3Z%%-F-H 508,428 1,005,094 1,996 (44,053) 3,908 (30,520) (327,225) 1,117,628 (87) 1,117,541
Loss for the period HNEE - - - - - - (42,578) (42,578) 6,169 (36,409)
Other comprehensive income (expenses)  ERRELMI 2T A () :
for the period:
Exchange differences arising on BEENEEREL ERER
translation of foreign operations - - - 27,735 - - - 20,135 5417 33,152
Fair value loss on financial assets BATEHARM2ENE L
at fair value through other SREEZLTEES
comprehensive income - - - - - (2,590) - (2,590) - (2,590)
Share of other comprehensive income  HMEREATZ B2 ENE
of associates - - - 66 - - - 66 - 66
Translation reserve released upon HENBLAAGRRESRE
disposal of subsidiaries - - - 3 - - - 3 - pi]
Total comprehensive income (expenses)  EBRZENE (L) BF
for the period - - - 21,824 - (2,590) (42,578) (17,344) 11,586 (5,758)
Capital reduction (Note 41) RN (Fak41) (406,742) = 406,742 = = = = = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEBAR - - - - - - - - 77,032 77,032
Capital injection by non-controlling kgt
shareholders - - - - - - - - 548 548
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - - - - - (14,712) (14,712)
Consideration on disposal of HEFIEERERL
an associate distributed to HE-BHEAIRE
non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - (24,934) (24,934)
Change in ownership interests in ERELEEHTH
a subsidiary without change of control  —BIHBATEEELS - - - - - - (141) (141) 141 =
At 31 March 2021 KRB -£=f=+-H 101,686 1,005,094 408,738 (16,229) 3,908 (33,110) (369,944) 1,100,143 49,574 1,149,717
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Note i:

Note ii:

The contributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 1996
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange and (ii)
the credit arising from the capital reduction by cancelling the par value of the
paid-up capital of the Company on 2 September 2020.

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") Company Law
and the PRC subsidiaries’ Articles of Association, a subsidiary registered in
the PRC, prior to any dividend distribution, is required to appropriate 10%
of its annual statutory net profit as determined in accordance with relevant
statutory rules and regulations applicable to enterprises established in the PRC
(after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve. When the
balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior
years' losses or to increase capital. However, such balance of the statutory
reserve must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after such
usages. The balance is reclassified to retained earnings at the date of disposal
of the subsidiary.
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1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—EZEHF HE
—B—HZE —Z—NF
- +ZBA=+—H
=B=+—H IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Loss before tax PRI ARS8 (20,681) (103,482)
Adjustments for: FTFIBEEEHAE .
Amortisation of intangible assets mLBEEEH 4,067 =
Depreciation of property, ME-RBERZBITE
plant and equipment 11,325 3,113
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 24,811 19,023
Gain on disposal of associates HEBEA AT Z NG (11,409) =
Gain on lease modification HEBsT 2 WH (26) =
Finance costs BB A 36,649 3,806
(Gain) Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BERREZ
plant and equipment (=) K518 (300) 8
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEIE 5,351 =
Reversal of impairment loss on & U Rl & FE & T IE R (B B 1R ]
finance lease receivables (1,624) -
Share of profit of associates DEBE R B R (8,297) (3,152)
Share of profit of a joint venture ME—RBEE AT EH (472) =
Unrealised loss on fair value change KREMERNTFEEH 2 REIREIE
on investment properties 1,026 16,086
Realised gain on financial assets at fair BAFEFABRZEHMEE
value through profit or loss BERWE (2,326) =
Unrealised (gain) loss on fair value BAFEFABRZERHEE
change on financial assets at REBEEH 2 RER
fair value through profit or loss (=) K518 (9,982) 2,466
Write-off of property, WEE 2 BB R B
plant and equipment - 33
Interest income from bank, RERIT - EMEWREDRK
other loans receivables and R RERZF]EUWA
promissory note receivable (15,468) (11,260)
Government grant BT 42 B (32,466) (2)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEEZ BERIE - 4,127
Impairment loss on loan and EWER KRB Z REREE
interest receivables - 43,466
Impairment loss on goodwill EE R ERE 23,622 =
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1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—ETHE HE
—B—HZE —Z—NF
- +ZB=+—H
=A=+—H IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FET
Operating cash inflow (outflow) before EEESEPH2KERE
movements in working capital WA (R 3,800 (25,768)
(Increase) decrease in trade JFE Wi BR =k e ELAth FE U =R 18
and other receivables () R (111,855) 8,561
Decrease in finance lease receivables & W Bt 5 AR & AR IE R D 6,247 91,582
(Increase) decrease in cash IR KIRTTAEER (B0 B
and bank balances — trust — B REILIRE
and segregated account (757) 5,150
Decrease (increase) in loans FEUN B F R F B s ()
and interest receivables 11,056 (59,898)
Increase in other loans HthEWE R AH 2180
and interest receivables (3,420) (6,920)
Increase (decrease) in trade FETRR A R E eI RRIB
and other payables 1@hn CRiz) 302,762 (24,843)
Increase in properties under ERPEEY L
development for sale (31,818) -
Increase in contract assets BB ERM (202,348) =
Increase in contract liabilities BHREEEMN 9,142 =
Decrease in regulatory deposits EERE R 1,500 =
Decrease in financial assets BAFEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss EREERD 3,613 =
Increase in inventory FEEM (1,248) =
Cash used in operations KEEBPIARE (13,326) (12,136)
Income tax paid [SENIFIECT (9,941) (1,928)
NET CASH USED IN REEHFTARES R
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (23,267) (14,064)
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1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
ZETEHF HE
—B—BE —ET-nF
- +ZHR=+—H
=H=+—H EFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREES
Interest received from bank, other loans ZBEIRT HEMEWRER
receivables and promissory note K EW AR EE
receivable BUF 2 19,515 5,560
Net cash outflow from acquisition WHEN B AR 2 RE
of subsidiaries TR HEE 46(ii) (152,579) (13,659)
Net cash outflow from acquisition WHEN B AR 2 RE
of subsidiaries accounted for as REFEEE (ARYA
assets acquisition B EIEE) 46(i) (82,230) (67,962)
Proceeds from disposal of HEZAFEFAHM
financial assets at fair value PEREZEHEE
through other comprehensive income P8 1E - 4,000
Acquisition of associates g /N (1,187) (45,000)
Investment in a joint venture = RPN EOE (1,187) -
Refund of/(Deposit) for acquisition IWEE—REIMt B AT Z
of a subsidiary B ER) 30,000 (30,000)
Net cash outflow from disposal HEWBARZ
of subsidiary BEREFEE 47 (4,159) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BERZE
plant and equipment Frigs1a 300 122
Purchase of property, BEVE BERKSB
plant and equipment (41,733) (112)
NET CASH USED IN KEEESFMARES R
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (233,260) (147,051)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REED
Receipts of government grant BT REB U A 11,015 2
Advance from an associate RE—EHEARRM 9,311 6,521
Advance from a joint venture RE—BEEEABRRM 119 -
Payment of trust loans interest LA EEERHE (26,458) =
Net payment to BIEERRERE 2R
non-controlling shareholders (13,062) -
New borrowing from trust loans KBEELERZHMER 237,299 =
New borrowing from short term loans KEREPEERZHMER 20,170 =
New borrowing from bank loan REWRITEMZER 11,865 -
Capital injection from FEERRRAE
non-controlling shareholders 548 -
Repayment of lease liabilities and interest EBEHAE&SE&KFIE (32,402) (21,511)
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1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
k- Jk- 3> 5 HE
—B—HZ=E —ET—hEF
- +-FB=+—H
=BA=+—H IEEE
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
i FHET FET
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) Rt& EB1FR18 (FRrMA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ZIREFRE 218,405 (14,988)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERkREEFEEE
EQUIVALENTS 2RI B (38,122) (176,103)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HR—B—HZHRER
AT 1 JANUARY HEEEER 97,451 274,763
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE) 2 & (9,022) (1,209)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R-E—-—F
AT 31 MARCH 2021 AND =A=+—H%
31 DECEMBER 2019, represented by —E—-hE+ZH
bank balances and cash =t+—HZzHREKRREE
£EIER > LR
KIREF AR 50,307 97,451
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GENERAL

China Best Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the "“Corporate
Information” of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries (together with the Company
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 50.

Pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors dated 19
June 2020, the Group changed its financial year end date from
31 December to 31 March commencing from financial year of
2020/2021 for the following reasons:

(i) the Group will be able to rationalise and more efficiently
use its resources for the preparation of annual results
announcement and report as a better arrangement can be
achieved with its auditors and other professional parties
by removing the annual audit workflow resulting from the
variation in the dates of the Chinese New Year holidays and
avoiding the peak season of annual reporting in the first
quarter of each year; and

(i) the financial year from 1 April to 31 March will better
coincide with the seasonal operating cycle of certain principal
activities of the Group, thereby providing a more meaningful
basis for shareholders and investors to understand and
evaluate the Group's financial results.

The current financial statements cover a fifteen months period
ended 31 March 2021 and the comparative financial statements
cover a twelve months year ended 31 December 2019. The
comparative amounts are therefore not entirely comparable.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current period, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1
January 2020. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS");
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and amounts reported for the current period and prior
years except as stated below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and provide
further guidance on how to determine whether a transaction
represents a business combination. In addition, the amendments
introduce an optional “concentration test” that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is an asset rather than business acquisition, when
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
identifiable assets.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 January
2020. The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements as similar conclusion would
have been reached without applying the optional concentration
test. The Group has elected to apply the optional concentration
test on the acquisition of Yuncheng City Wandefu Hot Power
Co., Lid.* (B EEEHIBR2AF) and concluded that such
acquisition does not constitute a business.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments and
investment properties that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) to exercise its judgements in the
process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its financial
statements using accounting policies other than those adopted
in the consolidated financial statements for like transaction and
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are
made to that subsidiary’s financial statement in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group’s accounting policies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEBER @

(CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Control is achieved when the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s return.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the result of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
incurred to effect a business combination are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the business combination
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes;

e assets or liabilities related to the acquiree’s employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of
the acquiree’s share-based payment transactions with the
share-based payment transactions of the Group are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another standards,
are measured at acquisition-date fair value except for non-
controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured either at fair value
or at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets on
a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent
consideration that is within the scope of HKFRS 9 is measured at
fair value at each reporting date, and changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9. Other
contingent consideration that is not within the scope of HKFRS 9 is
measured at fair value at each reporting date and changes in fair
value are recognised in profit or loss.
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FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period (see
above), the provisional amounts recognised at the acquisition date
are adjusted retrospectively or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised as of that date, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability
to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is tested for impairment
together with the investment at the end of each reporting period
when there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. If
the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the
profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's share
of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that associate and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group continues
to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Joint Ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity through an
entity that is separate from the parties and subject to joint control.
Investment in a joint venture is stated at cost less impairment
losses.
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FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Joint Ventures (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method. The investment is
initially recorded at the transaction price (including transaction
costs) and is subsequently adjusted to reflect the Group's share of
profit or loss after the date of acquisition. The Group's share of the
profit or loss of the joint venture is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. Distributions received from a joint venture reduce the
carrying amount of the investment.

Identifiable assets and liabilities of a joint venture in an acquisition
are measured at their acquisition date fair values. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the joint venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Goodwill relating to a joint venture is included in
the carrying amount of the investment unless fully amortised or
impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.

The difference between the proceeds from the disposal of a joint
venture and its carrying amount as of the date of disposal is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss as the gain or loss on
disposal of the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in joint ventures. Accounting policies of joint
ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is
satisfied over time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

—  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment are established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related Parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:
i has control or joint control over the Group;
ii.  has significant influence over the Group; or

iii. is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

i.  The entity and the Company are members of the same

group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

ii.  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

iii.  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv.  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

97

3. FETHEE @

BIER

MELRAEEERBEZALTHE

2o

(A EBUTAL BIZALTHZA

+

MRELHENEREERFRH
=

ERIHREENAEE ;
HAERBEAREN , X

BERBHEREZFREH
FTEBEEAR-

(B) fHfT& FHMEMRMS  BIXERE
SAREEBRHE

ZEREFTATBR—%H
ZHBERAE BIRRTE M
BT EF M B QBRI
BIARRE) o

— RIS S —EEN M E
ARREEAT (S8
BAME AT EEETH
BARZHEARRSEA
=) o

MEBEREIRR—F=H

AKX =
SN

—BEEAE=FEENS
EREMB—BRAZSE
= HERMNBEAT-



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A FR R R MG

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

g A
77 g |

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related Parties (Continued)

B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

Vi

vii.

viii.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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EFEEEZERBRAT 2020/215F%H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4R e MR RMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fiduciary activities

The Group maintains segregated accounts with authorised
institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal course of
the regulated business activities. The Group has classified the bank
balances — trust and segregated accounts within the current assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding account payables to respective clients and
other institutions on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’” monies. The Group is not allowed to
use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations. The cash held
on behalf of customers is restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme, Central Provident
Fund (“CPF”) Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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EFEEEZERBRAT 2020/215F%H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4R e MR RMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leaves and sick leave in the
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4R e MR RMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment (classified as finance leases) held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purpose are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
plant and equipment less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Lease
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the
Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use
assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
The principal useful lives are as follows:
Land and buildings 2 — 3 years
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that
rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group's incremental
borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an
initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets
of value below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

(i)  Operating leases
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

(if)  Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment in the
leases.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is measured
initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable to the

property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its
fair value based on valuation by an external independent valuer.
Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the investment
property are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the

difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4R e MR RMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible asset
Intangible asset acquired separately

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life that is acquired
separately is carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Regulatory deposits

Regulatory deposits are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost;

—  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income; and

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TSERRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEBER @

(CONTINUED)
ETMEE ®
(i) BRAFEAABRMZE K Z

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair values recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. On derecognition of an
investment, the cumulative gains or losses previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in profit or
loss, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do
not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost
and the conditions of debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income unless the Group designates an
equity investment that is not held for trading as at fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair values recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
are net of any interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost and lease receivables. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents
the expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the
loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash

and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the
vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair values of the goods or
services received are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains
the goods or when the counterparties render services, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % — & —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (other than impairment of goodwill set
out in accounting policy of goodwill above)
(Continued)

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that it may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, value in use of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset for the purpose
of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements into three
levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation technigue for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether
transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis
by reviewing their respective fair value measurement.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The Directors have exercised their judgements
and are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Impairment of trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loans and interest receivables,
other loans and interest receivables,
promissory note receivable and contract assets

The policy for impairment of trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loans and interest receivables, other loans and
interest receivables, promissory note receivable and contract
assets of the Group are based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be required.
At 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of trade receivables,
finance lease receivables, loans and interest receivables, other
loans and interest receivables, promissory note receivable
and contract assets were approximately HK$225,524,000
(31 December 2019: HK$156,815,000), HK$15,947,000
(31 December 2019: HK$19,503,000), HK$410,898,000 (31
December 2019: HK$421,954,000), HK$83,102,000 (31
December 2019: HK$79,506,000), HK$90,000,000 (31 December
2019: HK$90,000,000) and HK$296,061,000 (31 December
2019: nil) respectively, and net of allowance for impairment of
approximately HK$1,453,000 (31 December 2019: HK$1,454,000),
HK$34,988,000 (31 December 2019: HK$34,462,000),
HK$43,466,000 (31 December 2019: HK$43,466,000), nil (31
December 2019: nil), nil (31 December 2019: nil) and nil (31
December 2019: nil) respectively.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March
2021, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$148,886,000 (31
December 2019: HK$64,662,000), net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$52,604,000 (31 December 2019: HK$28,982,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note
21.

Provision for current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax in the period in which such
determination is made.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Provision for current and deferred taxation
(Continued)

At 31 March 2021, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$483,804,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$376,915,000) available for offset against future profits. The
Directors make estimates on the future profit streams of the
Group entities of which tax losses are not utilised. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised of the remaining tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2021 and year ended 31 December 2019 (note
37).

Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets
and if the expectation differs from the carrying amount, such
differences from the carrying amount will impact the depreciation
charges in the year in which the estimates change. At 31 March
2021, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately HK$274,640,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$2,603,000), net of accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss of approximately HK$23,213,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$15,007,000).
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

BEXEBER

AEEEERHEANBRRAEEER
FENFECE ARNERELERK
RAEZEFAHRRAERKE K A&
EEBERBRRAFHERFIE

FEREARBERREARFEEEE
BEURAABEE ANEGE#ED (B
EEETRERRER -

EFEHMRAELTRB -ERRA Z
— R EBEFERBELAMNEARRAERE
AEBZRABR REEFZHEBR
FAEBERBEBBITHMRMD KRBT
MEBFHHEREARE

EWMIA

Categories of financial instruments ERTRZER
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—T-—F —Z—-hEF
=B=+-8 +=A=+-*g
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABERZ
profit or loss — mandatorily measured TREERGIFTE 10,679 1,287
Financial assets at fair value through other I ARAFEFAEMEE
comprehensive income Wz EREE 8,640 11,230
Financial assets at amortised cost (including IZ# M AtEZ SMEE
cash and cash equivalents) (BiEREEFEEEEER) 975,624 888,113
994,943 900,630
Financial liabilities A =N
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEERASEZEMERE 873,465 34,758
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include regulatory
deposits, trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables,
loans and interest receivables, other loans and interest receivables,
promissory note receivable, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, trust loans, short term loans, bank loan, amount due
to a joint venture and amount due to an associate. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Other than the subsidiaries established in the PRC,
Singapore and the United States of America of which
functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB"), Singapore dollars
("SGD") and United States dollars ("USD") respectively, the
functional currency of the Company and other subsidiaries
is HKS$. Certain bank balances and cash are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the group
entities to which they relate. Foreign currencies are also used
to settle expenses for overseas operations, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency

MEEREEBERBER

AEECIESHIAGELER
S~ FE AR 2R L At FE WS IE ~ FE U
EREHE M E BT S - E A
R R F B AR B A
TEHABEZSREE BATE
HAHMEERE > SREE- 817
BRI S IR AR AL 3
B SHER - ERER RTER
FEf—RI A A B HIE R AE S —
BMEARNE - ARSRT A
RERSERNE - ZESHITAR
B> AREETRAR (EEERR-F
ZEBREMERAR SERRE
RBES AR RIS AR K
BN T EREUERRERRE
B R RS R A MM E T A B
i o

h 5 B B
() BEEEE

BRESHPE] s MR e A B & R
BB AT ZINEER D
AB/ARE TARE)) ~#i0K
7o (T ko)) K=t (T5&530)
Sh BARBREMNEB AT ZI)
FEERHABIT B TIRITHER
RREUEEEEERNESR
LNz BB SHE BN EBTTE
NSRS b R EE K

RONEE R o

FERLOMNESHEZEBEER

denominated monetary assets at the reporting date are as REBZEREENT :
follows:

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—E—F —E-AE
=B=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
RMB N 1,694 1,617
usD E7T 8,159 12,734
British Pound (“GBP") gE (T2E58)) 3 411
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for USD as HK$ is pegged
to USD.

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is currently exposed to RMB and GBP foreign
currency risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
10% (31 December 2019: 10%) increase and decrease in
functional currencies of the relevant group entities, HK$
or RMB, against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% (31
December 2019: 10%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 10% (31 December
2019: 10%) change in foreign currency rates.

A negative number below indicates an increase in loss (31
December 2019: increase in loss) for the period where the
respective functional currency (HK$ or RMB) strengthens
10% (31 December 2019: 10%) against the relevant foreign
currency (RMB, GBP, or HK$). For a 10% (31 December 2019:
10%) weakening of respective functional currency (HK$ or
RMB) against the relevant foreign currency (RMB, GBP or
HK$), there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
loss (31 December 2019: loss) for the period and the balances
below would be positive.
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FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BiERISGESIEEHERKE
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) =)

I-E t’”.l_ }_‘: Bglus I\E
() BEimEE &
HE DT ()

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Effect on profit or loss

Higmz g
1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—BEF BHE
—HB—HZE —_E—hF
B +ZRA=+—H
=A=+—H IFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Strengthen against RMB by 10% (note a) @ AR ¥ F1{E10% (Ff5ta) (169) (162)
Strengthen against GBP by 10% (note b) R #EFE10% (fi5Eb) — (41)
Notes: B st :
(a)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on RMB bank (@) WHFEFZEHRBRARBIRITAEALR
balances and cash at period end. FRREREBZRAR -
(b)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on GBP bank (b) WHFEFEHRBAREFERITERK
balances and cash at period end. RERGEBEZRAR-
(ii) Interest rate risk (ii) FFE & fz
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation REBZZERTHEBATIRS

to variable-rate bank balances. It is the Group's policy to keep AR E R o AEE 2 BER AR
its bank balances at floating rate of interest so as to minimise E IRTTERER R T E5
the fair value interest rate risk. B UBAFENERERER
1 o
The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in KEBRBTABWERENE (6%
relation to loans and interest receivable (see note 33 for 5 RMIEE33) ~ HtE I E R F
details), other loans and interest receivables (see note 34 for B GFERME34) - BN ENA
details), finance lease receivables (see note 26 for details), ERE GFI5REM5E26) ~ FEUA
promissory note receivable (see note 43 for details), trust e 24 GEIBE RMIEE43) 550 ER
loans (see note 38 for details), short term loans (see note 39 (GEERME38) efiEm (5
for details) and bank loan (see note 40 for details). 1ERMIEE39) MIBTTER (u¥ BER
MI5E40) M A= A FEF) =& b o

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 &% —

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Directors consider that the interest rate risk in relation
to variable rate bank balances is insignificant due to these
balances are either within short maturity period or the
outstanding balances are not significant.

(iii) Other price risk

As at 31 March 2021, the Group is exposed to other price risk
through its investment in unlisted equity securities. The Group
has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to other price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the value of the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income had been 20% (31 December 2019:
20%) higher/lower, the investment revaluation reserve for
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$1,728,000 (year ended 31
December 2019: HK$2,246,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of these investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
representative of the other price risk for the investments in
listed equity securities as the year end exposure does not
reflects the exposure during the year.
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FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BiERISGESIEEHERKE

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 December 2019, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to a failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In respect of finance lease receivables, representing loan advances
to customers with pledged assets, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s financial background, current ability to pay and the
financial status of the guarantor, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. At 31 March 2021
and 31 December 2019, the finance lease receivables are secured
with the leased assets. All the finance lease receivables are aroused
in the PRC.

In respect of loans and interest receivables, representing financing
advances to customers under the Group’s money lending business,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s financial background and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry in which customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. The Directors consider the credit risk
under control since the management exercise due care in granting
credit and check the financial background of these customers on a
regular basis.

For loan and interest receivables, the Group has a high
concentration of credit risk on loans and interest receivables as
13% (31 December 2019: 13%) and 55% (31 December 2019:
54%) of the total loans and interest receivables was due from the
single largest customer and the five largest customers in the money
lending segment respectively.
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4R e MR RMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

For finance lease receivables, the Group has a high concentration
of credit risk on finance lease receivables as 70% (31 December
2019: 54%) and 100% (31 December 2019: 100%) of the total
finance lease receivables was due from the single largest customer
and the five largest customers in the finance leasing segment
respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations are mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
99% (31 December 2019: 98%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 March 2021. The Group has concentration of credit risk as 40%
(31 December 2019: 50%) and 97% (31 December 2019: 98%)
of the total trade receivables were due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following
information is used:

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of the borrower;
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BiERISGESIEEHERKE

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower;

—  significant changes in the value of the collateral or in the
quality of guarantees or credit enhancements; and

—  significant changes in the expected performance and behavior
of the borrower, including changes in the payment status of
borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more
than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment, unless
the Group has supportable information which can demonstrate
otherwise. A default on a financial asset occurs when a debtor fails
to make contractual payments within 90 days when they fall due
and this debtor is unlikely to repay the amount due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally categorises a
receivable for write off when the Group determine that the debtor
does not have assets or source of income that could generate
sufficient cash flow to repay the amounts subject to write-off.
Where receivables have been written off, the Group, if practicable
and economical, continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for loans and interest receivables,
finance lease receivables, promissory note receivable and other
loans and interest receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each of the categories.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category and adjusts for forward
looking data.
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MEEREEBERBE
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EERR @

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (Continued)

Category Definition Loss provision

Rl BE BiREE

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses
R BHOR MBI R EET5 1218 B e 18

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses

R ERRREEIEMN THATEHEE
Other
loans
Loans and Finance Promissory and Deposits
interest lease note interest  and other
receivables receivables receivable receivables receivables Total
BWERR  ERHE e HiFEW ZeREM
FE HERE EAREZE BRRNE ELKRE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TER TERT TER TER
Balance at 31 March 2021 RIZZ_—4%
ZB=1+—BN%EEH 454,364 50,935 90,000 83,102 95,599 774,000
Loss allowance BEEE (43,466) (34,988) - - - (78,454)
Carrying amount REE 410,898 15,947 90,000 83,102 95,599 695,546
Other
loans
Loans and Finance  Promissory and Deposits
interest lease note interest and other
receivables  receivables receivable  receivables  receivables Total
ERESRE  EREHE FE Uy HifEl ZekEAM
FE HERE AREE BIRKRAE  BURIE £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Balance at 31 December ~ RZZE—h&E+_AH
2019 =+—HH#ER 465,420 53,965 90,000 79,506 17,836 706,727
Loss allowance BiERE (43,466) (34,462) - - = (77,928)
Carrying amount REE 421,954 19,503 90,000 79,506 17,836 628,799

125



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BiERISGESIEEHERKE

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) €5))
Credit risk (Continued) EERMR @
Loans and Finance Promissory Other loans Deposits
interest lease note and interest and other
receivables receivables receivable receivables receivables Total
BWERKR  EKEHE FEY  HttEw REkEM
Expected credit loss rate  TEHAfE BBEE FIE MHERE EREE BRKAE ERRE st
31 March 2021 T -H=ZH=+—-H 10% 69% - - - 10%
31 December 2019 —E-NE
+-B=+—H 9% 64% - - - 11%

All of these receivables after loss allowance are considered to
have low risk and under the ‘Performing’ category because they
have a low risk of default and have strong ability to meet their
obligations.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of its bank balances and cash and considers
the risk is minimal.

Except for consideration payable of HK$9,945,000 which is
repayable after one year but within two years, the maturity dates
of all other financial liabilities are repayable on demand or within
one year as at the end of each of the reporting periods.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values due
to short-term or immediate maturities.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period
for recurring measurement, grouped into Levels 1, Levels 2 or
Levels 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable
or unobservable in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 8.

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 March 2021:

ATEHE w
BRZBHRHE :

Fair value measurements using

FERAUTHARBZATEHE

Level 1: Level 2: Level 3: Total
BB B! = Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value measurements:  &EEATENE :
Financial assets at fair value through & AFEst ABHZ
profit or loss THEE
- Contingent consideration —ERHARE
receivable - - 10,679 10,679
Financial assets at fair value through RAFEt AEMEE
other comprehensive income e ==
— Unlisted equity security —ELmRARES - 8,640 - 8,640
Investment properties KEME - - 117,582 117,582
Total recurring fair value REENTFEFSHEE
measurements - 8,640 128,261 136,901

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2019:

R-B—hE+=B=+—B2AT
ERBZERES

Fair value measurements using

ERANTRARBZATESE

Level 1: Level 2: Level 3: Total
£ BB B! Kt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value measurements: & EMEATEE :
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss TRMEE
— Listed equity security — L HRARES 1,287 - - 1,287
- Contingent consideration —ERHARE
receivable = = = =
Financial assets at fair value through AT EF AEMEE
other comprehensive income WamzEMEE
— Unlisted equity security —JFLEHRARDS — 11,230 = 11,230
Investment properties KEME - = 111,477 111,477
Total recurring fair value KEMATEFEREE
measurements 1,287 11,230 111,477 123,994
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8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 8. AF¥EFHE®W
Disclosure of valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value NEESEZ2HERNTRBASEZ
measurements: R
Level 2 fair value measurements B_EATEFE

31 March 31 December
Description Valuation technique Inputs 2021 2019
—EZ—F§ —E-NEF
F15 fR{ER M A 8% =A=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets at Comparable Share price and
fair value through other Transaction Method marketability
comprehensive income AR A BE discount
— Unlisted equity security B (8 f %
BATESARMEE TE TR
WHmzeMmEE
—JF L RARE S 8,640 11,230

Level 3 fair value measurements

E=EATENE

Effect on fair

value for
Unobservable increase of 31 March 31 December
Description Valuation technique  inputs Range input 2021 2019
BARE “Z2-NF
EMHATE ZEZ-F +ZA
HE ERA AR BERRAYE #E ZRE =B=+-H =+—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT
Contingent Discounted payoff (i) Discounted rate 12.5% (i) Decrease
consideration with scenario (i) BRIR= (i)
receivable RAEREIR IR
EWSANRE 10,679 -
Investment Income capitalisation (i) Monthly rental RMB164/m? (i) Increase
properties W B AL (ii) Rental yield 6% (ii) Decrease
REME () BHEE ARHE1647,/ () 3B
(i) e WE= FAR (ii) B> 117,582 111,477

REFERBEFE > ERATFERE
Z BT

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy in
the current and prior years.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

The movements during the period in the balance of these level 3

fair value measurements are as follow:

AFEEFAE ®

L% E3BA T E B TR
BT :

1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HE
t et 2 —E-NEF
—HA—BEZE +—A
—T-—F =+—H
=B=+—H IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFAERZEMEE
profit or loss
At 1 January n—HB—H - S
Add: contingent consideration receivable m:WERBAREE
arising from acquisition of subsidiaries FEUW S AA(E 644 =
Add: contingent consideration receivable m:WEREAREE
arising from acquisition of associates FEUW S AA(E - 750
Unrealised gain (loss) on fair value change NEEEB) 2 FREIR
Wi (B518) 9,982 (750)
Exchange differences R ERE 53 =
10,679 -
Change in unrealised gain (loss) REBESHERMIFTEE
for the period/year included in STABRNE A FRERER
profit or loss for assets held at e (8518) &)
the end of the reporting period 9,982 (750)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 &% _Z&

9. TURNOVER 9.

Turnover arises from (i) trading on electronic appliance; (ii) gross
proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; (iii) provision of international air and sea freight
forwarding services; (iv) consultancy income in respect of finance
leases; (v) interest income from finance leases; (vi) interest income
from money lending; (vii) brokerage commission and dealing
income from securities and futures brokerage business; (viii)
property brokerage commission income from property brokerage
business; (ix) heating and cooling supply by geothermal energy; (x)
building construction contracting service; (xi) interior design service
income from building architecture and interior design business; (xii)
project management service income from property development
and project management business and (xiii) heating supply and
industrial steam income from centralised heating business. An
analysis of the Group's turnover for the period/year is as follows:

T —FZA=F—HIFEES

—E 2

EEBERANEBEEFHM (NHE®R
NFEFABHEZSHEEMERE
MEE G (HRHEEMERE LEER
B(vERMERE 2R ;(v)Et
BEREFNEWA S(VEERBEWA ;
(ViNEEERESLER K8 me
BEBEUWA (il EREEHE Y
AR WA 5 (X)W BABE R 8L )% 5 (%)
BFREAREORE K)VBFRELE

AR TEFR 2 ERNRTARFB A > (xii)
MERRREEEEXR 2 IEEEIE

AR 755 WA Je (xiii) B8 R AL BRZE 75 2 (1 BR
RIEZES[RA B/ FRALERE
FREzOMWT

1 January

2020 Year ended

to 31 March 31 December

2021 2019

—E”E HE

—HBA—HZE —n%F

- +ZBA=+—H

=B=+—H IEFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Trading of goods BEEMSm 571,418 308,860

Gross proceeds from disposal of securities HEFSERIBAREE 3,791 =
Provision of international air and sea }mfﬁ—‘tlﬁ’“ﬁn KB EER

freight forwarding services 1,975 3,464

Consultancy income from finance leases AMEREREBRRA 2,689 8,668

Interest income from finance leases MBEREENEWA 257 1,327

Interest income from money lending BEF BWA 25,366 29,748

Brokerage commission and dealing income &4 A& &EBE WA 1 438

Property brokerage commission income MERLEBEUWA 45,345 9,826

Heating and cooling supply by HZRAE (3R B0

geothermal energy 17,994 -

Construction contracting services fee income EZRAEIRFEE A 438,187 =

Interior design service income A& ET RS A 4,559 =

Project management service income EEEERBUWA 45,484 =

Heating supply and industrial steam income  fHBE & T2 ZE SR A 29,218 =

1,186,284 362,331
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10. REVENUE 10. Wz
1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
ZEZEHE HE
—B—HZE —E-NEF
- +ZHA=+—H
=H=+—H tFEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Revenue from contracts with EEaHWE (M)
customers (Note) 1,156,870 331,256
Revenue from other sources: KRBEEMKIFE 2 W -
Interest income from finance leases MEAEREWA 257 1,327
Interest income from money lending BEF2UWA 25,366 29,748
1,182,493 362,331
Timing of recognition of revenue from BER NIRRT
contracts with customers:
At a point in time RE—RFREI 618,739 331,256
Over time BE B R 538,131 =
1,156,870 331,256
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KW
10. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 10. W= @
Note: BT -
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: BRENRZZAD
Fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 BE_T_—F=-A=+—HLE+HMER
Heating
International and cooling Building Property
Securities airand supply of Building  architecture ~ development
Trading Finance ~ and futures  sea freight Property  geothermal  construction  and interior  and project  Centralised
of goods leasing  brokerage  forwarding  brokerage energy  contracting design  management heating Total
5%k ERAZR wEE  HBFRE BFRER  MEEER

EREBR  BEER  HEEE  BLEE  WREE  HRNS 8 EAm  EEEE  E0iER 3t
HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
Tin Tin Tin Fin T T Fin TR TR Tin Tin

Geographic Markets WEHE
Hong Kong &% - - 1 - - - - - - - 1
PRC & 571,418 2,689 = = 45,345 17,99 438,187 4,559 45,484 29,18 1,154,894
Singapore oM - - - 1,268 - - - - - = 1,268
North and South of America pESEES] - - - 07 - - - - - - 707
571,418 2,689 1 1,975 45,345 17,994 438,187 4,559 45,484 29,218 1,156,870
Major Products/Services TEER/ BB
Trading of electronic products BEETEM 571,418 - = = = = = = = - 571,418
Finandial services SHERH - 2,689 1 - - - - - - - 2,690
International air and sea ERRERE L EERS
freight forwarding services - - - 1975 - - - - - - 1975
Property brokerage services NELLRE - - - - 45,385 - - - - - 45345
Heating and cooling supply by HAERERS
geothermal energy - - - - - 17,994 - - - - 17,994
Building construction BFRERORE
contracting services - - - - - - 438,187 - - - 438,187
Interior design services ERRHRE - - - - = = = 4,559 = - 4,559

Project management services EEEERS - = = = = - - - 45,484 - 45,484
Heating supply and industrial steam &R I E%T - - - - - - - - - 29,218 29218

571,418 2,689 1 1975 45,345 17,99 438,187 4,559 45,484 29,18 1,156,870
Timing of recognition of revenue  &F &4 RDFHE
from contracts with customers
Ata point in time RE-GEE 571,418 - 1 1,975 45,345 - - - - - 618,739
Over time et g - 2,689 - - - 17,99 438,187 4,559 45,484 29,18 538,131
571,418 2,689 1 1,975 45,345 17,994 438,187 4,559 45,484 29218 1,156,870
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e,
10. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 10. Wz @@
Note: (Continued) Wsr o (48)
Twelve months ended 31 December 2019 BHE_Z—hFE+_A=+—HIL+Z@EA
International
Securities air and sea
Trading Finance and futures freight Property
of goods leasing brokerage forwarding brokerage Total
EHK BIRMZE K
BEB® MERE HERL BLEE MELR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FER TER AT TET FET
Geographic Markets IS
Hong Kong B - - 438 - - 438
PRC HE 308,860 8,668 - - 9,826 327,354
Singapore s - = = 1,529 = 1,529
North and South of America EMREEMN - - - 1,935 - 1,935
308,860 8,668 438 3,464 9,826 331,256
Major Products/Services TZER/RB
Trading of electronic products ~ BEBFER 308,860 = = = = 308,860
Financial services SRR - 8,668 438 - - 9,106
International air and sea EREMERE L
freight forwarding services EEIRY - - - 3,464 - 3,464
Property brokerage services MELLZIRE - - - - 9,826 9,826
308,860 8,668 438 3,464 9,826 331,256

Timing of recognition of revenue EF &4 BRI E
from contracts with customers
At a point in time R —ERaE, 308,860 8,668 438 3,464 9,826 331,256
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10. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 10. 155 @)

Trading of goods

Revenue from the trading of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

—  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

— it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

—  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 90 days.

Finance leasing

Consultancy income from finance leasing is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered. The
customers pay the consultancy service fee to the Group according
to the payment schedules as stipulated in the contracts.

Securities and futures brokerage

Commission income on dealing in securities and futures contract is
recognised on a trade date basis when the services are rendered,
the amount for which can be reliably estimated and it is probable
that the income will be received. The commission income is due on
the settlement date of their respective trade dates, normally two or
three business days after the respective trade date.

International air and sea freight forwarding

Income from provision of freight forwarding services is recognised
when the services are provided. The Group normally allow credit
period of 90 days.
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10. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Property brokerage

Commission income on dealing in property agency contract is
recognised when the services are rendered, the amount for which
can be reliably estimated and it is probable that the income will be
received. The customers pay the commission income to the Group
upon the sales of property is completed.

Heating and cooling supply by geothermal
energy

Income from heating and cooling supply by geothermal energy
is recognised when the services are rendered. The customers
pay the fee according to the heating and cooling supply actually
consumed.

Building construction contracting

The Group provides construction contracting services to the
customers. When the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligations of a construction contract can be
measured reasonably, revenue from the contract and the contract
costs are recognised using the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to the estimated total contract costs for the contract. This
method provides the most reliable estimate of the percentage of
completion.

When the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations of a construction contract cannot be
measured reasonably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that is expected to be recoverable.

The customers pay the contract prices to the Group according to
the payment schedules as stipulated in the contracts. If the service
rendered by the Group exceeds the payments, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the service rendered, a contract
liability is recognised.

Building architecture and interior design

Building architecture and interior design services income is
recognised when the services are rendered, the amount for which
can be reliably estimated and it is probable that the income will
be received. The customers pay the service income to the Group
according to the payment schedules as stipulated in the contracts.
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10. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

11.

Property development and project
management

Revenue from the Group’s property development and project
management business derived from entrusted construction
agreements and management services. Project management service
income is recognised when the services are rendered, the amount
for which can be reliably estimated and it is probable that the
income will be received. The customers pay the service income to
the Group according to the payment schedules as stipulated in the
contracts.

Centralised heating

Heating supply and industrial steam income is recognised when the
services are rendered. The customers pay the fee according to the
heating and industrial steam actually consumed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the type of goods
sold or services delivered or provided. The Directors have chosen
to organise the Group around difference in products and services.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating decision
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments are as follows:

(a) Trading of goods segment engages in trading of products
including but not limited to electronic appliance in the PRC;

(b) Finance leasing segment engages in finance leasing of plant
and machinery as well as providing consultancy services with

respect of finance leasing in the PRC;

(c) Money lending segment engages in money lending in Hong
Kong;

(d) Securities and futures brokerage segment engages in
securities and futures dealing services in Hong Kong;
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11.SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(e)

®)

(9)

(h)

0]

(0

(k)

V)

(m)

International air and sea freight forwarding segment engages
in the provision of international air and sea freight forwarding
and logistic services to customers in Singapore and United
States of America;

Securities trading segment engages in trading of equity
securities and dividend income from held for trading
investments in Hong Kong;

Property investment segment engages in investments of
properties for rental income and capital appreciation in the
PRC;

Building architecture and interior design segment engages in
provision of building architecture and interior design services
in the PRC;

Property brokerage segment engages in provision of property
agency service in the PRC;

Property development and project management segment
engages in entrusted construction and projects management
services in the PRC;

Geothermal energy segment engages in provision of heating
and cooling supply by geothermal energy to buildings in the
PRC;

Building construction contracting segment engages in
provision of building construction contracting service on
project basis in the PRC; and

Centralised heating segment engages in the business of using
coal-fired boilers to provide centralised heating, including
industrial steam, through centralised pipe networks in the
PRC.
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11.SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable and operating segments.

Fifteen months ended 31 March 2021

1M1.3EEF @
9 EBUS 5 R ¥4

TR AERZ A REREE DI

Dz R B DM

BHE_T_—F=-A=+—HL+E

A
International Building Property
Securities air and architecture development Building
Trading of Finance Money andfutures  seafreight ~ Securities ~ Property andinterior ~ Property and project  Geothermal ~construction  Centralised
goods leasing lending  brokerage ~ forwarding trading  investment design  brokerage management energy  contracting heating Total
#5k  ERRZR BFRER NEERR |
ERBR  BEAR 6 HEER  BLEE  B5EE MERE  ETARS  MEER ERER it @ EhiE a3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FiEn FiEn FEn Fin FEn FiEn Tin TiEn FiEn Tin FiEn FEn FEn Tin
Turover E28 571,418 2,946 25,366 1 1,975 3,191 - 4,559 45345 45,484 17,99% 438,187 29218 1,186,284
Revenue fiom SIBENG
external customers 571,418 2,946 25,366 1 1,975 - - 4,559 45,345 45,484 17,9% 438,187 29218 1,182,493
Reportable seqment profitlloss)  FIHE AR/ (Fi8) (9.932) (4,768) 16,926 (21,060) (1,014) 2,326 (1,901) (8113) 19,762 (9322) (8,280) 31,64 (3,990) 2,58
Share of profit of associates  HEEEATER 8,207
Share of profit of a joint venture HE—TEABATER m
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—EEEAT2HE 11,409
Loss on disposal of subsidiries  tHEHBAT 26 (5.351)
Unallocated corporate income R ABEEMA 17917
Unallocated corporate expenses K AELERR (55,683)
Loss before tax KREES (20,681)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —hWE+ZBE=+—HLtHF
E
International Building
Securities air and architecture
Trading of Finance Money and futures  sea freight  Securities Property ~ and interior Property
goods leasing lending  brokerage  forwarding trading  investment design  brokerage Total
E5k BRA BFRER
BEEn WEHE 8 HEfK EHEE  MERE  EARS  WEEL st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn THER TER THER FEL FEn TR FER FER
Turnover 2 308,860 9,995 29,748 438 3,464 - - - 9,826 362,331
Revenue from SMEbE AW
external customers 308,860 9,995 29,748 438 3,464 - - - 9,826 362,331
Reportable Segment ARENDE/ EH)
profit/(loss) (5,646) (1,821)  (22,233)  (10,573) (820) (1,716)  (16,747)  (11,009) 3,010 (67,555)

Share of profit of associates 7 {5BHE /A B)iE 7!

Unallocated FABRAERA
corporate income
Unallocated FOBRCERT

corporate expenses

Loss before tax RiRAIEE
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11.SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
results represent the (loss from) profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, Directors’
emoluments, depreciation of certain property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, unrealised gain on fair value change on

AR e MR R

T —#FZA=+—HIEFEEA

M. DEEE @

DE U B R AR (@)

BREDE 2 G5t ER AN 3T A
EEZEBREB - DWEEEH
KD (BEEZ R BILZE
Hitil% PECHRRITH A A EF
M~ ETHE F“%&‘Eﬁﬁu&ﬁ)ﬂ%
BEZITE - BRAFTEFARHEZ

rﬂﬁé”ﬁ@ﬁibzﬂi ﬂﬁﬂ&“\
TﬁH‘*‘AQ}T @i DIE—BEERE
mA O HERNBATZEE - HE—ME
Hﬁﬁﬁ’\jzuﬁl“\ ERE P HE
ER F“%Ezuxﬁzﬂﬁl“\%ﬁ&{ E P4
W - ETHEERKRELERTER

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, share of profit
of associates, share of profit of a joint venture, loss on disposal of
subsidiaries, gain on disposal of an associate, net foreign exchange
loss, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, gain on
lease modification, interest expense on certain lease liabilities and
trust loans, interest expense on short term loans, interest expenses
on consideration payables, interest income from promissory note HZ EBHERMEREZ  EBERER
receivable, interest income from other loan receivables, bank ERET BEWRAREEZFEIA
interest income and sundry income. This is the measure reported HMEWER ZF EWA fﬁ THE
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource l—l&)\&#ﬁlﬁ WA ebThmEEEER
allocation and performance assessment. REERFERD B RRIFTEME

20

PNEHMEERER
TXAFEBERESHUI2EE

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable segments. REEA
At 31 March 2021 R-ZZ_—F=ZA=+—H
International Building Property
Securities air and architecture development Building
Trading of Finance Money  and futures  sea freight ~ Securities Property  and interior Property  and project  Geothermal construction  Centralised
goods leasing lending  brokerage  forwarding trading  investment design  brokerage management energy  contracting heating Total
a5k EREE 52 £ ES 1) [ £3 £

REfG  RERA 8 HEEE BLRE  BSRE NERE REARE  MEEE EREER Mk LS, it
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'O00  HKSO0  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000
Thn  TEn  TEn T TEn  TEn TEn T TEn  FiEn Thn  TEn  TEn TEn

ASSETS BE

Segment assets HHEE 177,14 18,398 411,136 30,599 265 - 17,59% 18,248 247 105,048 wmIn 436977 141,03 1,708,436

Unalocated corporate assets ~ AAELEEE 364,436

Consolidated assets LAEE 2012812
—

LIABILITIES 8

Seqment liabiities HHaE 128,456 2,04 = 4,830 1,489 = = 1,453 3,607 13,730 56,163 346,265 75,157 633,791

Unallocated corporate libilties  £HEL2&E 289,364

Consolidated libiltes LARER 923,155
—
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AR e MR R

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
At 31 December 2019

1. 9EEH @
ﬁ%ﬂu&i‘a&%ﬁ ()
AT NE+ZA=+—H

International Building
Securities air and architecture
Trading of Finance Money and futures  sea freight  Securities Property  and interior Property
goods leasing lending  brokerage forwarding trading  investment design  brokerage Total
&5k  ERRZE BFRE
“é’%?ﬁuu HEHRE &8 HEEL RELEE H5EE  MERE REARS WELL @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEn FEn FEn FEn TEn TEn TiEn TEn TR FEn
ASSETS BEE
Segment assets PHEE 154,376 22,002 422,765 43,154 588 1,287 114,461 18,892 8,076 790,601
Unallocated corporate assets KAELE£EE 402,102
Consolidated assets GRBE 1,192,703
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities PHEE 7,960 5,756 - 7,579 1,671 - - 4,655 2,558 30,179

Unallocated corporate FoEt%aE
liabilities

Consolidated liabilities 2688

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, deferred tax assets, interests in associates, interests
in joint ventures, non-current financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary,
pledged bank deposit, promissory note receivable, other
loan and interest receivables, bank balances and cash, the
equipment of head office and certain right-of-use assets and
other receivables; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
tax liabilities, amounts due to an associate, amount due to a
joint venture, short-term loans, consideration payables and
certain lease liabilities, trust loans and other payables.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —

11.SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information
Fifteen months ended 31 March 2021

4= A

s

5 MR MR

—FZA=+—HIFEES

M. 3EBEHN @

H{th

HEZ

DEPE R
B - F=B=+—HLE+HA

@A
International Building Property
Securities airand architecture development Building
Trading of Finance Money  andfutures  seafreight  Securities Property  and interior Property  and project  Geothermal  construction  Centralised
goods leasing lending  brokerage  forwarding trading  investment design ~ brokerage management energy  contracting heating ~ Unallocated Total
5k ERAZR BPRER HEYRR
BEER HRHR 8 HRER BLAE 58K NERR ELEE L ZEER LETI £ 0 Snits AR it
HKSO00 KO0 HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSOO0  HKSO0D  HKSODO  HKSOO0  HKSO0D  HKSODD  HKSO00
T T T Fin T Fin T Fin T Fin T Fin T Fin Fin
Amounts included in the mezsure of
segment profitor oss or segment assets
Additions to non-curtent assets (Note) ( - - - 9 - - - - 358 3% 9743 43308 7,068 666 149,235
Depreciaion of property, plant and N2 BRRRETE
equipment m 2 - m 4 - - i} 103 m 415 ) 4510 147 11325
Unrealsed loss on far value changeon ~ REMERTEZEHZRERER
investment properties - - - - - - 1,026 - - - - = = = 1,026
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZHERE - - - 13,000 - - - - - - 10622 - - - 862
Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not
included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or seqment assets:
(Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - - - - - - - - - - - - - (300) (300)
Interest income FiUON (135) (1) (0] (5) (1) - - - ) (174) (44) ) (5) (15,061) (15,468)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BHE —hE+ZA=+—HLH
E
International Building
Securities air and Architecture
Trading of Finance Money  and futures  sea freight  Securities Property  and interior Property
goods leasing lending  brokerage  forwarding trading  investment design ~ brokerage  Unallocated Total
B | mR EEE L |
BEBR  HEHE %8 BEEL RELEE B5EE  WERE RERRS  MEEL ANE @5
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Thn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn Thn Thr i Thn TEn
Amounts included in the measure of 3t BABBRANYEER
segment profit or loss or segment ~ FAZEHE:
assefs:
Additions to non-current assets (Note) FEFRENEE (3 = U - 55 - - 15 15,28 725 20 155,204
Depreciation of property, NE BERAENE
plant and equipment 358 3 - 504 9 - - 138 39 2,034 313
Unrealised loss on fair value change  BATEH A BRZ SHEE
on financial assets at fair value ATEEHFERESR
through profit o loss - - - - - 1716 - - - 750 2,466
Unrealised loss on fair value change R EY$ A TFELH 2
on investment properties FEREE - - - - - - 16,086 - - = 16,086
Impairment loss on loans and ERERRASZABES
interest receivables = = 43,466 = = = - = = = 43,466
Amounts reqularly provided to the  RERTEEEARERE
chief operating decision maker but  BH3EHHBBET
not included in the measure of NHEEBREHAZEE:
segment profit or loss or segment
assefs:
Written off of property, 0% BRRAE
plant and equipment - - - - - - - - - 3 3
Interest income RBBA ) (57) (6) (32) S (1) = (1) (1) (11,154 (11.260)
Note: Additions to non-current assets excluded right-of-use assets, regulatory Mz : ABIFABDEELCEEAREE-

deposit, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, finance lease
receivables, loan receivables, other loans receivables, deposit for acquisition
of a subsidiary, interest in associates, interest in joint ventures and deferred
tax assets.

141

EERE - BRATESAHMEZEN
mZERMEE-BATEFARRZ
%nﬂﬁ% EWEERERE B
CHAEBER W RN
EZ&% REEAT 2w 1
BERBZBmRIBERBEEE -



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) M. DHEM @
Geographical information HEHR
International air and sea freight forwarding services are carried out MRS EEEEBETLRHM
in Singapore, North and South America. Trading of goods, finance WAIbENREENET EEEmM
leasing, building architecture and interior design services, property MERE BFREREANAFRR
brokerage services, property development and project management B MERERE - MEEENREBEEE
services, geothermal energy services, building construction IEARFS ~ M EABE AR TS I F R E KB
contracting services and centralised heating services are carried out BREFHARBIHNAPRET
in the PRC. Trading of securities, money lending and securities and FEE - BEMBFRPERLCIRT
futures brokerage services are carried out in Hong Kong. TR EBET
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers REBIBEAMAERTHREL K
is presented based on the location of the operations of the EMEZY] cAERFRBEEER
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is TR EEMMTEHEZ5 -

presented based on the geographical location of assets.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
SMEDE P sk FRBEE
1 January

2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2021 2019 2021 2019

BE

BB _“Z-AE
—B—HZE +ZAH “T-hE

FI-F =+t-H ZIZBZ-§ +ZA
ZA=+-H LFE ZA=+-A =+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAR TAT TER

Hong Kong 58 25,367 30,186 31,043 45,062
PRC F 1,155,151 328,681 510,872 134,483
Singapore Fnig 1,268 1,529 4 8
North and South America J6 3 B mE =M 707 1,935 - -
1,182,493 362,331 541,919 179,553
Note: Non-current assets excluded right-of-use assets, regulatory deposits, W&t : ERBDEEFABEEAEEE ETE
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial B BAFEFAEMEZEREZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss, finance lease receivables, loan EHEE - RAFEAFABZZER
receivables, other loans receivables, deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary, BE -FRURBEHEERE BWER
interest in associates, interest in joint ventures and deferred tax assets. HtEWER WE—BRB AR
BE - RBHEATZRE - REER
Bl RRERIBEE
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 1. 0EEF @

12.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the overall revenue of the Group is as follows:

FEEREH

REBFEUTERERZ WG MEA
EEBENREBEI0%:

1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—ECTHE HE
—B—HZE —E2-NEF
- +ZHA=+—H
=BA=+—H EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
— Customer A’ —F A 321,929 153,881
— Customer B! == 249,489 79,403
— Customer C' —BRAA - 75,576
— Customer D2 —&RT? 238,824 =
1 Revenue from trading of goods segment L REEEmMMD Sz
2 Revenue from building construction contracting segment z REBFRERB DM
OTHER INCOME 12. Hthlg A
1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—ECEHF HE
—HA—HZE —Z2—NF
- +ZHA=+—H
=B=+—H IFFE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Interest income from REBUTERZFEWA
- bank —iR1T 419 160
- other loans receivables —HMEWER 8,303 5,700
— promissory note receivable — WA RER 6,746 5,400
Government grant (Note) BrTwaBh (B 51 32,466 2
Sundry income IR A 905 28
Reversal of impairment loss on FEW R E & RIERE
finance lease receivable 518 # [0l 1,624 =
Gain on lease modification HEBI zWa 26 =
Gain on disposal of property, HEWME - BB REE 2 W
plant and equipment 300 =
50,789 11,290
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

12. OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Note: During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the government grants

received by the Group included:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

a government grant from Singapore of approximately HK$180,000
(year ended 31 December 2019: HK$2,000) in relation to the job
credit scheme in Singapore on the condition that the Group has
made CPF contributions in Singapore. The government grant has
been recognised in the same periods in which the expenses were
recognised;

a government grant from Hong Kong of approximately
HK$1,822,000 (year ended 31 December 2019: HK$Nil) in relation to
the tranche of Employment Support scheme in Hong Kong; and

a government grant from the PRC of approximately HK$30,464,000
(year ended 31 December 2019: HK$Nil) mainly in relation to the
subsidies on heating supply services provided by geothermal energy
segment and centralised heating segment without condition.
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(iii)

TR INIE —IE L A B 5T B E R R
3R B AT B 49180,0008 7t (&
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£ 12,0008 RGEATEEER
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e TSERRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 &% — —F=HF=+—Hit+FEMBEA
13.LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR 13. 88 A8
The Group's loss for the period/year is stated after charging the NEMZHE EREETENER T
following: BIRBIER
1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
ZEITE BHE
—B—HZE —E-NF
- +ZBA=+—H
=BA=+—H IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Finance costs B FE s
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note) HEaEANERX (M) 3,385 3,806
Interest expense on bank loan ?‘JET}\%U BER% 134 =
Interest expenses on short-term loans BRFERE 458 =
Interest expense on trust loans ET}\%'J Bz 30,327 =
Interest expense on consideration payable Egﬁfﬂ?’iﬂ BER% 2,345 =
36,649 3,806
Staff costs =12
— Directors’ emoluments (note 14(a)) —E =N (FIEE14(a)) 11,696 8,825
— other staff costs —HiEE KA 90,429 39,218
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — —iRIKEF 5T EI RN
(excluding those for Directors) (FEEMESEHN 9,193 3,545
Total staff costs EE M A4REE 111,318 51,588
Other items HahIigg
Auditor’s remuneration Z BB & 1,300 1,075
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment#J 2 « i = K % 6 2 I &8 11,325 3,113
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERTE 24,811 19,023
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  #is8%) % BB Kk & - 33
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BBERKREBE
plant and equipment - 8
Net foreign exchange loss (ERE 1B/ 9 136
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses RABMAEZZ2FEMA 563,903 302,968
Note: At 31 March 2021, the average effective borrowing rate ranged from 8% Mz : RZB-—FE=A=+—H> FHERE
to 12% (31 December 2019: 8%). EEXNT8%E12% (ZE—NE+A
=+—H:8%)°
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

Note:

(i) The discretionary bonus is based on the relevant individual's
performance and the Company’s performance and profitability and

the prevailing market conditions.

(ii) Qin Jie has also been the chief executive of the Company since 22
January 2020 and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as chief executive.

(iii)  Other benefits represented rents paid for Directors’ quarters.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, four (31 December 2019: four) were Directors
whose emoluments are set out in (a) above. The aggregate
emoluments of the remaining one (31 December 2019: one)

individual were as follows:

14 BERITHESINERES
N @

(a) EFRITHERMNE @

5T -

(i) BBTEATERERALRERE A2
BEAKRBANENURTHRNE

Eo

iy HEABIZZZFE—HFBIZ+IHRE
NARATITHRES EEXEEZ
B <& 6 18 B IR B R 1T BB B 1R 12
ZIRFBF St 2Bl o

(i) HthBEFIEMESTEEZEE-

(b) B S =

rEELRREHMALTEENR

“E-NAFE+ZRAR=+—8:
M) EF WEZMEHN EX
()8 D - HEf—% (ZE—NE
+TZTRA=+—H:—%) ATLZM

BHREWMT -
1 January

2020 Year ended

to 31 March 31 December

2021 2019

bt Jk- 3> 5 HE

—B—H=E —E—-NEF

B +ZHA=+—H

=A=+—H IEEE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FAT FET

Salaries and other benefits e REMBER 1,800 1,635
Retirement benefits scheme BB ET BT

contributions 23 82

1,823 1,717
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FEMBEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14 EERITHABEMNERES
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ M @
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEM=E @
The emoluments were within the following bands: MEETIHEER -
1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
ZEITE S
—HB—HZE “ZE-NF
ZEZ—% +ZHA=+—8H
=A=+—H HEE
No. of No. of
employee employee
BEEA# BEAR
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 5% 2,000,00078 75 1 1
During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 and year R8EE_ZE-_—F=A=+—H
ended 31 December 2019, no emoluments were paid by the FE+RAEAREBEE_ZE—NF
Group to the Directors and the five highest paid individuals +ZT A=+ HILEFE £x&£HE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as THREEERALEETALTE
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors and IBHEUARS IR EMAREREL
the employees waived or agreed to waive any emoluments ERBREMAKREER 2 RENE
paid by the Group during the fifteen months ended 31 March AEHBE - RBEEZZ—F
2021 and year ended 31 December 2019. —A=+—HUE+REBREZE

_E-NE+RA=+—HLEF
B IEEEREERRXEE
MEXREERR S ZERME-
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

15. FRiS R 2

1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—ETE BHE
—A—BA=E —Z-NEF
—E_—% +ZRA=+—H
=B=+—H LFEE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAET TFHET
Current tax: 2HRIE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EMER 15,376 2,203
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BEFERERRE
(FBraREm)
Hong Kong Profits Tax BHEFE = (50)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRED T 2 P18 352 461
352 411
15,728 2,614

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021 and year ended 31 December
2019 as the loss for the taxation purpose is estimated during both
periods.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "“EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

No provision for Singapore and the United States of America Profits
Tax has been made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits in Singapore and the United States of America during
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 and year ended 31
December 2019.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 &% —

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

16.

other comprehensive income as follows:

=.AH
4RE

A TS ER R M EE

T —#FZA=+—HIEFEEA

15. 8B @

FARAZHAEHRAXRGEED REM
£ E W m & FT 5 Z BRI A S 18 ¥ AR 1
T

1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
t et 2 HE
—RA—HZE —NnEF
- +ZBA=+—H
=BA=+—H IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss before tax PRI BTES 18 (20,681) (103,482)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% R AMFAERIRE25%
(2019: 25%) (ZB—NF :25%) 82
1A (5.170) (25,871)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries THMAZERELS ZWE
operating in other jurisdictions ’Aﬂ?‘;&ﬁﬁTﬂﬁﬁ 2B 3,185 6,782
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BIIRBEZ B E
for tax purpose 10,448 16,587
Tax effect of income not taxable BARRBAZ KB E
for tax purpose (7,053) (2,479)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERZMBHEBEBZREEE 13,810 6,817
Under provision in prior years BEFEREETE 352 411
Tax effect of temporary difference FERERERRBEEE
not recognised 156 367
Income tax expense FRSMRBE X 15,728 2,614

Details of deferred tax are set out in note 37.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (year ended 31 December 2019:

nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

17. LOSS PER SHARE 17. 8RS58
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable RABEEANEBLESRERNREEES
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: BILBRBEUATEESE
1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—ECRE BHE
—HA—HZE —E-NEF
ZEZ—% +ZHA=+—H
=B=+—8 EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Loss K518
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted MEREARBEEEME 2
loss per share 518
(Loss for the period/year attributable to (EABEB A
owners of the Company) FEALHE, A5 18) (42,578) (106,067)
1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—EEHF HE
—HBA—HZE —T—hnF
—E-—% +-A=+—H
=A=+—82 EEE
‘000 '000
TFRR T
(restated)
(Ecs==g7l))
Number of shares [iitdhE- 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FLEREARKREEHBEMS 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss ZER I IIE
per share 1,016,857 1,016,857
By passing a special resolution at the special general meeting of BERARNBINZEZEFNB=4+—
the Company held on 31 August 2020, every five ordinary shares HREITHERERRFNAKE LBBE 5
in the issued share capital of the Company were consolidated into REBERZ AR BBBITREATEAR
one consolidated ordinary share in the issued share capital of the ZEREHARRBEEITR AR —
Company. As a result of the share consolidation, the weighted BEHEBER BRROGH T8
average number of ordinary shares adopted in the calculation BHE_Z-NFE+ZA=F+—HIEEF
of the basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 ENSREARBEESEREBNG
December 2019 have been adjusted retrospectively. BRMEFEOHMBEETEMNEE-
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. % BB K&

Furniture Plant Land
and Office Motor Leasehold and and  Construction
fixtures  equipment vehicles improvements  machinery building in progress Total
FHREE  HOZRE RE HEMERE HERRE  DHRET HRIR it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tin TEn TEn TEn ThEn TEn TR
CosT 2.8
At 1 January 2019 R-B-n%E-A-F 795 2029 13468 4 - - - 16,969
Exchange realignment ERfz 8) (5) (69) - S = = (82)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAT - 64 744 - = - - 808
Additions RE - 112 - - - - - m
Written off i ) (57) - - - - - (58)
Disposals HE - - (139) - = - - (139)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R=F-nE+ZA=+-Ak
“ZCEZE-F-f 786 2343 14,004 an S - - 17,610
Exchange realignment ERBE 25 50 195 - 5,610 (29 2,939 8,79
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR - 3% 8 - 156,329 37,691 54,309 248,693
Additions RE 45 531 666 735 28 - 39,728 41,733
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR = (16) = = = = (15,270) (15,286)
Disposals tE - - (3,691) S S S - (3.691)
At 31 March 2021 RIBZ-E=F=1-H 856 3,264 11,182 1212 161,967 37,666 81,706 297,853
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZTERAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 RZ%-n&E-F-A 498 1,507 9,505 an - - - 11,987
Exchange realignment ERBE (1) (4) (43) = = = = (59)
Provided for the period HREE 156 552 2,405 = = = = 3113
Written off i (1 (24) S S S = = (25)
Disposals HE - = 9) = = = = 9
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZE-AE+ZA=+-HBER
ZZIEE-F-H 646 2,031 11,853 an - - - 15,007
Exchange realignment EQRE 3 30 m 1 318 30 - 573
Provided for the period HREE TE] 610 2,003 138 7,800 731 = 11325
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR - (1) - = S S S 1)
Disposals e - - (3,691) - - - - (3,691)
At 31 March 2021 RIBZ-F=A=1-8 712 2,670 10,336 616 8118 761 - 23213
CARRYING VALUES R
At 31 March 2021 RIEZ-£ZA=+-H 144 594 846 59 153,849 36,905 81,706 274,640
At 31 December 2019 RZB—hE+ZA=+-H 140 31 2,151 - - - - 2,603
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following useful life and rates per

18. ME - -BEKRHZE @

LtHEME - -BERKRFEEEREER
EEZU T EAFRHRFERRR

(=3

annum: B .
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33.33% R EE 10%—33.33%
Office equipment 10% — 33.33% YN 10%—33.33%
Motor vehicles 10% - 33.33% _E 10% —33.33%
Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease or three HEMERE HEFHEI=F

years, whichever is shorter (MBI E A )
Plant and machinery 5% — 33.33% iR 55 5 14 25 5%—33.33%
Land and building 3.33% T iETF 3.33%
19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. EHEEE
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
s —m 4
=B=+—H +ZBA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Right-of-use assets FREEE
— Office premises and staffs’ quarters —“MAEMEREERS 11,074 24,164
Lease commitment of short-term leases CHATRE 2 HEKE 775 303
The maturity analysis, based on BERAMRBEERENAEH
undiscounted cash flows, of the HEaENIHESTUT
Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:
— Less than 1 year —— %R 7,940 26,193
- Between 1 and 2 years ——EmMF 4,240 5,922
- Between 2 and 5 years —MERF 1,681 -
13,861 32,115
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4R e MR RMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19.FHEEE ®
1 January
2020 Year ended
to 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
ZEITE S
—B—HZE —Z—NEF
- +ZHA=+—H
=A=+—H HEE
Depreciation charges mEER
— Office premises and staffs’ quarters —“MAEMEKREERS 24,811 19,023
Lease interest HEMNE 3,385 3,806
Expenses related to short-term leases CHAH EAERAR 2,795 3,965
Total cash outflow for leases HERESMHELE 32,402 21,511
Addition to right-of-use assets NEFRAEEE 10,983 18,268
The Group leases various premises and staffs’ quarters. Lease rEBRHEZEMEREEBS M
agreements are typically made for fixed periods of one to three EmENECHRBEEA—E2E=F-
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and HMERRTIZENEEZETES &
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease EEBABNER G - HEHZ
agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased assets TGN RRE MEEEERE
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes. BIEERAERNER-
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. R EBEWE

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

—E-—F “E-NEF

=B=+—H +=B=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT TET

At 1 January nw—HA—H 111,477 =
Addition on acquisition of subsidiaries WEEMB AR ZARE - 132,571
Fair value losses NEEEE (1,026) (16,086)
Exchange differences PR Z=2E 7,131 (5,008)
117,582 111,477

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March
2021 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out
by independent professional qualified valuer not connected to
the Group. The valuation of investment properties have been
calculated using income capitalization approach by reference to net
rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.
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FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

The carrying amounts of goodwill (after impairment) was allocated
to the following cash generating units (“CGUs"):

21. GOODWILL 21. 58
HK$'000
THET
COST DN
At 1 January 2019 R-_E—hF—H—H 71,582
Acquisition of subsidiaries B B A E) 22,521
Exchange differences ERELE (459)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIZ2—hF+A=+—Hk
—E-FF—HF—H 93,644
Acquisition of subsidiaries RS A F) 107,502
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBE AT (6,342)
Exchange differences BE R =28 6,686
At 31 March 2021 W2 —&F+"H=+—H 201,490
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and RIE2E—h&—A—8-
1 January 2020 T E-AE+_A=+t—BK
—EIEF—F—H 28,982
Provided for the period HA A 23,622
At 31 March 2021 W_E_—F=B=+—H 52,604
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 31 March 2021 R _—F=A=+—H 148,886
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NF+ZB=+—H 64,662

BEKREE JFERER BOEET
JREEEEMN (REEEEN) :

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

—EZ—F —E-NEF

=A=+—H +ZA=+—H

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Regulated financial services business THECRRFEE 29,600 42,600

Property brokerage services business MR A ARTE 75 7,561 7,105
Building architecture and interior design BFREERENRTRBER

service business 15,920 14,957

Geothermal energy business HERBEZE TS 52,633 =

Building construction contracting business 185 i K 6] 2 75 43,172 =

148,886 64,662
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 &% —

21. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined
based on the value-in-use calculation with reference to a
valuation performed by independent professional qualified valuers
not connected to the Group. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
of the Group covering a 10-year period for geothermal energy
business and a 5-year period for other businesses. Cash flows
beyond 5-year or 10-year period are projected using 3% growth
rate. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted revenue, such estimations are based on the CGU’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

Due to unsatisfactory market sentiment and keen competition,
in particular uncertainties in the financial market, the carrying
amount of the CGU of regulated financial services business
exceed its recoverable amount. As a result, an impairment of
HK$13,000,000 for the goodwill was recognised in profit or loss
for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.

The Group is negotiating with an independent third party for the
potential disposal of certain equity interest in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary engaged in geothermal energy business, for which the
consideration is considered as RMB15,600,000 (approximately
HK$18,509,000). As the recoverable amount was lower than
its carrying amount, an impairment of goodwill allocated to
geothermal energy business of approximately HK$10,622,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021.

No impairment for the goodwill of other businesses was recognised
in profit or loss for the fifteen month ended 31 March 2021 (year
ended 31 December 2019: HK$Nil).

The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU and are summarized as follows:

4R e MR RMEE

—FZA=+—HIFEES

21. BE @

REeEEEBU b EERRE
FBEESFEET L2 EHAEEM
EEAECZBISEXEBERGHEMPTE
TzaE A EERERAEERE
HEEpt A SEEFHL E+F AR R
Hi B AR EHEZ MBETF
HZRERERAN -BRAFH+F
HHF'?ZEE%J%‘LE&?AJ‘%IT’EEF
HeoFREBEAENHEMEZBRY
REsRESRA R HhaIEHE
BlWm zEstERREELBUN
BEXRBLREEEHTHERNIER
fEH ©

HR TSR RRF AN LH
EEMTENTHARE  ZHES
BRFBESNIBESEE BN ZREE
BEE e 28 Rt EmERE
13,000,000 8B TN EBE_S _—F=
B=+—BLE+HEEAMNEBTZANE

=
AEBIFTHBYE=ZFMEBILEE
NEMBAEEBTNIEZERB AT
ZETREETHE REAARE
15,600,0007T (4918,509,000% 75) ©
AR WESEENEREE &E
B —F=A=+—HL+EE
Eﬁ@ﬂ:“ﬁ%%ﬂﬁ%%%ﬂrﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@
10,622,000 T E R IEm MR

MEEMER BEEREREE_Z
—_—®F=ZRA=+—HIE+HREEW
BHEAER EBE_E—-—NE+_A4
=t+—HIEFE 28T

FrARREARNmAEX BRRIBES
EXBAAR S E R BamT

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—E-—=F —E—hF

=B=+-H +-A=+—§

(i) Regulated financial services business (i) ZHETHRBER 13.70% 14.12%
(i)  Property brokerage services business (i) YERLIRTFET 16.68% 18.90%
(i) Building architecture and interior design (i) 1BFEEKRENR RS

services business E 3§53 17.16% 16.82%
(iv) Geothermal energy business; (iv) HUZAREZEFS ; 12.61% N/A i@
(v)  Building construction contracting (v) BFRERBER

business. 20.30% N/A 77 FB
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

22. INTANGIBLE ASSET

222 B EE

License Backlogs Total
R ER RIEETE 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET TFHET
COST D%
At 1 January 2019, 31 December R-_Z—HE—H—Q-
2019 and 1 January 2020 “E2—nF
+-BA=+—HX
—Z2-Z2F—HF—H 811 = 811
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BT B~ ) = 4,067 4,067
At 31 March R=A=+—8 811 4,067 4,878
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION — E5H#H
At 1 January 2019, 31 December R-_Z—hFE—HF—H"
2019 and 1 January 2020 —E-NF
+ZHA=+—HKk
—E-EF—-A—H - - -
Charge for the period R B = 4,067 4,067
At 31 March 2021 PR —F
=BA=+—H - 4,067 4,067
CARRYING VALUE FREE
At 31 March 2021 R —F
=B=+—H 811 = 811
At 31 December 2019 A ZE—NE
+=-—B=+—H 811 — 811

The license has a legal life of 1 year but is renewable every year
at minimal cost. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group
would renew the license continuously and has the ability to do
so. Various studies including product life cycle studies, market,
competitive and environmental trends, and brand extension
opportunities have been performed by management of the Group,
which supports that the license has no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the provision of services restricted by license are
expected to generate net cash flows for the Group.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

22. INTANGIBLE ASSET (CONTINUED)

As a result, the license is considered by management of the
Group as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The license will not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, it
will be tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period
and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.

The backlogs represent a series of uncompleted building
construction contracting contracts. It is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on the recognised revenue over their total estimated
revenue. At the end of the reporting period, the backlogs have
been fully amortised.

159

2.EBEE @

Hit *&EBEEER/ZERAR
EIRERFH RAARPXERAE
RIEHBESAAFE BREITZE
B EXHERAFHREERSE
fReMBk > BN B R EHARIN A B
SBTHAECHRAERETRHE
A

AR BE—RIRTHNETFTE
RABLGR - KA AR R st #iE K
BEEIRIE B IR B2
mEUEGS RN A BT - RNEREH
Ko ARTTEI BB -



China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TRERRMIEE

i 3

23.

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

23. KRB E AR ZEm

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

—EZ—F “Z2—hEF

=B=+—H +Z-ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FET

Costs of investment in associates REE AT 2R E B4 132,253 44,250
Share of post-acquisition profits and other DMEWE R N R EMEE N m

comprehensive income 11,442 3,079

Disposal of an associate ﬁﬁ Gl d=PN=I (67,413) -

Exchange difference PR =RE 1,619 -

77,901 47,329

Amount due to an associate BN —BEE ABRIE (16,631) (6,521)

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest in Beijing Yuehai Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.* (EREZEBEEBIEBRLF)("Beijing
Yuehai”) (note 46(ii)(a)) which indirectly holds 20% equity interest
in Tangshan Jidong Geothermal Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (&
=R EABERI B R A F) ("Tangshan Jidong”). The acquisition
was completed on 24 March 2020 and the fair value of Tangshan
Jidong was approximately HK$63,069,000 at the acquisition date.
After the acquisition, Tangshan Jidong become the associate of the
Group and has been accounted for using equity method.

On 19 November 2020, the Group disposed its 20% shareholding
in Tangshan Jidong at a consideration of RMB70,000,000. The
disposal was completed on 19 November 2020 and Tangshan
Jidong ceased to be an associate of the Group since then.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group
also acquired and subscribed total 25% equity interest of Tiandi
Youdamei (Beijing) Cultural Tourism Company Limited* (KithA
KE JER) XHREBERAEF) (“Tiandi Youdamei”) at an aggregate
consideration of RMB21,000,000 (approximately HK$24,934,000).
The acquisition and subscription was completed on 30 October
2020. After the transactions, Tiandi Youdamei and its subsidiaries
and associates (collectively as “Tiandi Youdamei Group”) become
associates of the Group and have been accounted for using equity
method.
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23.INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

4R e MR RMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

23. RBE T 2w @

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had interests in the following

associates:

Proportion
of ownership

R TE_—F=ZHA=+—H'F&&H

RUTHEADEREED -

Proportion of

Place of Class of interests indirectly voting Principal
Name of entity incorporation  shares held held by the Company power held activities
FRFMERAR FiERE
BRLE SRMmINE RGOSR BRREZLH LA TEER
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
ZBZ-F BZ-hE ZE-f& “Z-NE
=R +ZA =R +ZA
=+-A =+-A =1+-H =t+—H
Treasure Cart Holdings Limited British Virgin Ordinary 25% 25% 25% 25% Investment holding
Islands
HERUHE EB RERR
Elite Step Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 25% 25% 25% 25% Investment holding
BEERAT ¥ gl RERR
Ruiyuan Kechuang (Beijing) PRC Registered 25% 25% 25% 25% Investment holding
Enterprise Management capital
Company Limited*
(Formerly Known as Beijing
Shudikang Enterprise
Management Company Limited*)
BRNE (R CXEERERAE  HE AMEL RERR
(FIEIRYBRERER
BRAR)
Beijing Shuwu Big Data Research PRC Registered 25% 25% 25% 25% Provision of financial
Company Limited* capital information, solution
and data analytical
services in the PRC
TREBAYEREER AT HE AMEL RAPEREHSBEER
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

23. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 23. NEENT 2R @

Proportion
of ownership Proportion of
Place of Class of interests indirectly voting Principal
Name of entity incorporation  shares held held by the Company power held activities
TR HEFARN FiERE
B SMMINE iSRG ER BRRELLH 1zt h) TEEH
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
—BZ-F B-hE B _Z-NE
= +°R = +-R
=+-A =+-A =+-AH =+-H
Tiandi Youdamei PRC Registered 25% N/A 25% N/A " Investment holding and
capital hotel operation and
management, provision
of related hotel
property value-added
services
RBKRE HE AREL TER TER REZRRBESER
B RUEEMEEY
ERERY
Sichuan Yinlu Hotel PRC Registered 20.05% N/A 20.05% N/A" Hotel operation and
Management Co., Ltd.* capital management, provision
of dining services
m)IREEEEEERAR HE AREL TER TER BERERER RHE
AR
Suzhou Yinlu Hotel PRC Registered 20.05% N/A 20.05% N/A" Hotel operation and
Management Co., Ltd.* capital management, provision
of dining services
BINEEEEEEERAR HE AREL TER TER BERERER RHE
AR
Beijing Tiandi Damei Hotel PRC Registered 20% N/A 20% N/A" Hotel operation and
Management Co., Ltd.* capital management, provision
of related hotel
property value-added
services
TRRAMAZBEERERAR ol AREL TER TER BELERER RHMHE
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

23. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 23. RBE B 2w @
Proportion
of ownership Proportion of
Place of Class of interests indirectly voting Principal
Name of entity incorporation  shares held held by the Company power held activities
FREMEFAR FiERE
Bl SMMINE RGOSR BRREZLA 3ol TEEH
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
—BZ-F B-hE ZBI-& _Z-NE
= +ZA = +ZAR
=+-A =+—H =+-H =+-H
Xinglong County Yinlu PRC Registered 20% N/A 20% N/A  Hotel operation and
Shanfang Hotel capital management, provision
Management Co., Ltd.* of dining services
AERRELRBEEEEERAD HE AREL TER TER BELERER RHE
AR
Chengde Yinlu Senzhigu PRC Registered 13% N/A 13% N/A" Hotel operation and
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* capital management
RERERZABEEEERAD HE AREL TER TER BERERER
Chengde Shide Yinlu PRC Registered 13% N/A 13% N/A" Hotel operation and
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* capital management
REREREBEEEERAD HE AREL TER TER BERERER
Shifang City Banshan Yinlu Hotel PRC Registered 10.02% N/A 9.02% N/A" Hotel operation and
Management Co., Ltd.* capital management, provision
of dining services
B IREEEEEERAR FE AREL TER TER BELERER RHE
AR
Yinxian Culture (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*  PRC Registered 6% N/A 6% N/A  Inactive
capital
BRI (£5) BRAR HE AREL TER TER RILEH

The summarised financial information in respect of Treasure Cart
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively as “Treasure
Cart Group”) and Tiandi Youdamei Group that are material to
the Group is set out below, which represents amounts shown in
the associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs and adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes
including any differences in accounting policies and fair value
adjustments.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

23.INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 23. R E AT 2w @)
Tiandi
Youdamei
Treasure Cart Group Group

Treasure Cart¥E R KEER

31 March 31 December 31 March

2021 2019 2021

=& “Z2—hE —EZ—F

=ZB=+—B +-A=+-8 =A=+-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEBT FET

Non-current assets ERBEE 49 13,851 62,313
Current assets MENEE 34,221 41,253 30,298
Non-current liabilities EREE - (3,193) (12,239)
Current liabilities mEas (9,036) (31,017) (25,603)
Net assets BEFE 25,234 20,894 54,769
Net assets BEZE 25,234 20,894 54,769
Less: Non-controlling interest IR S - (20,187) (2,714)
Equity attributable to the owners #EA AFE(S R 25,234 707 52,055

Proportion of the Group's RNEEZ R RELLA

ownership 25% 25% 25%

Share of net assets value DMIEEEFE 6,309 176 13,013

Goodwill e 47,153 47,153 11,426

Carrying amount of the Group’s AEE#E LD 2 REE
interests 53,462 47,329 24,439
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e TSERRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & % — —F=—H=+—Hit+AHES
23. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 3. REERT 2 xS @
Tiandi
Youdamei
Treasure Cart Group Group
KB KRE
Treasure Cart & £H
From
From 21 June 30 October
1 January 2019 (date of 2020 (date of
2020 to acquisition) acquisition)
31 March to 31 December to 31 March
2021 2019 2021
—Z-NEF —EBEH

i A= i = +B=+H
—A—HAE (WEEME (KEBAME

—E-—F “Z2—hE —g-—F
=H=+—H +ZBA=+—8 =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Revenue for the period M 65,773 39,064 7,309
Profit/(loss) for the period HriER (8518) 27,826 20,765 (2,381)
Other comprehensive income/ REME@E
(expense) for the period Wz (BsR) 265 (291) -
Total comprehensive income for ~ HARN 2 E UK 48 48
the period 28,091 20,474 (2,381)
As at 31 March 2021, the bank and cash balances of the A ZEZ—F=-—A=+—H'&&E
Group’ associates in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to .EACP B E AN ZIRT RIS
approximately HK$3,705,000 (31 December 2019: approximately BRIUANRMEEE > £9733,705,0008 7T
HK$2,416,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is —E-hE+= ﬁ +—H:4
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations. 2,416,000/ 7T) o AR 7 Al I

RESTHEIINEE @fhﬁﬂ

There is advanced payment from an associate of approximately REEHER RBE—RHBEZE R 28

HK$16,631,000 (31 December 2019: approximately ﬁw*\AI,\,‘ﬁﬁ%m 631,000 7T (ZZ—h

HK$6,521,000) at the end of the reporting period. The amount F+ZHA=+—H:#6,521,0008

due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. J0) o REARIRIE A ERAR
ZEREE
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i 3
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021#E _ =&

24.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24 MEERNTIZER

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—EZ—F —E-NEF
=A=+—8 +-B=+-*H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET THET

Unlisted investments: JFLEHEE :
Cost of investments KE KR 1,187 =
Share of profits ﬁjfﬁl 1 ) 472 =
Exchange differences RERE 18 =
1,677 -
Amount due to a joint venture e —R&ERARRIE (119) =

R&E_ZE_—F=-ZA=+—HL
+HER  AEERINTMESE
N=IN

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group set up
two joint ventures as following:

Proportion of ownership

Place of Class of interests indirectly Principal
Name of entity incorporation  shares held held by the Company activities
FREMEREN
1] MR AR ER BEERZILH TBREY
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
ZEZ-f “ENE
=A=+—-B +ZA=+-H
Guohua Jiaye (Shenzhen) Construction PRC Registered capital 51% N/A  Construction and project
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Guohua management
Jiaye (Shenzhen)”)
HEEE (R) ZREEBRA I ERER TER BEREREE
(B (RN 1)
Xingtai Baoshihua Energy PRC Registered capital 35.7% N/A  Not yet commerce business
Technology Co., Ltd.* (“Xingtai
Baoshihua”)
SERTERNMRERAT FE EREA TER HAHREH
(MMEagRTE)
Note: B 5T -

(i)  The Group through its wholly-owned and non-wholly owned subsidiaries
to hold 51% equity interest in Guohua Jiaya (Shenzhen) and Xingtai
Baoshihua respectively. Pursuant to the their Articles of Association, all
decision making shall be by an unanimous vote of the shareholders.
As at the end of the reporting period, both companies comprised two
shareholders. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group together with the

other shareholders, has joint controls over them.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

24. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 20 MEBERT 2T @
The table below shows, in aggregate, the Group's share of TRIINAEEEGABEREREE
amounts of all individually immaterial joint ventures that are ARBNERIEFERGE AT 2 HBEE-

25.

accounted for using the equity method.

HK$'000
FHET
At 31 March 2021 WZE_—H=A=+—H
Net assets BEFE 1,659
Fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 HE—_Z-_—F=-HB=+—HLE+HER
Revenue for the period AWz 2,363
Profit for the period AR iE F) 472
Other comprehensive income for the period HAR Efth & E U iE 18
Total comprehensive income for the period  HARN 2 mE UG AREE 490
There is advanced payment from a joint venture of approximately REEHER RBE—HBEZE RN
HK$119,000 (31 December 2019: nil) at the end of the reporting IFIBEA£119,0008 T (ZE—NF
period. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable +ZB=1+—H #) -ZHEAEK
in December 2021. - -AtERER_ZE_—F+_H4
BiE-
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. BT EStARMEZE =
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE ZEMEE
INCOME
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—E-—F “Z2—hEF
=ZA=+—-8 +-B=+-0H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Equity instruments BATER
Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong, REABWNIELTRAES
at fair value (Note i,ii) BRTESE (WaEisii) 8,640 11,230
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INC

Notes:

0]

(i)

OME (CONTINUED)

In 2002, the Group, through an acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary,
acquired 30,000,000 promoters’ shares in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Technology Company (“BBJB”) (the “Promoters’ Shares”) of RMBO.1
each at a consideration of HK$38,250,000, which is equivalent to 2.18%
of total issued share capital (including H shares and Promoters’ Shares) of
BBJB as at the end of the reporting period.

BBJB is a joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in the PRC
with its H shares listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Board").
The Promoters’ Shares were unlisted share capital issued by BBJB when it
was initially listed on the GEM Board in 2000. According to the Company
Law in the PRC, the Promoters’ Shares were not transferable within three
years from the date of incorporation of BBJB on 29 March 2000. The
unlisted equity investment is measured at fair value and is classified as level
2 fair value measurement (see note 8).

The above Investments are intended to be held for medium to long term.
Designation of these investments as equity investment of fair value through
other comprehensive income can avoid the volatility of the fair value
change of these Investments to the profit and loss.

Fair value loss of the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income approximately HK$2,590,000 (year ended 31
December 2019: HK$937,000) was recognised as other comprehensive
expense during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.
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5. B AFEEFAEMEEKE
ZEMEE ®

MIEE -

@)

(i)

RIEE_F AEEEHARE—H2
BHEAT > 2138,250,00058 TR BEA
30,000,0008 b RIEAREBIRFRF KGN
ARAR (IEABR) SKREEARO0.1
TTZ AR (TEERARMDY »HBER
BERRIEABTEEETRALLLE (BIEH
B R BEREABRAD) 2.18% ©

EABEARPEEMAIZRDERE
FRE HHEE# RZPAGEM (TGEM) £
Mo BEARNBABIEATENR _BEZEE
BHREGEM EMBF ST ZIF EMRA R
BREQRE EFRARMEILAETER
T TFE=F A HEM B AR
AZFEATEE R I ETRARERA
FTEABERDBEAF_EATESE (R
BisEs) ©

EHREERNPRAF A BEZXFRE
REATEFARMEERDEZREARE
FEMRZERAEZATEEHHESRES
PEIEZ-E

HE_ZE - F=AB=+—HLL+AHE
B BATEFAHMEZEREZSRE
EZ AT{EEEX2,590,0008 7T (B2
Z—NF+ZA=+—HLEFE 937,000
B BRAHMEE S He
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

26.

All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract

date over the lease terms.

R R EHEMIE

HEZFRARBEHNREBOBRRRE
HWBEBEE

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

B —F —T—hnF

=A=+-8 +-A=+-8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Finance lease receivables FE B ERERIE 50,935 53,965
Less: allowance for impairment of finance BRI ERERERE

lease receivables (34,988) (34,462)

Finance lease receivables, net RN ERERIE F58 15,947 19,503

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEENDWA -

— Non-current assets —JERBEE - 4,215

— Current assets —MEEE 15,947 15,288

15,947 19,503

The movements on the allowance for impairment of finance lease

receivables are as follows:

RUREEAERBREZREEZHU
T

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

—EZ—F —E-NEF

=B=+—H +=ZB=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January “—A—8 34,462 35,195
Exchange difference P2 =28 2,150 (733)
Reversal of impairment loss VEREY SEi=te{Cl (1,624) =
34,988 34,462
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26.

FEWNREFHE™IE @

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

RIEBEMR EEREMRZRE
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
“Z-NF “T-NE
—EC-F +-F CZB--& +ZA
ZA=+-8 =t+-8 =ZA=+-A =+-§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTET THERT TAERT
Finance lease receivables comprise: EWRERSHIERE !
Within one year —FR 15,947 15,360 15,947 15,288
After one year but within two years —E% BRMER - 4,215 - 4215
15,947 19,575 15,947 19,503
Less: unearned interest income B REEA S I = (72) = .
Present value of minimum lease FEHREAENRZEAE
payment receivables 15,947 19,503 15,947 19,503

Effective interest rates of the above finance leases is 6% (year
ended 31 December 2019: 6% to 8%) per annum. As at 31 March
2021 and 31 December 2019, finance lease receivables are secured
over the motor vehicles and plant and machinery leased and for
certain corporate lessees, equity interest of the lessees are required
as additional security.

Before accepting any finance lease arrangement, the Group
assesses the financial strength of the lessee and considers the
credit limit granted to the lessee. In addition, the Group may
request for the guarantor with strong financial status where
necessary.
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26. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2021, finance lease receivables before allowance
for impairment of approximately RMB39,448,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$46,805,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB40,372,000, equivalent to approximately HK$45,006,000) was
past due. Included in the carrying amount of the above finance
lease receivables as at 31 March 2021 are two individually impaired
receivables of approximately RMB29,489,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$34,988,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB30,913,000, equivalent to approximately HK$34,462,000)
which impairment was made due to customers’ default in
payment. The Group has taken legal actions against these
customers and considered the legal opinion from independent
legal advisers during impairment assessment. For the remaining
past due amount of approximately RMB9,959,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$11,817,000), partial settlements were received
and the Group is still negotiating practicable repayment terms
and schedules subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the Directors considered no further impairment loss
needs to be recognised.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of finance lease
receivables and considers the finance lease receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired relate to finance lessees for whom
there was no recent history of default. As at 31 March 2021,
the age of the finance lease receivables was over three years (31
December 2019: within three years) based on the effective dates of
the relevant lease contracts.

26. R R B E™RIE @)
AZB-—F=H=+—-HB 0k

BESHEmZERMRERAEREL
AANRM39,448,000T (BBERA
46,805,00087w) (ZE—hE+_H
=+—H : & AR #540,372,0007T (18
E 1 4945,006,000587T) ) B #IHR o 7°
B —E=HA=+—H> tihEk
BRERERBEZREESIEMIEER]
BEZEWRIEN AR 29,489,000
7T (B8 H4934,988,0008 1) (=
—h&E+ZA=1+—H HAEH
30,913,0007t (FEE 1 4934,462,00078
70)) P BBV R R PRI IR o
AREBEHZERTEFREARTHR
RRES G E ER BB AEER
2AHAREBER - MBRTAPREEIAR
#9,959,0007¢ (1 E5°4911,817,000
B M BEWERESDEERER
REBDERRSPERBRER AT
BHERER B2 ETER &
b BEERABERDE—TRES
B

EEERYEERUMEAENEL
EFEARUDBBARBHTEREZE
W R E M B RIR K 3T A I 4R K RED
BRZBMEABEA-R-_Z-—-—F=A8
=+—H ' REEAEEEGHNZEN
HE BUmMERERBEZRES=
EUECE-NE+ZR=+—H:

=FR) o
27.INVENTORY 27.78
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
B —F —E—hEF
=Z=B=+—H +=B=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Consumables for production of heating FRRMEAR TEZSEEN
and industrial steam JHFE G 3,915 —
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28.

PR WSt Bl R B EL th FE W RR IR

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—E-—F “B-hE
=B=+—H +ZHA=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAET TFHET
Trade receivables arising from trading business B & % 75 Fir & & = FE U ER 7X 174,798 152,947
Trade receivables arising from the securities EHFMEIERKLERFIEES
and futures brokerage business FE WL AR R 227 3,111
Trade receivables arising from REREEBFIESE ZEBWER™
finance leasing business 2,314 502
Trade receivable arising from geothermal R RE ZE TSP B A 2 PR URBR X
energy business 237 -
Trade receivable arising from building BFRERCERFELEZ
construction contracting business FE WL AR R 12,426 =
Trade receivable arising from centralised ERHEAEBREEZ
heating business FE WL AR R 858 =
Trade receivable arising from MERBERIBEEBIERER
property development and project FiT R4 2 FEWRBR R
management business 13,158 -
Trade receivable arising from building BFRERENRFTER
architecture and interior design business FiT R4 2 FEWRBR R 1,221 =
Trade receivable arising from property MERLEBMEEXZ
brokerage business FE WL AR R 20,190 -
Trade receivables arising from international air BEIFRfn 2= K £ B
and sea freight forwarding business FfT R4 2 FEWRBRER 1,548 1,709
Less: allowance for impairment R ARG (1,453) (1,454)
95 255
Prepayments BT RIE 37,500 2,530
Value-added tax recoverable AT EIEETR 12,558 -
Deposits and other receivables & K E M EU R IE 95,599 17,836
371,181 177,181
The Group's trade receivables arising from securities and futures AEBRBSMBPERLCERMELEZ
brokerage business include Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing RSB EEEHEEEERAE
Corporation Limited (“HKFECC"”) and brokers with carrying (TERBHE®RE)) k&L ZREE

amounts of approximately HK$Nil and HK$227,000 respectively
(31 December 2019: approximately HK$50,000 and HK$3,061,000
respectively).

The Group allows an average credit period normally ranging
from 30 days to 180 days (31 December 2019: 30 days to 180
days) to its customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debt) presented based
on the invoice date or the payment date as stated in the respective
contracts at the end of the reporting period, which approximates

the respective revenue recognition date.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuep)  28. FEURBR T K H fth FE Y 3 18

(42)
International Property Building
air and Building development  architecture
Finance  seafreight Geothermal construction  Centralised  and project and interior Property
Trading leasing  forwarding energy  contracting heating management design  brokerage
business business business business business business business business business
ERRZER BFRE NEHER BFEER

BEXY MARARY BLAERE HHERE  AERE S0RREN GREERE ERRHER NRELRH
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TERL TAL TET TERL TEL AL TERL TEL AR

31 March 2021: Z—B--%

=R=t+-A:
Within 30 days 308 & - 198 51 - 4,969 - 10,904 677 =
31-60 days 312608 - 198 16 12 7,457 679 1,127 = =
61-90 days 612908 44,074 198 16 - - 179 1,127 - 20,190
Over 90 days iBiBI0H 130,724 1,720 12 25 - - - 544 -

174,798 2,314 95 237 12,426 858 13,158 1,221 20,190
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuep)  28. FEURBR ¥ K H fth FE Y 18

=)

=
International
air and sea
Finance freight
Trading leasing forwarding
business business business
B R AL 2 e
BEEYR RMEHEEY BLEEXER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FHET
31 December 2019: —_E—-NE
+=-B=+—8":
Within 30 days 30HA 152,947 = 152
31-60 days 31E60H = S 62
61-90 days 61E90H = S 20
Over 90 days #BiB90H - 502 21
152,947 502 255
The settlement term of trade receivables arising from the securities REEFELCERZ BBERRAE T
brokerage business are two trade days after the trade execution HETRZAREMERZS B B
date. The trade receivables from HKFECC and futures brokers are BB EEERAERCHEIERMR
repayable on demand which represent amounts deposited for trade REBREREE EERERETRS
execution purpose. BEHRIE
Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with AEBRBRERGHTEERRE
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$133,225,000 (31 BE#975133,225,0008 7T (ZE— 45
December 2019: HK$523,000) which were past due at the end of +ZH=+—H :523,000%87m) ZfE
the reporting period and for which the Group has not provided WERR MR SR E AR BAEE
for doubtful debt. The Group does not hold any collateral over WG RERSHEE R - AEB I ER
these balances. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, ZEGERT A T AR - 1R S H
approximately HK$130,724,000 of the past due balances were Rt > #9130,724,0008 T A A4S R E
settled. EET o
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The aging analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired based on the invoice date or the payment date as stated
in the respective contracts at the end of reporting date, which
approximately the respective revenue recognition date, is as follow:

28. FE W iR R B H fth FE U R IR

(&)

REBEEMARBREZHHNNBERS
MATES 2B (&8 WmkE
SBEAR 22 CAMEERE
2 SRR ES DA I0E ©

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

—E—F —Z-NEF

=A=+—8 +ZA=+—A”

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHETT FHET

Over 90 days B1890H 133,225 523

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on the past experience, the management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balance are still considered fully recoverable.

The movements in allowance for doubtful debts of trade
receivables were as follows:

EERBEAEZRIGRTI REH
BAERAEARFEAECHZIBUE
FomRBELR EEEMEGE AR
EEERTEEXNEH BRFHEER
MWERTE2HWE HBARZS
MEERST IR BUER R o

BUERMZ RERBHEZFWT :

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

—E-—F “E-NF

=A=+—H +ZHA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

1 January —R—H 1,454 1,464
Exchange difference P 2 = %8 (1) (10)
1,453 1,454

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed on a regular
basis.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 28.

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to
provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit
losses also incorporate forward looking information.

Over

30 days

Current past due
=4 30K L
HK$'000 HK$'000

PR WSt Bl R B EL th FE W RR IR

(&)

FERBEREBMBREERNFEIN
BETZBIERE BEMEBWERRZ
EHEREREATIRBENREES
B-RtERGEERE BRERR
15 & LB 45 18 R 280 A KBRS B WU AR AR
DHE-BRHEEGRTEIAEEE
o

Over Over

60 days 90 days
past due past due Total

bkt #HA
60K £ 90X £ st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET FAET FAET FET
At 31 March 2021 RIEZ-F
=A=+—H
Weighted average expected — fNEFIIBHRIEE
loss rate - - - 37% 0.6%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) AIUR[E1£%E (F&7T) 92,299 130,724 - 3,954 226,977
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BEREE (TET) - - = 1,453 1,453
At 31 December 2019 RIZB—NE
+-A=+—H
Weighted average expected  fEFISFELHER
loss rate - - - 74% 0.9%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) RIUs[cl& %8 (F757T) 156,292 = = 1,977 158,269
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BEEE (T - - = 1,454 1,454
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29. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 29. EHNEERGHNER
LIABILITIES
31 March At acquisition
2021 date
&
=A=+—H R UREE B HA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Contract assets BHNEE 296,061 93,713
Contract liabilities HaHN8E (13,540) (4,398)
There were no impairment losses recognised on any contract assets HAMEMENENEERDBER
during the period. Ho
Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations unsatisfied RERDPEERENBATEATER
at end of year and expected to be recognised as revenue in: PRUTEERRAVENRZE
31 March
2021
=—H=+—H
HK$'000
FHET
For the year ending 31 March BHE=ZB=1+—HIFE
-2022 ——_=&E__ 701,272
-2023 ——F"= 584,526
-2024 —ZENFE 336,899
-2025 ——_E"HE 419,965
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29. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 29. BHEBERGHNER®
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Significant changes in contract assets and contract liabilities during HRENEERGNEBENEARE
the period: & .

31 March 2021
—E-—§=A=+-8H

Contract Contract
assets liabilities
BHEE EHAaR
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHET
Increase due to operations in the period HAR R ZE RS = E Mg 0 438,187 =
Increase due to business combinations FZEHEFFmIEM 93,713 -
Transfer of contract assets to receivables BHNEEEEEERIE (235,839) -
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue BHEEEHEERR - 29,192
Consideration received from customer BlkEERNRE = (38,334)
30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 30. BAFEFFAEEZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—B_—F§ —Z-hEF
=A=+—H8 +ZA=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets at fair value through BATESABRZ EMEE !
profit or loss:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — 5B LHRAE = 1,287
— Contingent consideration receivable —HINENB AT BB
arising from profit guarantee clause in A REB RN E £ 2 IR SR
relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries ARE 10,679 -
10,679 1,287
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair BAFEFABEGZSHEER AT
value. The fair value of the listed securities has been determined by BIR LB HFZ2RFENLERE
reference to published price quotations in active markets. During HEMBCEERBEET -BECZ
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the Group disposed T —F-_B=+—BLt+HER"
all the listed securities and realised gain on financial assets at AEBHEMB LMESRIEATFE
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$2,326,000 FABRzEMEEZEERINEDN
has been recognised in profit or loss. No equity securities was 2,326,000 T ERETNER KN
held by the Group as at 31 March 2021 (31 December 2019: - —F=ZA=+—H ' AEELE
approximately HK$1,287,000). BFEEXARAZES (CE—hhE+Z

A=+—H :#1,287,000%7T) °
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30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

31.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2021, the contingent consideration receivable
was related to the profit guarantee clause which was irrecoverably
and unconditionally guaranteed by the vendors when acquiring
100% equity interest in Beijing Yuehai on 24 March 2020. The
fair value of the contingent consideration receivable at the date
of acquisition was approximately HK$644,000 (note 46(ii)(a)).
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement, the consideration of
RMB30,000,000 (approximately HK$32,901,000) shall be payable
by the Group in 2021 to 2023 provided that the net profit of
Beijing Yuehai and its subsidiaries (“Beijing Yuehai Group”) was
i) not less than RMB10,000,000 for the period from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020; ii) not less than RMB13,000,000 for
the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021; iii) not
less than RMB17,000,000 for period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022; and iv) not less than RMB40,000,000 for period
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022 (the “Guarantee
Profit”). As Beijing Yuehai Group failed to meet the Guarantee
Profit of RMB10,000,000 for the period from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020, the Group shall withhold the payment
of RMB10,000,000 in 2021. As a result, the fair value of the
consideration receivable as at 31 March 2021 has been determined
at approximately HK$10,679,000 based on different scenarios
of forecasted profit with reference to a valuation performed by
independent professional qualified valuers. Gain on fair value
change on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$9,982,000 has been recognised in profit or loss
during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

The bank deposit of HK$58,000 was pledged by the Group for the
purpose of issuing a guarantee by the bank to a service provider
for security against default payment as at 31 December 2019. The
pledged bank deposit carried at fixed interest rate of 0.95% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2019. The pledge has
been released during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021
and there is no pledged bank deposit maintained as at 31 March
2021.
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31.

=.AH
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A TS ER R M EE

T —#FZA=+—HIEFEEA

BZEME
= @)

A TET—F=B=+—H > EBK:X
7*TJETE/\m%‘H%T%ﬂ,\mA’E%ﬁ _yﬂ't"r)\
TSI E-EF=ZRB "+ HHUWEI
REESZEIREGHE S T H
[O] R 5 18 £ 0 32 (IR 1R o IEUR I AR
BRWERRZAFENA644,000
Ao (MsE46(iN(a)) RIEREEE
WER O AERARN _E_—FE_F
“=FHHMEARK30,000,0007T
(#932,901,000%7T) » IR ESE
REWBAR (TtREBEE)) 2
MV 2 _ZTEF—FB—HE_Z
TEEF+"B=+—HEBEEFALRA
E110,000,000T ;iR & - —%
—B—HBEE-_—F+"A=+—
HEAR A~/ AEK#13,000,0007T ;
inhWW_2_-__F#—B—RZ_&_"
FE+Z"BA=+—HEBFRLRARK
17,000,00070 ; RiVIR - E _EF—
B—HEZZE-_"_HF#+”°"HB=+—
HEE A DR AR®40,000,0007T
(MeREA) - BARIEREBER
REEZENR _E_ZEFE—H—HEZ
E-EE+"HB=-+—HHBBEZE
FRm A AR #10,000,0007s > A&
BEENIBE_E_—F22NRARE
10,000,0007z © A It > 1R #5788 /& F)
ZABBERLE2EBILIEXEER
HEMETZHE BHRRABNR_-E
T—HE=ZB=+—HZAFEEETE
##910,679,000/8 75 c & A F{EET A
BRZetMEEZ A TEEHRED
9,982,000 B TERBE_E_—4&F
—A=Z+—HIEt+REBZEZRNE

K

B IRITEM

RIE—NAE+A=+—H K&
BB fFIRITERS8,0008 T U A
IRITHMEBANNRNZ 2% [ R H#
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32. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances - trust and segregated accounts

The Group receives and holds monies deposited by clients and
other institutions in the course of the conduct of the securities and
futures brokerage business. Such monies are maintained in one
or more segregated bank accounts. The Group has recognised the
corresponding liabilities to respective external clients and other
institutions as trade payables (note 35). However, the Group does
not have a currently enforceable right to offset those payables with
the deposits placed.

Bank balances - general accounts

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and
bank balances that are interest-bearing at prevailing market
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.30% (31 December 2019:
0.01% to 0.30%) per annum and have original maturity of three
months or less.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
which are subject to foreign exchange control regulations or not
freely transferable:

2. RITEFKREE
IRITHE R —EERIBILRE

FEBRETESRPEELERRF
TRMNRFEERREMEBERZ
RE-ZEMEANFER—EAHZAE
BURNRTRF AEBCEIEE
SEE R REMEBHNERERERE
HERR (BFEE35) AT > AEEIRE
W AP 7 B 7 IR S A F BB
BY ] 38l AT HER)

IRITHEER ——ARER P

RITHEGBRRECEERAERMFIR
S RIIRTEG BRBOHBENX
0.01%%0.30% (Z_E—NE+_A
=+—H:001%%E0.30%) 58 8
FREBEA=@EASU T

IRITHERRRIBE R AT AR IMNE
EREARF AT EEEREZR
I8 :

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—E-—%F —Z2—NEF
=B=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Amounts denominated in: MTHHESsHEZRIE ©
RMB AR 21,359 18,238

180




EFEEEZERBRAT 2020/215F%H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

33.LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 33. BERERKFIE
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—E-—=F —T—hEF
=BA=+—H +=ZHBA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Loans receivables: EWER
Secured BIEE 40,000 40,000
Unsecured LR 372,215 393,905
412,215 433,905
Interest receivables fEUWF] B 42,149 31,515
Less: allowance for impairment of loan and 38 : FEU & =R R F) B A I8 (8 4
interest receivables (43,466) (43,466)
Loans and interest receivables, net EURER LT B HEE 410,898 421,954
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEENDTS .
— Non-current assets —JERBEE 17,000 105,369
— Current assets —REEE 393,898 316,585
410,898 421,954
The movements in allowance for impairment loss of loan and EWERRFIE Z REBEEFHES
interest receivables were as follows: wr

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

B —F —ZE—hEF

=B=+—H +ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHBT

At 1 January w—A—H 43,466 -
Impairment loss recognised EEDREEE - 43,466
43,466 43,466
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33. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 3B.ENEMEFE @

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2021, secured loans before allowance
for impairment of HK$40,000,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$40,000,000) were secured by assets charges provided by
borrowers. The Group does not hold any collateral over the
unsecured loans. The remaining loans amount before allowance
for impairment of approximately HK$372,215,000 (31 December
2019: approximately HK$393,905,000) represents unsecured
loans certain of which are accompanied by personal or corporate
guarantee. The loans advanced to the borrowers under the
Group's money lending business normally had loan periods from
6 to 54 months (31 December 2019: 5 to 54 months). The loans
provided to borrowers bore interest rate ranging from 8% -
15% per annum (31 December 2019: 8% — 15% per annum),
depending on the individual credit evaluations of the borrowers.
These evaluations focus on the borrowers’ financial background,
individual credit rating, current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the borrowers as well as the guarantees
and/or security from the borrowers (where necessary). The loans
provided to borrowers are repayable in accordance with the loan
agreements, in which the principal amounts are repayable on
maturity and the interests are repayable half-yearly, yearly or on
maturity.

The following is an aged analysis of loans and interest receivables
(net of allowance for impairment), presented based on the dates
which loans are granted to borrowers and interests are accrued.

A B —F=H=+—H Kk
BERER 2 BRI ER40,000,000
BTt (CE—-—HAE+B=+—80:
40,000,00058 70) T UERRAFFIRH
BEERGCIFIRTR - AERB T BB EIE
HEFIFAETAIKE R 8 TR
BEEr 2 ERES84372,215,000
BTt (CE—-—HAE+B=+—80:
#9393,905,000% 7t) 5 & FTHIAE A
FAFERZEIRIPER -BRIEALE
EZEEXEBRRNFERAZERZ
BRHEEAESAER (CE—NE
+ZB=+—H 5E54@EH) o gt
FEFRAZEFTENFSHEIS%
FHECE-NAFE+A=1+—H:
8% E15% 2 FHE) 5t B HEMBE
AZEREETFEME ZETEHE
ARERAZHEES - BAEEF
HREZABEEN R RERAZR
AERUREEERAZRER &
I (M E) - REFERAZER
EREERBEEE ETALHERE
RIPREERMNEESFE -85
R EIEARSEE o

UFAEEERARDER & T
BHEHHZIZBRERKFE (3
PRBERRE) ZBRE DT -

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

—E—F —Z-NEF

=A=+—8A +ZA=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within 90 days 90HR 4,721 8,995
91 - 180 days 91ZE180H 2,831 60,429
181 - 365 days 181%365H 27,112 71,077
Over 365 days Bi8365H 376,234 281,453
410,898 421,954
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33. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2021, loans and interest receivables before
allowance for impairment of approximately HK$322,986,000
(31 December 2019: approximately HK$224,138,000) were past
due. Included in the carrying amount of the above loans and
interest receivables as at 31 March 2021 is an individually impaired
receivables of approximately HK$43,466,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$43,466,000) which impairment was made due to borrower’s
default in payment. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
approximately HK$8,434,000 were settled. The remaining past
due amount of approximately HK$271,086,000 are due from
several borrowers with whom the Group is negotiating practicable
repayment terms and schedules. The Directors assessed their
creditworthiness and financial position and are of view that no
impairment loss is necessary. The Group's neither past due nor
impaired loan receivables mainly represented loans granted to
creditworthy customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Accordingly, the Directors considered that no further
impairment loss is necessary. Saved for the aforesaid secured loans,
the Group does not hold collateral over other balances.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

34. OTHER LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

34. Hth BB R R A E

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—EZ—F “2—hEF
=Z—H=+—H +=ZB=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Other loan receivables: HthEWER
— Loans related to a debt settlement —HERSFEHREERZER
agreement (Note i) (M =%i) 71,190 66,886
— Advance to third parties (Note ii) —EHE=H B MIF) 10,678 6,689
81,868 73,575
Other loan interest receivables: HthEWERFE !
— Loans related to a debt settlement —HERSFEHREERZER
agreement - 5,574
— Advance to third parties —MBE=FBM 1,234 357
1,234 5,931
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEENDNA -
- Non-current assets —JERBEE 3,559 73,575
— Current assets —hEEE 79,543 5,931
83,102 79,506

Notes:

On 1 March 2019, Rongjinda Finance Lease Company Limited* (“Rongjinda
Finance”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a debt settlement agreement with Heyuan City Dongjiangyuan Hot
Spring Resort Limited* CARM B TRBREBNBRAE) (“Heyuan
Dongjiangyuan”) and Beijing Kaiyitong Enterprise Management Limited
Company* (ERH BB EEEEFRAF)("Beijing Kaiyitong”) pursuant
to which the parties agreed that Heyuan Dongjiangyuan shall repay the
outstanding principal lease cost, interest and service fees of approximately
RMB6,979,000 in total while the remain outstanding balance of
approximately RMB76,764,000 is assumed by Beijing Kaiyitong. On the
same date, Rongjinda Finance entered into a loan agreement with Beijing
Kaiyitong pursuant to which Rongjinda Finance waived the interest and
consultancy fees payable totalling approximately RMB16,764,000 and the
remaining outstanding loan balance of RMB60,000,000 (approximately
HK$71,190,000) will be repaid by 1 March 2021, with the interest rate of
10% per annum payable every six months. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, the loan balance of RMB60,000,000 were fully settled.
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B —F=/H=+—HIE+LEA

34. OTHER LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 34. HithFEWEZEFE @

(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued) Wisr : (48)

(i) The Group advanced RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately (ii)

HK$7,119,000) and RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,559,000) to two corporations, both are independent third parties
respectively in the PRC, with the interest rate of 8% per annum.
The advance of RMB6,000,000 is secured by 50% shareholding in
the corporation and guaranteed by the individual shareholder of the
corporation, and will be repaid by 29 April 2021. For the advance
of RMB3,000,000, it is unsecured but guaranteed by the individual
shareholder of the corporation and will be repaid by 5 March 2022.

AEENFEAMETIEAR BAEABILS
=7) B4 AR #6,000,0007t (FHER L
7,119,0007 7t) & AR 53,000,000t (18
B0 493,559,000/87T) > FHZEA8Y% B
AR 1£6,000,0007T H 3% A 150 %% 3K
B AZASMEARRRBHER KER
TE_—ERAZ+AHBEE -BRA
R 153,000,000t 4 |IEIFEHZ AT EA
RERERMERERN _E__&£=B&H

35. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 35. & BR 7R 2 EL{th & {4 7R IH
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
T —F —B-hE
=A=+—H +ZRA=+—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Trade payables arising from the securities and ZE B35 %5 RIS KL EH 2
futures brokerage business FE(TBRER 4,269 6,397
Trade payables arising from international air ZREBEEME KB EEEER
and sea freight forwarding business 2 FE{TERER 705 720
Trade payables arising from property KAWL A FETS 2 FETERR
brokerage business 3,018 1,048
Trade payables arising from geothermal HERRE ZE TSP B A 2 PRI BR X
energy business 43,206 -
Trade payables arising from centralised ERHEAEBMEEZ
heating business FE(TBRER 15,232 =
Trade payables arising from building BFRERCERFELEZ
construction contracting business FE{TBRER 227,615 =
Earnest money from finance lease receivables FEWRIEHEEREZHES 1,898 3,344
Value-added tax payable FE{TIBETR - 1,157
Accrued charges FESTE R 19,065 12,623
Consideration payables FE B 137,728 =
Advance from subcontractor REDBEEEBENR 80,678 =
Trust loans interest payable I EEERFME 4,027 =
Other payables Hih e IE 39,995 4,272
577,436 29,561
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35. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 35. FE{TERFA B EHLth FE {718

The Group’s trade payables arising from securities and futures
brokerage business include margin clients and cash clients with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$4,234,000 and HK$35,000
respectively (31 December 2019: approximately HK$6,282,000 and
HK$115,000 respectively).

For trade payables arising from the securities and futures brokerage
business, no aging analysis is disclosed for the Group’s margin and
cash clients and clearing house as these clients were carried on
an open account basis, the aging analysis does not give additional
value in the view of the nature of business of securities brokerage.
Also, the settlement terms of clearing house is two trading days
after the transaction dates.

For trade payables arising from property brokerage business, no
aging analysis is disclosed as the Group is yet to receive invoices
at the end of the reporting period. The payables is accrued based
on the monthly statements agreed with the respective agents.
According to the relevant agency contracts, the invoices will be
billed in the following month and the settlement terms is within 3
business days from the invoices date.

The average credit period on international air and sea freight
forwarding services is normally ranging from 30 days to 90 days
(31 December 2019: 30 days to 90 days). For trade payables
arising from geothermal energy business, centralised heating
business and building construction contracting business, they are
mainly accrued and settled based on the progress of performance
and the settlement obligation as stipulated in the respective
contracts. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.
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35. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables from
international air and sea freight forwarding business, geothermal
energy business, centralised heating business and building
construction contracting business presented based on the
invoice date and/or the settlement obligation as stipulated in the
respective contracts at the end of the reporting period:

35.

International

P& A+ iR R B EL fth F& {4 "R IR

(&)

UTRRREARKEBERMNERE
LEERS B ER ERHEAE
BURBFRREROER ZBRMN
MEREC DA HRBEZELSR XA
MEXEIRZBEEERES]

air and Building

sea freight ~ Geothermal Centralised  construction

forwarding energy heating contracting

At 31 March 2021 RZ2Z—-%=R=+—-H business business business business
BERMZER BFEE

BLEEEE  MHBEREE STHRAER REEY

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THET FET TERT

Within 30 days 30HA 85 = 9,503 223,236
31-60 days 31%60H - - 274 81
61-90 days 61%£90H - - 5,056 1,980
Over 90 days #BiE90H 620 43,206 399 2,318
705 43,206 15,232 227,615

International

air and

sea freight

forwarding

At 31 December 2019 A _E-hF+ZB=+—H business
B PR AL 22 e

B LEEEXT

HK$'000

FHT

Within 30 days 30HA 94
31-60 days 31E60H 1
61-90 days 61%E90H 3
Over 90 days #B3890H 622
720
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36. LEASE LIABILITIES

36.HHE&E

Present value of

Lease payments lease payments
HER® HENRRE

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
“T-NE “2-hE
—EC-F +-F CZB--& +ZA
=B=+-H =+—H =B=+—-H =+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAR FER TAR

Lease liabilities comprise: HEAERE:
Within one year —&ER 7,940 26,193 6,793 23,848
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EMEEFELF (BEERRF) 5,921 5,922 5,429 5,482
Less: Future finance charges B RKRREER (1,639) (2,785) = =
Present value of lease liabilities HEERRE 12,222 29,330 12,222 29,330
Less: Amount due for settlement B RTZERRNIBEEZSHE

within twelve months MR rRBaRETIIT)

(shown under current liabilities) (6,793) (23,848)
Amount due for settlement after twelve R+ _{ER B2 EEZ %

months 5,429 5,482
At 31 March 2021, the average effective borrowing rate ranged RZE2EZ—F=A=+—HF¥HE

from 8% to 12% (31 December 2019: 8%).

37. DEFERRED TAX

BREEENT8%E12% (ZE—NF
+ZA=1+—H:18%)°

37 R IA

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for MUYBERMS  EERBHERZ D
financial reporting purposes: T

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—E-—=F —T—hEF
=A=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E 9,042 8,497
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE R - =
9,042 8,497
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37. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements there on during the current period and prior year:

e M RR M
——fFE=H=F+—HIFFEEA

37 RERIA )

RAME KR EEFERBZER2IEER
REERESHHLNT -

Impairment on
finance lease

receivables

FE U 78 &

HERERE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2019 A ZE—NF—HA—H 8,676

Exchange difference BE R =58 (179)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIZ2E—-—hF+IA=+—HK

—2ZF—H—H 8,497

Exchange difference R =RE 545

At 31 March 2021 N _E_—F=ZH=+—H 9,042

At 31 March 2021, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$483,804,000 (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$376,915,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
estimated unutilised tax losses (31 December 2019: nil) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

The estimated unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$426,275,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$358,139,000) may be carried forward against future taxable
income indefinitely under the current tax legislation in Hong Kong.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to subsidiaries in
the PRC amounted to approximately HK$55,526,000 (31 December
2019: approximately HK$17,220,000) that will expire within five
years from the end of the reporting period.
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AT —F=ZR= + H> KE
B o B EE R IEF 2 E 5t R
AR SRSB4 74483,804,000/8 7T
TE-AFE+ZBAB=F+—H &
376,915,00087T) c AR KRAETEAH
B2 om A R R £ B E L
AR ARG EERRRLERIEEE
(ZE—hE+ZB=+—H 5o

fhst R B AR TR 1E49426,275,00078
T (CE—hE+ZB=1+—H8:%
358,139,000/ 7T) IRIBEARITH A
AR AR AE 8 > LUK R R E R UK
]\o

EHADAREEEEBEN P E
i@ B » A8 455,526,000 7T
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37.

38.

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to a subsidiary
in Singapore amounted to approximately HK$2,003,000 (31
December 2019: approximately HK$1,556,000) of which the use
is subject to the agreement of the tax authority and compliance
with certain provision of the tax legislation in Singapore and may
be carried forward against future taxable income indefinitely.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. The Group had no other unrecognised
deductible temporary difference as at 31 March 2021 and 31
December 2019.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries (31 December 2019: nil) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

37RERIE ()

At A ERBEEEREEN B
KB AR > 28 492,003,000 7T
(Z2—hEFE+ZB=+—8:4
1,556,000/ 7T) * BN HZERBEE
BRMBEBE WA S MR
EME TR AT ER RS S LUK
RIEEFHRWA cBHRAAFES A
R ERE O IR SRR AR A 0 B
WERZE IR ERBEERIEL
MEEE R _E-—F=B=+—
HE_E—HAE+_A=+—H>=xK
EETEAEMARER TN RERZ
R

REBETPHEEEMBREZ BTN
F-R—HE BIREBITRETREH
MWEBARFFENZEIKKRE @R
AEEEIER G R EZRR 2 B ORRE
BERERBEN KA AR RRRE
B BRIEEBIPEMNE AR REE
M2 ERERNEERBI KNGS
MHBRERFHEE CTE-—NE+Z

foreseeable future. B=+—H: %) -
TRUST LOANS 38. 556 B
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—EZ—F —E-NEF
=EA=+—H +ZRA=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Trust loan — secured EEER—FIKH 237,299 =

On 19 February 2020, the Group entered into the trust loan
agreements with an independent third party to obtain loans with
principal amounts of RMB200,000,000 in aggregate which carry
a fixed interest rate of 12% per annum and is repayable in March
2022. The Group received loan proceeds of RMB198,000,000
in March 2020, net of 1% of loan principal amounts (i.e.
RMB2,000,000) which is required by the relevant rules and
regulations to be invested in the trust protection fund in the PRC.
The loan proceeds were intended to be used for the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in Beijing Yuehai and enhancing the
general working capital. Pursuant to the trust loan agreements,
the trust loans are secured by pledging of (i) 100% shareholding
of Jiangsu Meili Kongjian Construction Design Development Co.,
Ltd* CISR =R ETHEERZAEXZLRABRAE) ("Jiangsu Meili
Kongjian”) and 70% shareholding of Baoshihua Geothermal
Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (BRIEHEEERMEEFRAT)
(“Baoshihua Geothermal Energy”), and (ii) the land use right held
by Jiangsu Meili Kongjian and any constructions thereon; and are
guaranteed by Jiangsu Meili Kongjian.
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B AREESHE AR200,000,000
T REEENFKI12%T B RARC
T _F-_FREENER -AEFER
TECEEZRREEINFFREHRIEA
EE#£198,000,0007T (K40 k12 HBE 1R
B MREBRERTHETREES
1% EmA£% (B AR 2,000,000
70)) c BRI ERIERE BN WEILR
EEZEHREREA—KREEE
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SHORT TERM LOANS 39. FHHAE K
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—E-—=F —T—hEF
=A=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Short term loans — unsecured FRHAER—EIEE 20,170 =
The Group entered into short term loans agreement with an REFE—ZBIE=HTILEH
independent third party to obtain loan with principal amounts of EXBEUNESATEASARE
RMB 17,000,000 (approximately HK$20,170,000) which carry a 17,000,0007T (420,170,000 7T) K
fixed interest rate of 16.8% per annum. The short term loans is BEEEMNEK16.8%sTENER %
repayable within one year. FHRERENR—ERNEE
BANK LOAN 40. SR1ITEM
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—g-—5 —=_h=E
=B=+-8 +-B=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Bank loan — secured RITER—FIEF 11,865 =

The secured bank loan is secured by the corporate guarantee
provided by independent third party and personal guarantee of an
officer of a subsidiary.

The bank loan is repayable within one year which carry a fixed
interest rate of 5.8% per annum and dominated in RMB.
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41.SHARE CAPITAL 41. ig s
Number of Number of Share Share
shares shares capital capital
B EE] RO#UE R &
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
“E-NE “2-NE
“EBC-F +ZA ZEC-& +ZB
=ZB=+-H =+-B ZR=+-H =+-H
‘000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk TER TER

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 (2019: HK$0.1) each ~ EREE0.1%ET
(C2—NF 08T 2 BER

Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZIZ-nE-A-B>
1 January 2020 and 31 March 2021 “E-AE+ZAZ+-B

22 2F-F-Hk

“E_-f=ZRB=1+-H 25,000,000 25,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
At 1 January Rr—E—H 5,084,283 5,084,283 508,428 508,428
Share consolidation (Note) Rip &bt (s (4,067,426) S = =
Capital reduction (Note) A (i3 - - (406,742) 5

1,016,857 5,084,283 101,686 508,428

Note: BT -

Pursuant to a special general meeting resolution passed on 31 August 2020, the
Company implemented the capital reorganisation which comprises:

(i) the share consolidation whereby every five issued ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each of the Company were consolidated into one issued
consolidated ordinary share of HK$0.5 each (the “Consolidated Share”)
in the issued and unissued share capital of the Company effective on 2
September 2020; and

(i) the capital reduction whereby the par value of all the then issued
Consolidated Shares shall be reduced from HK$0.5 each to HK$0.1 each by
cancelling the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.4 on
each of the then Consolidated Shares in issue. All credit of approximately
of HK$406,742,000 arising from the capital reduction was transferred
to the contributed surplus account for use by the Board in any manner
permitted by the Companies Act and the Bye-laws.
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(ii)

ROGH BILBEERAQABDEETS
REEBECIBTZEBRAEHA—RELQT
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42.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 22 May 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 share option
scheme (the “2012 Scheme"”) under which the board of Directors
may at its discretion offer to any Director (including non-executive
Director), employee, suppliers, customers, any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support
to the Group, shareholders of any member of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holds an equity interests and any other
group or classes of persons or entities who have contributed to the
development and growth of the Group (“Participant”) to subscribe
for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Scheme. The principal purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to
provide incentive or rewards for the Participant’s contributions to
the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2012 Scheme, unless a refresh approval from the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2012 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

The subscription price of the option shares granted under the 2012
Scheme shall be a price to be determined by the Directors being
not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal value of
a share.
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42.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any individual under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The 2012 Scheme does not contain any requirement of a minimum
period and the board of Directors of the Company may in its
absolute discretion impose a minimum period requirement for
each option granted will be made by the board of Directors of
the Company on a case by case basis and will not be made to the
advantage of the Participants.

The 2012 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing from the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme to 21
May 2022, after which no further options will be granted but the
options which are granted during the life of the 2012 Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue
and the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof.

Options granted under the 2012 Scheme must be taken up within
21 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option,
the grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for
the grant. No share options have been granted and remained
outstanding during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 and
year ended 31 December 2019.
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43. PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of the promissory
note receivable of HK$90,000,000 with principal amount of
HK$90,000,000, formed part of the Group’s consideration
receivables in relation to the disposal of East Favor Global
Investment Limited (”East Favor”) to Honghu Group Limited in
2017.

The promissory note is secured by 9,608 shares of East Favor,
representing 49% of the equity interest of East Favor at the
issuance date. The promissory note bears interest at a rate of 6%
per annum and the sole shareholder of Honghu Group Limited,
Mr. Deng Junjie (“the Guarantor”), has provided guarantee in
favour of the Company for the payment of all sums payable
under the promissory note. On 20 March 2018, 20 March 2019
and 20 March 2020, the Company and Honghu Group Limited
entered into a first supplementary deed, second supplemental
deed and third supplemental deed to extend the repayment date
of the promissory note to 20 March 2019, 20 March 2020 and 20
March 2021 respectively with other terms remaining unchanged.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company
and Honghu Group Limited entered into a forth supplemental
deed (the “Forth Supplemental Deed”). Pursuant to the Forth
Supplemental Deed, the repayment date of the promissory note
of HK$90,000,000 was further extended to 20 March 2022 with
other terms remaining unchanged.

44. COMMITMENTS

4R e MR RMEE

—FZA=+—HIFEES

43. RN AR RIE

A BT —F=-B=+—H>A&%
790,000,000 T2 EWA R ZHEH
90,000,0008 TR EEHE A A E B L
Rt FREEEREREREAT
(lEE) HEFTEEEEERAT
FEWREZ 8849 e

AREELIEE, 6081 M FBER
BITHEREREZ49%) fEIEIF -
AREBRRENEC%TE REER
BRABM—REBIENLE (THER
AN UARRBAZHEAREKRERE
TENZESERBER- R
—N\NEFE=ZBZ+H -ZE—NE=H
TtH+HRIZIEZEE=B"+H &
NEEBREEEBERABTILE—H
BREZB - F_MHETRERE=H
BRZEURBEARER 2 ERBED

MERE-_E—HAhE=B=-+H =
ECEF-RBA+HEIEZI—F=
BZ+H > HtHEZHE R R o3RG
HRE AABHEBBRERESRAFT
SUFERMmEmRRE ((EUpma
) o IRIBFEUMHm TR AR ER
90,000,000 T2 =R HEE—F L
ﬁﬁ_g__i BZ+H> > ZEfig
MR

44, K I

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—EB_—F§ “E-NEF
=A=+—H +=ZB=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET

Capital expenditure contracted for but not ~ FHUWE—RRBATBEITHN

provided in the consolidated financial BRREGEGMBRREEZ

BARXH

statements in respect of acquisition of a
subsidiary
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45. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 45. R A@EFI =12

The Group enrolled all Hong Kong employees in the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 (31
December 2019: HK$1,500) per month, to the MPF Scheme, in
which the contribution is matched by employees.

The Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC and Singapore
participate in defined contribution retirement schemes and CPF
Scheme organised by the relevant local government authorities
in the PRC and Singapore respectively. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified percentage of its payroll costs
to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the specified contributions under these
schemes.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of approximately HK$9,285,000
(year ended 31 December 2019: HK$3,604,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of
the current accounting period.

46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i) Accounted for as asset acquisition

(@ On 14 January 2020, Shenzhen Guohua Construction
Industrial Co., Ltd.* (RIIEZEREXEXBRLA)
(“Shenzhen Guohua”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Ningbo Sixing Information Technology
Co., Ltd.* (BRBITEEMZAMRAE) ("Ningbo
Sixing”), an independent third party, entered into the
equity transfer agreement pursuant to which Shenzhen
Guohua conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Ningbo
Sixing conditionally agreed to sell, 100% equity interest
in Jiangsu Meili Kongjian at an aggregate consideration
of RMB41,000,000 (approximately HK$44,965,000). The
acquisition was completed on 2 March 2020 and Jiangsu
Meili Kongjian become the subsidiary of the Company
since then. The Directors are of the opinion that the
acquisition of Jiangsu Meili Kongjian is in substance
an asset acquisition instead of a business combination,
as the net assets was mainly the properties under
development for sales and Jiangsu Meili Kongjian was
inactive and did not constitute a business prior to the
acquisition by the Group.
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46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 46. BB B A B (&
(i) Accounted for as asset acquisition (Continued) (i) ABRIEEEWE @
(@) (Continued) (@) (&)
The net assets of Jiangsu Meili Kongjian acquired as at B TR =B EN U
the date of acquisition are as follows: HEAZEEFENT !
HK$'000
FHET
Properties under development BRPEFEYE
for sales 54,464
Property, plant and equipment ME--BEREE 18
Other receivables HihpEWFRIE 406
Bank and cash balances IRITRIREAEER 12
Other payables Hh e I8 (9,606)
Deferred income EIEWTA (329)
Net assets EEZFE 44,965
Satisfied by: BUTAAZMN
Cash consideration RERE 10,967
Consideration payable FETE 33,998
44,965
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WHEEEELEZTEE R
JFEE
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration paid during BE_ZZ_—F-A=+—HUEF+HEBEAZNHN
the fifteen months ended HeRE
31 March 2021 10,967
Less: Bank and cash balances B BEUSIRIT RIRE &R
acquired (12)
10,955
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46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Accounted for as asset acquisition (Continued)

(b)

On 8 September 2020, Huaihua Qinneng Technology
Development Co., Ltd.* (IB1CENRERIZBEEBRAE)
("Huaihua Qinneng”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Yuncheng City Wandefu Hot Power Co.,
Ltd.* (BT EESEHAITIBERALE) ("Yuncheng City
Wandefu"”) entered into the reorganisation agreement
pursuant to which, among other things, Yuncheng City
Wandefu agreed that Huaihua Qinneng would act as
the reorganisation investor to acquire the entire equity
interest in Yuncheng City Wandefu at the consideration
of RMB110,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$130,600,000). Yuncheng City Wandefu is
principally engaged in the business of using coal-
fired boilers to provide centralised heating, including
industrial steam, to areas exclusively licensed by the
Yuncheng Management Committee through centralised
pipe networks. The acquisition was completed on 2
November 2020 and Yuncheng City Wandefu and its
subsidiary become the subsidiaries of the Company
since then. The Directors are of the opinion that the
acquisition of Yuncheng City Wandefu is in substance
an asset acquisition instead of a business combination,
as substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in the heat generating factory,
machinery and pipe network which consider as a group
of similar identifiable assets.

The net assets of Yuncheng City Wandefu acquired as at

46. INEBHI B A E] @
(i) ARIEEEKRE @

(b)

RZE_ZEFABNH &
NEIZENBABRICEEE
REpEERAR (MREH
BE)) HEWTER/EANE
RAE] (MEHHEERE) 5T
UBHABE Bt Eh g
o oERmEEREREEL
EEAEHREE INEE
HhEEEEIRE E
# AR #110,000,0007T (16
1 49130,600,000587T) ©
BT EEERIENEER
MAIEBIE S BEPEREDE
HEBZESBRITIZ
HERHEEPHRY GFET
ERXRR -ZWESTEERC
E-EFE+—B_HEM
MmERTESERAEKBA
BEHIERARABZHBA
Ao HNFTUNBBAEE E 2 PR
ERAFEEE LERRHER
SR EEE WRAs—
MHBLUAHEE)  WES
RAE O WNBERTEEREE
BrasEWEmMEERLS
fHo

ERBERTSFENUE

the date of acquisition are as follows: HEAZEEFENT !
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment ME-BEREE 127,933
Inventories =75 2,667
Net assets BEFE 130,600

Satisfied by: BUATAAZAMN

Cash consideration RERE 71,275
Consideration payable FETRE 59,325
130,600
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46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Accounted for as asset acquisition (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

=.AH
4RE

A TS ER R M EE

T —#FZA=+—HIEFEEA

46. WEEMB AT @
() ARRFIEEEUE @

(b)

(/vﬁ)

WHEEIBELEZEE M
JEEE
HK$'000
FET

HE_
REAE

Cash consideration paid during
the fifteen months ended
31 March 2021

(ii) Accounted for as business combination

(a)

On 18 February 2020, Guohua Jiaye (Beijing) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.* (E%¥E% (bR CXEEE
FR/A&)) (“Guohua Jiaye”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Qingdao Maojie Enterprise
Management Partnership (LLP)* (B EXRELESE
EBLE (BR&¥)) ("Qingdao Maojie”) and Ms.
Li Jing* (Z=#%) (collectively as the “Independent Third
Parties Vendors”), among others, entered into the equity
transfer agreement pursuant to which Guohua Jiaye
conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Independent
Third Parties Vendors conditionally agreed to sell, the
entire equity interest in Beijing Yuehai at a consideration
of RMB110,000,000 (approximately HK$120,637,000)
("Undiscounted Consideration”). According to the
equity transfer agreement, the Group shall pay the
consideration of RMB80,000,000 (approximately
HK$87,736,000) to Independent Third Parties Vendors
within three business days of the date of acquisition
and the remaining consideration of RMB30,000,000
(approximately HK$32,901,000) shall be payable in
2021 to 2023 subject to the fulfillment of certain
profit guarantee clause. As a result, the fair value
of the Undiscounted Consideration is approximately
RMB105,681,000 (approximately HK$115,900,000)
as at the date of acquisition. The acquisition was
completed on 24 March 2020 and have been accounted
for using the acquisition method. Beijing Yuehai Group
are principally engaged in developing and utilising
geothermal energy in provision of heating and cooling
supply to various buildings located in residential areas in
the PRC.
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71,275

(i) ARRFUIEEFESH

(a)

A TETEEFE_A+N\R>
ANBE2ENBRACEE
FE(OUER) LEEEAIR
/Aa (TEHZEEX))HEEES
RECESESBTLX (B

REE) (58X kE
But (#BIBIE=FH
Bhl1) (Hha#E) sJTuR
RS U EEE
EEREREWE MBI
EZAEREBKHGRER
EXREBZ2HRE
REBEAAR®110,000,000
7t (#9120,637,0003% 70)
(TRBEIRMCEL - BER
HEERE  AEEBER
WEHBE=Z@EZXA RN
MBIE=A8 LMK
B AR180,000,0007T (49
87,736,000 70) » M &R T
B AR130,000,0007T (49
32,901,000/ 7T) BRFER
ETHMNEBERERZ
T —FE_E_=FH
B2 o [ IE > REEIBAR(E
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46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(ii) Accounted for as business combination

(Continued)

(a) (Continued)

(a)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

of Beijing Yuehai Group acquired
acquisition is as follows:

as at their date of

46. INEBHI B A E] @
(i) ARRFIEEFSH @

(&)

PR Ib R & B E B R AT
BEEREERIHE B
AFEWOT

HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment MEBREREE 120,742
Interest in an associate R—REEE BN #ER 63,069
Trade and other receivables & Ut BR R R EL fth FE W =R 1B 36,335
Bank and cash balances R1T R IR B ER 4,709
Trade and other payables FEASER RN S LM FE (S 7R I8 (89,209)
Contract liabilities saH8E (4,398)
Deferred income 35 S IS (3,290)
Total identifiable net assets BNFESRZ A5 & E S E4R%E
at fair value 127,958
Non-controlling interest FEIERS TS (77,032)
Contingent consideration receivable F& U o 2A (B 644
Goodwill mE 64,330
Consideration at fair value BAFENERZAE 115,900
Satisfied by: BUTHAEZAN !
Cash consideration HE&RE 87,736
Consideration payable at fair AT ENRZEMAE
value 28,164
115,900

The Group recognised the excess of fair value of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired as the goodwill. None of the
goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

200

A& ECRIMERES A
BB E R B S E
FEIATFEBDIEAB
o Eg G ERRSE
BT 30 80 o



EFEEEZERBRAT 2020/215F%H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4R e MR RMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Accounted for as business combination
(Continued)

46. INEBHI B A E] @
(i) ARRFIEEFSH @

(@) (Continued) (@) (&)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEFEFREELEZHZ WML
JFEE
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid duringthe #E _ T - —F£=A=+—HLE+ABHAENTHN
fifteen months ended REHE
31 March 2021 87,736
Less: bank and cash balances B WEERR IS IRIT RIR AR
acquired (4,709)
83,027
Impact of acquisition on the results of the WHEFEIEH A ERFEEZ

Group

Included in the loss for the period is approximately
HK$10,009,000 loss attributed by Beijing Yuehai
Group. Revenue for the period includes approximately
HK$17,994,000 generated from Beijing Yuehai Group.

Had the acquisition of Beijing Yuehai Group been
completed on 1 January 2020, total revenue of the
Group for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021
would have been approximately HK$1,191,405,000,
and loss for the period would have been approximately
HK$35,278,000. The pro-forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2020, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.
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46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Accounted for as business combination
(Continued)

(b)

On 18 December 2019, Esteem Sun Limited (“Esteem
Sun”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into share transfer agreement with independent
third parties to acquire the entire issued share capital
of Total Fame Holdings Limited at a consideration of
HK$70,000,000. The acquisition was completed on
25 May 2020 and have been accounted for using the
acquisition method. Total Fame Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries (“Total Fame Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of projects construction
contracting in the PRC.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Total Fame Group acquired as at their date of acquisition
is as follows:

46. INEBHI B A E] @
(i) ARRFIEEFSH @

(b)

RZE—-—ARE+ZA+N
B> AxAB2ENBARH
WERRE (THEH) BEir
BE=F]URMEBERZENU
#1{1870,000,0007% 7T U &
Total Fame Holdings Limited
2EEETRA - WEEE
N _E_EFHERA_"_+EHH
B 5T BB A W R A
ABR°Total Fame Holdings
Limited & E [t & A 5] (MTotal
FamefE)) TE2NHPERE
TRREZRBER-

Frut B Total FamefEE MY ]
HABEERBBERWEBE
HWAFEUWT :

HK$'000
FET
Right-of-use assets FREEE 647
Intangible assets mEEE 4,067
Contract assets EHEE 93,713
Trade and other receivables & Ut BR R R L fth FE W =R 1B 11,203
Bank and cash balances R1T R IR B ER 448
Trade and other payables FEASBR RN B LM FE (S 7R I8 (80,950)
Lease liabilities HEAaR (667)
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE (1,633)
Total identifiable net assets BNFESRZ A5 & E S E4R%E
at fair value 26,828
Goodwill [EES 43,172
Consideration RE 70,000
Satisfied by: BT HAEZAN !
Cash consideration HE&RE 70,000
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46. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(ii) Accounted for as business combination
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group recognised the excess of fair value of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired as the goodwill. None of the
goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

46. INEBHI B A E] @
(i) ARRFIEEFSH @

(b)

(&)

AEFECSHIEEABZA
FTEBHEWEHNEE
FEZAFERDELBE
E-RAGSERERRBEE

BT T LU o
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEFEREELEZHZ WL
JFER
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration paid BE_Z-_—F=-A=Z+—HLE+EERZ
during the fifteen months ENRERE
ended 31 March 2021 70,000
Less: bank and cash balances B UREERT R IRTT RIR B A5 ER
acquired (448)
69,552
Impact of acquisition on the results of the WHEFIEH A EFEEZ
Group -7

Included in the loss for the period is approximately
HK$22,930,000 profit attributed by Total Fame
Group. Revenue for the period includes approximately
HK$434,187,000 generated from Total Fame Group.

Had the acquisition of Total Fame Group been completed
on 1 January 2020, total revenue of the Group for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 would have been
approximately HK$1,263,775,000, and loss for the
period would have been approximately HK$37,064,000.
The pro-forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2020, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.
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47.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 47. HEMB AT

In June 2020, Baoshihua Geothermal Energy, a non-wholly owned N ZEZERERACARBZIERE
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the equity transfer MEASBREHMAEE -2 B IE

agreement with an independent third party to dispose 60% equity
interest in Baoshihua Huabei Geothermal Energy Development Co.,
Ltd.* (BATEZEILHMEFER 5B FR/A B)) ("Baoshihua Huabei”) at a
consideration of RMB16,015,500 (approximately HK$17,564,000).
The disposal was completed on 18 June 2020 and the Group

THEUREEEGEULES

TEESLMBEREARARD (TER
TEZEIL)) HI60% KR REA AR
16,015,5007T (917,564,000 7T) ©
HEFEER _Z_ZFA+/\HE

TR MASEBEBILEEFABREE
TEEILKRAEMB LR ((ERTEEILE
B)) BRI o

ceased to hold any interest in Baoshihua Huabei and its subsidiary
(“Baoshihua Huabei Group”) since then.

The net assets of the Baoshihua Huabei Group at the date of the EOMEELEERERNLEEEANEBEES

disposal were as follows: BUTF .
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment MEBEMEE 15,285
Goodwill s 6,342
Prepayments FEfTRIE 339
Bank and cash balances IRITRIREERR 21,723
Trade and other payables FE AT BR =0 R EL At FE I 7R 18 (6,085)
Net assets disposed of HEBERE 37,604
Loss on disposal of the subsidiaries: HEMEATRE :
Cash consideration received BWIRERE 17,564
Net assets dispose of HEEEFE (37,604)
Cumulative exchange differences REREMB AR ZEFEERREEINGE AR
on translation of foreign subsidiaries HEDBEMOEEBER s RITERERE
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on loss of control of the subsidiaries (23)
Non-controlling interest JEEERR R 14,712
Loss on disposal HEEIE (5,351)

HEMTB X E 8 3R & 7t FEE
HK$'000

FET

(Unaudited)

(R EZ)

Net cash outflow from the disposal of subsidiaries

Cash consideration
Less: bank and cash balances disposal of

REAE 17,564
L HEIRTT RIS AR (21,723)

(4,159)
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OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

(b)

activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities

mEaRERERRMEE

17 O =

(a) MEZBELEZGRES

TRFVNAEERETFENRE

arising from financing activities during the year: EEELZABEET .
Total
Amount liabilities
Amount due to Short from
lease  duetoan ajoint Trust term Bank financing
liabilities associate venture loans loans loan activities
FEft—F FE 13— .
HERT RERTF METHN
HEafE ZHE 2 EEEM RHER RITER BfEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TET TERT FTERT TET FTERT FTER
At 1 January 2019 RZE-AE—A—H - - - - - - -
Changes in cash flows RBEREEs (21,511) 6,521 = = = = (14,990)
Non-cash changes FEREEH
~ interest charged —FEtFIE 3,806 - - - - - 3,806
- addition of right-of-use ~—FRAEEERE
assets 18,268 - - - - - 18,268
~ initial recognition upon  —IRAEEMBRE £
adoption of HKFRS 16 B pgi 29,001 - - - - - 29,001
— exchange difference —EREE (234) - - - - - (234)
At 31 December 2019 and R -F—HE+_-H
1 January 2020 =+—-BR-E-Z&E
—A—H 29,330 6,521 - - - - 35,851
Changes in cash flows ReRELH (32,402) 9,311 119 237,299 20,170 11,865 246,362
Non-cash changes FREEY
— interest charged —FstE 3,385 = = = = = 3,385
- addition of right-of-use ~—fERAEBERE
assets 10,983 - - - - - 10,983
- gain on lease modification —f &{&5] 2 W& (26) - - - = = (26)
- exchange difference —-ERE®E 952 799 - - - - 1,751
At 31 March 2021 RZIEZ—-%5=F=+—H 12,222 16,631 119 237,299 20,170 11,865 298,306

Major non-cash transaction

On 19 November 2020, the Group, through its non-wholly
owned subsidiary, disposed 20% shareholding in Tangshan
Jidong to a non-controlling shareholder of that subsidiary at a
consideration of RMB70,000,000 (note 23). No cash proceeds
was received by the Group as the consideration has been
offset by (i) the outstanding amount of RMB49,000,000 due
to non-controlling shareholders of that subsidiary and (ii) the
amount of RMB21,000,000 distributed to non-controlling
shareholders of that subsidiary immediately after this disposal.
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49. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has entered into the following transactions
with related parties:

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the period/year were as follows:

9. FAEFRS

BRI e M B RRAMES D FTIKEE
o> AEETFARIESFIIL TR ¢

FTEEEASHMN

EERHEMTEZEEABREB &R
ZMizmT :

1 January
2020 to Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
—ECTHE HE
—B—HZE —E2-NEF
—®-—% +-A=+-8
=A=+-8 I
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THET
Short-term benefits ZHRE A 13,404 10,446
Post-employment benefits BEHBEN 112 77
13,516 10,523

The remuneration of Directors and key management is determined
by the remuneration committee having regards to the performance
of individuals and market trends.
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. AATETEMBATIHS
OF THE COMPANY

Nominal value
Place of Type of of issued and
incorporation  legal fully paid Proportion of nominal value of
and entity share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiaries  operation registered registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
EUTA EEA BETREERE L YNGliiE
MBAR B B kg afE/ 2REE BETRAEE/HREALH TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B fig
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
8- B-hE CZBZ-f B3-nE
=R +Z2R =R +Z8
=t+-A =+-H =+-H =t+-H
% % % %
Jet Air (Singapore) Private  Singapore Limited liability $GD500,000 - - 93 93 Air freight forwarding
Limited g company 500,0005 1% 7t and brokers for
RS Gng) BRAF BERERAF airline and shipping
companies
ZENRMERMBR
GRS
Jet-Air (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$142,000,200 - = 100 100 Trading of securities and
RGZE (B4 B company 142,000,200 7 trading of goods
BRAT BREFAT BHEEREREE
Global Star Corporate Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 100 100 - - Acts as administrative
Management Limited &% company 10,0008 7T centre of the Group
RECEERFRAT BREEAT ERREEZITHAY
Jet Dispatch Limited United States of  Limited liability US$3,000 - - 100 100 Freight forwarding agent
America company 3,000%7T BERE
35 BREEAT
Qianhai Honghu Teri PRC Limited liability HK$110,000,000 - - 100 100 Trading of goods
Technology (Shenzhen) ~ FE company 110,000,000%7¢ EEWm
Co., Limited* BEREAAT
AlE SRR
(&) ERAR
Rongjinda Finance PRC Limited liability US$30,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of finance lease
RMEENE HE company 30,000,000%7¢ services and finance
BREALF consultancy services
REREEERERE
RAAIRE
China Best Finance Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 - = 100 100 Provision of money
Limited &E company AT lending services
HEMBERAT BREFAT REEMERS
Zhongrong International  Hong Kong Limited liability HK$102,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of securities
Securities Company &% company 102,000,000%7¢ brokerage services
Limited BREEAT REZSELRE

PRERIFERAR
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. & ~EEEMBATFIF

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&)
Nominal value
Place of Type of of issued and
incorporation  legal fully paid Proportion of nominal value of
and entity share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiaries  operation registered registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
B A EEA BETREERE FARFE
WEARAE B BEEY A/ EhEE BEITRAEE/SRESLH TELH
Directly Indirectly
B GE
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
"B B-h& CBT-§£ CB-hE
=R +ZA =R +ZA
=t+-A =t-H =t+-H =+-H
% % % %
Zhongrong International  Hong Kong Limited liability HK$67,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of futures
Futures Co., Limited &5 company 67,000,000 75 brokerage services
TRERAEERAT BREEAT REBSETRE
Beijing Fudajia Enterprise  PRC Limited liability HK$10,000,000¢ - - 100 100 Property investment
Management Co., HE company 10,000,003 7T RENE
Limited* BREAAT
TREEEREER
BRAT
Shanghai Xuanmei PRC Limited liability RMB5,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of residential
Property Agency # company A 5,000,000 and commercial
Company Limited* BREEAF property agency
TEHERHELL services
BRAT REATREENEL
R
Shanghai Tuxuan PRC Limited liability RMB5,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of building
Construction Design company AR 5,000,0007 architecture and
Company Limited* BR&EAT interior design services
LEBGRER RUEBFREREAR
BRAR atARH
Guohua Jiaye PRC Limited liability HK$10,000,000¢ - = 100 100 Investment holding and
ElEEE F company 10,000,000 7t* provision of project
BREMEAH management
BREZRRREER
=g
Jiangsu Meili Kongjian PRC Limited liability RMB30,000,000 - - 100 N/A~ Property development
IHEBTH HE company AR #30,000,0007 TEE NERE
BR&EAT
Baoshihua Geothermal PRC Limited liability ~ RMB1,000,000,000¢ - - 70 N/A Heating supply by
Energy HE company N TER geothermal energy
BRI BREEAR 1,000,000,0007% HAEHRE
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. Bl EEMBATFIF

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&
Nominal value
Place of Type of of issued and
incorporation  legal fully paid Proportion of nominal value of
and entity share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiaries  operation registered registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BT A EEA BETRERRE L YNGlitE
WEARAHE B BREEY A/ EhEE BETRIEE ARERLA TELH
Directly Indirectly
B GE
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
ZE-F Z-7E IZBT-& C“Z-hE
=B +ZA =R +ZA
=t+-A =t-H =t+-H =+-H
% % % %

Henan Province PRC Limited liability RMB100,000,000¢ - = 52.5 N/A" Heating and cooling
Baoshihua Geothermal S company AE100,000,0007c TER supply by geothermal
Energy Development ERERLAH energy
Co., Ltd.* ("Henan HEASEMER S
Province Baoshihua”)

TEEEATHRE
BEERAF
(FIBEERTE)

Wujixian Baoshihua PRC Limited liability RMB60,000,000 - - 36.4 N/A~ Heating supply by
Geothermal Energy HE company AE60,000,0007T TER geothermal energy
Development Co., BERELAF MEAMELIE
Ltd.*

BERERICHHE
REERAF

Xian Baoshihua Energy ~ PRC Limited liability RMB60,000,000¢ - - 100 N/A~ Heating supply by
Technology Group Co., HE company AR 60,000,007t TER geothermal energy
Ltd.* BRERRT HAERE

BRERTERRE
EEBRAT

Shaanxi Jiangwei PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000¢ - - 100 N/A - Provision of projects
Construction FE company AE#20,000,0007% B construction
Engineering Co., Ltd.* BREGAF contracting

MEIEHERTIR REIRESAE
BRAS

Yuncheng Baoshihua PRC Limited liability RMB50,000,000* - - 100 N/A~ Provision of centalised
Regional Energy HE company AR 50,000,007t TEA heating and industrial
Technology Co., Ltd.* BREGAF steam

ENERTEEARN REEDHAR
RERAF IE%R

. The registered capital is yet to be paid/fully paid as at 31 March 2021. L RIEZ—F=B=+—H Z=MELX

HARZT, BREZ A
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FEMEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. B EEMBATFIF

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Except for a limited partnership incorporated in the PRC, all other
subsidiaries are companies incorporated with limited liability in the
respective jurisdictions.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at
the end of both periods or at any time during both periods.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The
summarised financial information represents amount before inter-
company eliminations.

(&)

Br—RERPEEMAL B RGBT
FINFRBEHMNB AR ATERR
B A EEEMRILZBRAT -

1S 5% 8| A sl = = e {81 HA PSP 1 e
s ] 3 2 B B A B) B AT R R AR B
ZEBFES-

EXRFIIEZAEBNBRABRRBES
BN AEEEENEERUNTEER
EZNBAT - EHA 0 IRAEAMMM
BABZFBRERBER TR

TRITHAEEMS BERIFE
PetEm (TIFERED)) B ARSI
Bl - HBEHBMIEERERNATRE
REHRIAY 5 -

Henan Province

Baoshihua
Name By AEEEATE
Principal place of business/country of incorporation TEEEME SEMAIIER PRC
FHE
% of ownership interests/voting rights held by NCI JEERERNER D 47.5%
KRERZBDLE
HK$'000
At 31 March 2021: R-ZE-_—5=B=+—H: FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 93,782
Current assets REEE 24,697
Current liabilities mEaE (30,244)
Non-current liabilities JEREBE =
Net assets BEZE 88,235
Accumulated NCI RETIEERER 41,492
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021: BE-_F-_—H=H=+—8H
IE+AREA :
Revenue W= 14,450
Profit for the period B E A 15,846
Total comprehensive income EE W EAREE 15,846
Profit allocated to NCI PDEEEIEERER 2 mH 7,527
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEEPIEIRE R 12,637
Net cash used in investing activities KREEHPIARESFEE (15,219)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEEFSRE T 3,561
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents REMREEEEBEE ZIEMNFEE 979
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AR e MR R

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The principal

50. AR EEZMB AT FE
(&)

RBREHR =RATBEHMEEER
WARERZHBLRB -ZEWEAF

activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: ZEBEBRBRAOT
Number of subsidiaries
MEA RSB
31 March 31 December
Principal activities Principal place of business 2021 2019
—E”—-F —E-NEF
TEEH TEEHEMEL =B=+—H +ZRA=+—H
Investment holding BVI 12 12
REZERK HEEYHEE
Hong Kong 3 2
5A
The PRC 5 1
FRE
Inactive The PRC 6 4
RIEEFS FRE
BVI 3 2
HEEYHEE
Samoa 1 1
& B 55
Hong Kong 4 4
5A
34 26
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

51. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

51. R AT ZMBFAR AR

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
B —F —E—hnF
=A=+—8 +-B=+-*
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRBZKE 10 10
Current assets REEE
Other receivables HpE USR8 280 694
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (i) FE WL B /8 A Bl I8 (B EE()) 1,066,463 1,058,055
Bank balances and cash RITERKRIRE 8,204 26,014
1,074,947 1,084,763
Current liability Vi =N
Other payables Hn e I 3,915 5,534
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,071,032 1,079,229
NET ASSETS EEZFE 1,071,042 1,079,239
Capital and reserves AR e
Share capital %N 101,686 508,428
Reserves (Note (ii)) B (EE)) 969,356 570,811
TOTAL EQUITY B m 1,071,042 1,079,239
Notes: FEE -
()  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured i ERECSHBAEREAFEEZEZ S

and repayable on demand of which the balances of approximately
HK$431,097,000 (31 December 2019: approximately HK$462,997,000)
carry interest rates of 6% (31 December 2019: 6%) and the remaining
balances of approximately HK$635,366,000 (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$595,058,000) are non-interest bearing.
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HE EERRBERERERZ EHH
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FEMBEHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 % —_ & _—#F=H=+—HiF+FH1EH

51. THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

S51. 8 AT Z2HFRAE @

Notes: (Continued) Wik o (48)
(i) Reserves iy fHE
Share Contributed ~ Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
B 15 8 BARER RethsiE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAT FHET
(Note)
(Bt
At 1 January 2019 R-ZB—h&E—F—H 1,005,094 48,311 (413,497) 639,908
Loss for the year FREE - - (69,097) (69,097)
Total comprehensive expense FREES LR
for the year - - (69,097) (69,097)
At 31 December 2019 and RIB-h&E+-RA=+—Hk
at 1 January 2020 2T F—HA—H 1,005,094 48,311 (482,594) 570,811
Loss for the period HANEE - - (8,197) (8,197)
Total comprehensive expense for BrEE= e
the period - - (8,197) (8,197)
Capital reduction BEAHIR = 406,742 = 406,742
At 31 March 2021 WIZZ—H=A=+—H 1,005,094 455,053 (490,791) 969,356

The contributed surplus of the Company represents (i) the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in 1996 over the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange thereof and (ii) the credit arising from
the capital reduction by cancelling the par value of the paid-up capital of
the Company on 2 September 2020.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the

aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.
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ARABZHABFEOET2BARON
—NANREEBRAERLETA  REE
EPFERB AR ZRN AFEBHER
M BT 2 AR RAD BB 2 2= 8RR (i)
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BRAEENRAR BT ELEER-

BREABRE-AN—FQFZE EE:]) -
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BEREEDIK :

(@ AERIBARPIRAEFEHEE
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 20218 F —_ & _—#F=F=+—HIF+ZH1EH

52. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i)  On 11 May 2021, the Company proposed to implement the
rights issue on the basis of one (1) rights share for every two
(2) existing shares held on 16 June 2021 at the subscription
price of HK$0.2 per rights share, to raise up to approximately
HK$101.7 million by issuing up to 508,428,313 rights shares

to the qualifying shareholders of the Company.

(i) On 18 June 2021, the Group entered into a fourth
supplemental deed in relation to the promissory note of
principal amount of HK$90 million held by the Group,
whereby (i) the parties agreed to further extend the maturity
date of the promissory note by one (1) year, from 20 March
2021 to 20 March 2022; and (ii) the issuer of the promissory
note settled the outstanding interest payable under the
promissory note, in the amount of HK$5,400,000, before 20

June 2021.
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52. (REHARFIR

(i)

RZE-_—F758+—H ' £&A
BEsZEN 2 —% B+~
HEBEMQKRIRERHDESE—
(MR ZEXE LIGREE
SRRMEBEMH0.2EBTTEITHE
BEARAANBDEERREETR
%508,428,3 130 ARAR D » LIE
EER%%9101,700,0005 7T °

RZEZ—FB+/N\H &&E
BB AERSAEZASE
790,000,000 B T AR ERE 2
FEMEMHHERZE I ()4
EHREBARERZFHHE
TEC—F-FB+HE—FE
E—(NWEEZZE-_“F=-A"+
H RIWEARERZETARZ
E_—FEXBZ+HZAENSR
ARERIETNREMN ZHREEF
B £5845,400,0008 7T
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Five-Year Financial Summary
R FHBFERE

RESULTS e
Fifteen
months ended Year ended 31 December
31 March BE+-BA=+—HLEE
2021 2019 2018 2017 2016
BE_E--&
=B=+-H
t+AHEAR “E-hE —T-N\%F “E—tEF “ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FERT TET FET FET
Revenue g 1,182,493 362,331 218,007 425,575 488,208
(Loss) profit before tax BrEAT (B598) &R (20,681) (103,482) (74,061) 32,538 (8,665)
Income tax expense FrSMB Y (15,728) (2,614) (1,488) (8,013) (2,385)
(Loss) profit for the period/year  H,/ & (518) ‘& (36,409) (106,096) (75,549) 24,525 (11,050)
(Loss) profit for the period/ LUT ML,/ R
year attributable to: (1) &7 .
Owners of the Company AREEBA (42,578) (106,067) (75,533) 24,533 (10,540)
Non-controlling interests iR ER 6,169 (29) (16) (8) (510)
(Loss) profit for the period/year  H,/ & (518) & (36,409) (106,096) (75,549) 24,525 (11,050)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at As at 31 December
31 March BW+ZB=+—H
2021 2019 2018 2017 2016
RZIBZ—
=B=+—H “E-hE —T-N\EF “E—+tE “E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FTER FERT TET FHET
(Restated)
(1= &%)
Total assets EERE 2,072,872 1,192,703 1,288,139 1,180,173 1,056,715
Total liabilities SEEE (923,155) (75,162) (53,021) (76,557) (31,072)
1,149,717 1,117,541 1,235,118 1,103,616 1,025,643

Equity attributable to owners EREEBA

of the Company fEfhER 1,100,143 1,117,628 1,235,176 1,103,657 1,025,686
Non-controlling interests iR R 49,574 (87) (58) @1 (43)
1,149,717 1,117,541 1,235,118 1,103,616 1,025,643
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Schedule of Investment Properties
KREYIER

As at 31 March 20212 —E_—F=H=+—H

Percentage
Address Use Catergory of the Lease held by the Group
3k B HEZAER rEEFERRL
1 Room 01, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, = Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Chaoyang District, Beijing* (EES FREAFR AT
It REABERAREISHIE01E
2 Room 02, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, = Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Chaoyang District, Beijing* (EES FREAFR AT
It REABERAREI15R1E02E
3 Room 03, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, = Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Chaoyang District, Beijing* [EES FREAFR AT
It REABEER S REE191/E03=E
4 Room 05, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, =~ Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Chaoyang District, Beijing* [SES FRHAFAAY
I RABERSREISE1E0SE
5 Room 06, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, =~ Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Chaoyang District, Beijing* [SES FRHAFAAY
I RABERSREIE1E06E
6 Room 07, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, = Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Chaoyang District, Beijing* [SES FRHAFAAY
I RABERSREIEIEOTE
7 Room 08, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, =~ Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Chaoyang District, Beijing* [SES FRHAFAAY
I REABERSREE15R1E08E
8 Room 09, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, = Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Chaoyang District, Beijing* [SES FRHAFAAY
I RABERSREIE1E0IE
9 Room 10, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, = Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
Chaoyang District, Beijing* [SES FRHAFAAY
ITRBABERSREISEIE10E
10 Room 11, 1/F, No. 1 Dongfang Dong Road, = Commercial Medium-term lease 100%

Chaoyang District, Beijing* [SES FRHAFAAY
IRPBERARBIKIBIE
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